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Hooksett Kiwanis

HOOKSETT YOUTH YOLUNTEER OF THE YEAR

Adyson Lavallee

Adyson is an 8-year old student at Hooksett Memorial School who
spent several months in the hospital in 2015 and 2016 battling acute
lymphoblastic leukemia. Despite the challenges, Adyson is doing her
part to give back to the community. She has become a fundraising
machine raising money for cancer research. She has inspired others
to join her efforts, including Cawley Middle School, and the
Hooksett Fire and Police Departments

HOOKSETT’S ADULT VOLUNTEER OF THE YEAR

Don Riley

Don is a longtime volunteer in the Hooksett Community, and is a
former Citizen of the Year. He has held numerous leadership
positions with Lions International, both at the local and regional
level. Several years ago, he was instrumental in the transition in
Hooksett Governance from selectmen to a council form of
government. In 2016 he spent many hours working with the
Hooksett Lions Club, Robie’s Preservation Corporation, picking
up trash as part of the “Adopt a Highway” effort, and volunteering
at the Hooksett Community Food pantry. Most prominently, he
volunteered to serve an extra year as Town Moderator ensuring that both the NH Presidential
Primary and Presidential elections went off without a hitch. Don was the ultimate
professional ensuring all election protocols

were strictly adhered to.




HOOKSETT’S MUNICIPAL
EMPLOYEE OF THE YEAR

Wark Glisson

Mark is the highly
talented Information
Technology Specialist
at the Hooksett Public
Library. In that role,
he is responsible for
ensuring  that  the
library’s considerable
technology resources
function properly. In
2016 he went way above and beyond in that role.
He led the elevator reconstruction project,
developed a new website, installed a new wireless
system, and deployed a new 3D printing service. He
met individually with over 600 residents to help
them solve technology problems, and taught a half
dozen educational programs a month at the Library.
Mark was also recognized for his expertise serving
on library professional organizations. He is a
humble and sincere man. His decades-long
dedication to the Hooksett Public Library and to the
community of Hooksett is unmatched.

HOOKSETT’S COMMUNITY
IMPACT AWARD

Hooksett School District

The foundation of any community is the education of
its citizens. Hooksett is fortunate to have an outstanding
educational system because of its administrative staff,
teachers, families, and school board members.
Superintendent Charles P. Littlefield and his staff lead
the way for the Hooksett School District. Dr.
Littlefield, working together with the Hooksett School
Board, introduced the idea of memorandums of
understanding designed to forge agreements with
surrounding school districts. These provide multiple
high school options for Hooksett’s students. Today,
Hooksett enjoys high school relationships for its
students with Manchester, Derry, Londonderry, Bow,
Pembroke, and Goffstown. Hooksett’s system of high
school choice is admired by surrounding communities,
is a significant benefit for our students, and is a source
of pride for our town. Hooksett’s kindergarten through
second grade students thrive at the Fred C. Underhill
Elementary School, where Principal Ben Loi and his
staff guide the youngest of Hooksett learners on their
educational path. Third through fifth grade students
progress further on their journey while attending the
Hooksett Memorial School, under the guidance of
Steve Harrises and the teaching staff. Hooksett’s sixth
through eighth grade students attend the David R.
Cawley middle school, where Matt Benson and his staff
prepare Hooksett students for their future in high school
and beyond.



HOOKSETT LOWER
ELEMENTARY EDUCATOR
OF THE YEAR

Megtian Largy

Meghan is a third-grade
teacher at Hooksett
Memorial School. Principal
Harrises views her as
champion for all children.
She is the “go to” person
for students and staff alike.
She runs a student-centered
classroom  where  the
children in her room are
invested in their learning and the learning of
their peers. During 2016 she included, via
Facetime video communication, a student who
was unable to attend class due to ongoing
medical treatments. The student’s parents
believe that Mrs. Largy has had a monumental
and positive impact with their child’s life. Some
of the countless teachings she provides every
day can never be taught from textbook or
standard curriculum. Meghan’s math classes
serve as a district-level model, with the highest
results in the Hooksett School District.

HOOKSETT UPPER
ELEMENTARY EDUCATOR
OF THE YEAR

Swzanne Campbell

Suzanne is a sixth-grade
2 language arts teacher at

- Cawley Middle School.
. Over her 38 years in the
Hooksett School district she
has taught in all four
. schools: Underhill, Village,
Memorial and Cawley. She
is driven to ensure that
. students are  achieving

academically, socially, and
emotionally. One of her greatest qualities is her
ability to communicate her knowledge of reading
and writing by personalizing it for each child. She
has worked on numerous district committees to
improve the quality of education for all students.
She continually volunteers her time well beyond
contract hours.to provide extra support for students.
In her years as a Hooksett educator, Suzanne has led
and/or organized over 35 separate educational and
community activities. She is a role model for
students as she encourages them to make the most
of their middle school experience through co-
curricular activities and volunteering in the
Hooksett community. Two of many examples of
her effectiveness as an educator comes from the
remarks of former students “I never liked reading or
writing until I had Mrs. Campbell”.



HOOKSETT’S SMALL
BUSINESS OF THE YEAR

A Terny Plumbing & Heating
(ATP#).

ATPH has been a local family owned and operated
business in Hooksett for over 40 years. Its
involvement with the Hooksett business
community include hosting Hooksett Chamber
Business after Hours events and purchasing local
services and products. In 2016 it initiated (a) an
alternative financing program to assist families
cannot afford upfront heating system repairs, and
(b), reduced energy cost program. In the area of
community involvement, it is a significant
contributor to the Hooksett Community Food
Pantry, Salvation Army Bellringing, and Liberty
House. In 2016 it also donated material to assist
bringing irrigation to a local baseball fields. The
Company also is proud of its commitment to
employ veterans of the armed services.

HOOKSETT’S LARGE
BUSINESS OF THE
YEAR

Cigna is a global health service company that works
with employers to provide benefits for medical, dental,
behavioral health, pharmacy, and vision services. It has
maintained a corporate office in Hooksett for 20 years,
with more than 350 employees. It continues to
demonstrate a commitment to health and safety, the
environment, and the local and Statewide Community.
In 2016, Cigna’s Hooksett site received Leadership in
Energy and Environmental design certification with
perfect score of 43 points. One of its most prominent
initiatives is the Cigna/Elliot 5k race. Locally, it has
supported Hooksett Salvation Army bellringing, Adopt-a
Family, onsite blood drives, March for Babies, an
employee food drive and the Hooksett Kiwanis 5K race.
It also provides employees with a matching gift program
to double employee contributions, and paid time off to
perform volunteer and community service.



Citizen of the Year
Selected by the Lion’s Club

Henry Roy has lived in Hooksett for over 45 years. He graduated from
Manchester Central High School and the University of New Hampshire.
He later served as a Lieutenant in the US Army from 1961-1963. Henry
is a Certified Public Accountant who after passing the CPA exam, he
worked for four accounting firms before opening his own practice 1976.
He still works part time in the Firm of Roy and Bentas, CPAs.
Professionally, he served from 1977-1978 as President of the NH
Society of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. Roy has provided HYAA baseball and softball sponsorships for
over 10 years as well as many financial contributions to local and regional organizations. He has been a member
of the Central High School “chain gang”, working at varsity football games for 12 years, at Gill Stadium.

In his many years of service to our community, Henry has quietly and efficiently worked in the background,
never seeking any recognition. He cares about his community and its affairs. One position he held demonstrates
the character of this individual, that was serving as Hooksett Police Commissioner for six years, during a time
of long meetings, great scrutiny, and much turbulence.

In summary, Henry Roy is the ultimate volunteer professional, who has worked tirelessly for the past 50 years
contributing to his profession and community. He exemplifies both the theme of Lions International of, “We
Serve”, and the former Hooksett Men’s Club, “Dedicated to Making Hooksett a better place to live”.

Nominee’s Organization current and past membership and leadership positions

e Treasurer of Hooksett School District for 20 years
e Former Treasurer of Hooksett Chamber of Commerce
e Hooksett Budget Committee for 3 years

e Hooksett Town Council for 6 years

e Hooksett Police Commission for 6 years

e Hooksett Trustee of the Trust Funds 3 years

¢ Kiwanis Club of Hooksett 4 years (2013-current)

e Berry Hill Condo Association 2 years (2015-current)
e His volunteer positions also include service on the

e Board of Directors of St. Mary’s Bank for 15 years, Northeast Delta Dental 6 years, director of the New
England Musculoskeletal Institute, the New England Dental administrators, and Finance Committee at
St. Hedwig Church.



In Memoriam

Senator Scott McGilvray, 51, grew up in Concord, but lived in Hooksett
for many years as a dedicated father, husband, son, and friend. For over
twenty years, Scott passionately taught Social Studies at Manchester
Memorial High School, where he also served as an inspirational football
coach. Over the course of his career, Scott also became a leader in the
state’s educational community by serving as President of the Manchester
Educator’s Association (MEA) and President of the New Hampshire
branch of the National Educator’s Association (NEA-NH). Most recently,
Scott had decided to pursue public service through elected office, and
successfully won a seat in the New Hampshire State Senate for District 16.

Our respect and gratitude goes out to all the Residents of Hooksett who passed
away this year who lived their lives in such a way as to make Hooksett a better
Community.
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Town Warrant

To the inhabitants of the Town of Hooksett, New Hampshire, in the county of Merrimack in said state, qualified
to vote in Town affairs.

You are hereby notified to meet at David R. Cawley Middle School on Saturday, February 4, 2017 at 9:00
am for the first session of the Town Meeting to discuss and amend, as required, warrant articles 3 through 19.

The final ballot vote for warrant articles will take place at David R. Cawley Middle School on Tuesday,
March 14,2017. The polls will be open from 6 am until 7 pm.

Article 1
To choose all necessary Town officers for the year ensuing.

Article 2
Zoning Amendments

Amendment No. 1
Are you in favor of the adoption of Amendment No. 1, as proposed by the Hooksett Planning Board, for the

Hooksett Zoning Ordinance to remove the language of Article 27, Accessory Apartments, and replace it with a
new Article 27, Accessory Dwelling Units?

The purpose of this amendment is to comply with NH RSA Chapter 674:71 to :73, Accessory Dwelling Units,
by permitting the creation of secondary dwelling residences as an accessory use to existing single-family
detached dwellings while maintaining the visual and functional character of single-family residential
neighborhoods.

Amendment No. 2

Are you in favor of the adoption of Amendment No. 2, as proposed by the Hooksett Planning Board, for the
Hooksett Zoning Ordinance to amend Article 22, Definitions, by adding a new definition for Accessory
Dwelling Units: A residential living unit that is within or attached to a single-family dwelling, and that
provides independent living facilities for one or more persons, including provisions for sleeping, eating,
cooking, and sanitation on the same parcel of land as the principal dwelling unit it accompanies?

The purpose of this amendment is to comply with NH RSA Chapter 674:71, Definitions, which defines an
Accessory Dwelling Unit.

Amendment No. 3

Are you in favor of Amendment No. 3, as proposed by the Hooksett Planning Board, for the Hooksett Zoning Ordinance
to amend the following Articles: To rezone Map 6, Lot 15, Lots 22-1 through 22-70, 22-72 through 22- 73, 22-77 from
Mixed Use District 5 (MUDS) to Medium Density Residential (MDR); to rezone Map 6, Lots 22-71, 22-75 and 22-76
from Mixed Use District 5 (MUDS) to High Density Residential (HDR); to rezone Map 19, Lot 4-1 from Mixed Use
District 5 (MUDS) to Commercial (COM); to rezone Map 25, Lot 80-3 from Mixed Use District 5 (MUDS) to
Performance Zone (PZ); and to rezone Map 24, Lots 32, 36-3 and 36-6 from Mixed Use District 5 (MUDS) to Industrial
(IND).

The purpose of this amendment is to rezone the lots listed above, which were previously developed under the
Mixed Use District 5 (MUD?5) to the zoning districts that conform to their present use.



Article 3

Shall the town raise and appropriate as an operating budget, not including appropriations by special warrant
articles, the amounts set forth on the budget posted with the warrant, for the purposes set forth therein, and other
appropriations voted separately totaling $18,136,705.00. Should this article be defeated, the operating budget
shall be $18,240,669.00, which is the same as last year, with certain adjustments required by previous action of
the Town meeting, or by law or the Town Council may hold one special meeting, to take up the issue of a
revised operating budget only. Estimated tax rate impact $6.67. Not recommended by Town Council (0-8),
Recommended by Budget Committee (10-0).

Town of Hooksett, New Hampshire
FY 2017-18 Town Operating Budget

Appropriation by Department

FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18
FY 2015-16 Amended Budget Com Dollar %

Departments Actuals Budget Recomm. Change Change

*Administration $ 1,058,766 $ 1,061,123 $ 1,305,231 $ 244,108 23.00%
Assessing 148,760 176,694 170,306 (6,388) -3.62%
Family Senices 117,550 193,823 193,587 (236) -0.12%
Finance 226,997 224,920 232,286 7,366 3.27%
*Fire-Rescue 3,623,096 3,679,850 3,758,092 78,242 2.13%
*Police 3,878,253 4,392,372 4,461,940 69,568 1.58%
* Public Works 4,088,421 4,542,777 4,824,913 282,136 6.21%
Tax Collector 242,476 271,855 260,540 (11,315) -4.16%
Town Clerk & Elections 28,354 42,773 29,048 (13,725) -32.09%
Budget Committee 7,854 8,305 7,778 (527) -6.35%
Capital Leases 88,056 88,057 67,474 (20,583) -23.37%
Cemetery Commission 838 1,147 841 (306) -26.68%
Conservation Commission 1,250 1,277 1,277 0 0.00%
Debt TAN interest 0 1 1 0 0.00%
Library 697,927 712,733 753,050 40,317 5.66%
Wastewater 1,931,988 2,002,935 2,070,341 67,406 3.37%
Grand Total $ 16,140,587 $ 17,400,642 $ 18,136,705 $ 736,063 4.23%

Appropriation by Expense Category
FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18
FY 2015-16 Amended Budget Com Dollar %

Expense Category Actuals Budget Recomm. Change Change

Personal Senices $ 10,544,992 $ 11,773,410 $ 12,198,545 $ 425,135 3.61%
General Operations 1,407,003 1,439,931 1,449,296 9,365 0.65%
Maintenance (Equipment, Buildings & Roads) 1,501,941 1,371,107 1,662,674 291,567 21.27%
New Equipment & Capital Leases 294,123 257,184 223,281 (33,903) -13.18%
Tipping Fees 400,037 431,075 432,568 1,493 0.35%
Welfare Assistance 60,503 125,000 100,000 (25,000) -20.00%
Wastewater 1,931,988 2,002,935 2,070,341 67,406 3.37%
Grand Total $ 16,140,587 $ 17,400,642 $ 18,136,705 $ 736,063 4.23%

* Grants, donations and encumbrances have been removed from FY 2016-17 Budget for budgeting purposes.

Article 4

To see if the town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $200,000.00 to be added to the Public Works’
Vehicles Capital Reserve Fund previously established. Estimated tax rate impact is $0.13.

Town Council (7-0), Recommended by Budget Committee (8-2).
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Article 5
To see if the town will vote to approve the cost items included in the collective bargaining agreement reached
between the Hooksett Town Council and the Hooksett Permanent Firefighters Association Local 3264, IAFF
which calls for the following increases in salaries and benefits at the current staffing level:

Estimated increase over prior year

Fiscal Year Salaries Benefits Estimated Increase
2017-18 $151,550.00 $22.442.00 $173,992.00
2018-19 $ 97,960.00 $32,442.00 $130,402.00

and further to raise and appropriate the sum of $173,992.00 for the current fiscal year; of this amount
$15,578.00 is authorized to be withdrawn from the Ambulance Revenue Fund, and the balance of $158,414.00
to be raised from general taxation. Such sum represents the additional costs attributable to the increase in
salaries and benefits required by the new agreement over those that would be paid at current staffing levels.
Estimated tax rate impact is $0.10. Recommended by Town Council (7-0), Recommended by Budget
Committee (8-2).

Article 6
To see if the town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $142,819.00 for an increase in salaries and
benefits for non-union full-time and part-time Town personnel.

Fiscal Year Salaries Benefits Total

2017-18 $118,173.00 $24,646.00 $142,819.00
Estimated tax impact is $0.09. Recommended by Town Council (7-0), Recommended by Budget Committee
(8-2).

Article 7
To see if the town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $120,000.00 to be added to the previously
established Capital Reserve Funds and to apportion the sum among several funds as listed below:

Fire Apparatus $ 50,000.00
Air Packs & Bottles 20,000.00
Emergency Radio Communications 50,000.00

Total $120,000.00

Estimated tax rate impact is $0.08. Recommended by Town Council (6-1), Recommended by Budget
Committee (8-2).

Avrticle 8

To see if the town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $100,000.00 for the Visionary Plan for Sewer
and/or Other Infrastructure Improvements on the west side of Hooksett. The sum to come from fund balance
and no amount to be raised from taxation. Recommended by Town Council (6-2), Recommended by Budget
Committee (8-2).

Article 9
To see if the town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $90,000.00 to be added to previously established
Capital Reserve Funds and to apportion the sum among several funds as listed below:

Parks & Recreation Facilities Development $ 15,000.00
Town Building Maintenance 75.000.00
Total $90,000.00

11



Estimated tax rate impact is $0.06. Recommended by Town Council (7-0), Recommended by Budget
Committee (8-2).
Article 10
To see if the town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $78,269.00 for the salary and benefits to hire a
full-time recreation director.

Fiscal Year Salary Benefits Estimated Increase

2017-18 $47,476.00 $30,793.00 $78,269.00
Estimated tax rate impact is $0.05. Recommended by Town Council (4-3), Not recommended by Budget
Committee (3-7).

Article 11
To see if the town will vote to approve the cost items included in the collective bargaining agreement reached
between the Hooksett Town Council and the Hooksett Police Union Local 46, NEPBA which calls for the
following increases in salaries and benefits at the current staffing level:

Estimated increase over prior year

Fiscal Year Salaries Benefits Estimated Increase
2017-18 $ 59,043.00 $14,016.00 $ 73,059.00
2018-19 $ 94,172.00 $20,977.00 $115,149.00
2019-20 $116,915.00 $18,544.00 $135,459.00

and further to raise and appropriate the sum of $73,059.00 for the current fiscal year, such sum represents the
additional costs attributable to the increase in salaries and benefits required by the new agreement over those
that would be paid at current staffing levels. Estimated tax rate impact is $0.05. Recommended by Town
Council (8-0), Recommended by Budget Committee (8-2).

Article 12

To see if the town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $50,000.00 to be added to the Drainage
Upgrades Capital Reserve Fund previously established. Estimated tax rate impact is $0.03. Recommended by
Town Council (7-0), Recommended by Budget Committee (6-4)

Article 13

To see if the town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $50,000.00 to purchase a Fire Command vehicle
for the Fire-Rescue Department. Estimated tax rate impact is $0.03. Recommended by Town Council (7-0),
Recommended by Budget Committee (8-2).

Article 14

To see if the town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $50,000.00 for the purpose of refurbishing
Hooksett Fire Engine 5, a 2006 E-1 Typhoon Pumper. Estimated tax rate impact is $0.03. Recommended by
Town Council (7-0), Recommended by Budget Committee (10-0).

Article 15

To see if the town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $30,000.00 to be added to the Automated
Collection Equipment Capital Reserve Fund previously established. Estimated tax rate impact is $0.02.
Recommended by Town Council (6-1), Recommended by Budget Committee (9-1).

Article 16

To see if the town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $30,000.00 to be added to the Revaluation
Capital Reserve Fund previously established. Estimated tax rate impact is $0.02. Recommended by Town
Council (7-0), Recommended by Budget Committee (9-1).
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Article 17

To see if the town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $10,000.00 to be added to the Master Plan
Capital Reserve Fund previously established. Estimated tax rate impact is $0.01. Recommended by Town
Council (7-0), Recommended by Budget Committee (7-3).

Article 18

To see if the town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $10,000.00 to be added to the Conservation
Land Improvements Capital Reserve Fund previously established. Estimated tax rate impact is $0.01.
Recommended by Town Council (7-0), Recommended by Budget Committee (7-3).

Avrticle 19

To see if the town will vote to discontinue the Feasibility Study for Southern Leg of Parkway Capital Reserve
Funds created in 2005. Said funds, with accumulated interest to date of withdrawal, are to be transferred to the
town's general fund.

Given under our hands and seal,
On behalf of the entire Hooksett Town Council:

it rrren A S BB gt /)MM Mﬂ%/

[

~Fames A. Sullivan, Chainman Marc Miville, Secretary

“James A. Sullivan, Chairman Marc Miville, Secretary

A True Copy of the Warrant — Attest:

S

< S C I
P - P - & i s E65,
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New Hampshire 2017
Department of

5 Revenie Administration MS-737

lm

udaet
A
e Da

Form Du

of the Town 0

et of the Town of Hooksett
D

1 nv

ate: 20 Days after the Town Meeting

THIS BUDGET SHALL BE POSTED WITH THE WARRANT
Ths form was posted with the warant on: |~} ~ 201

For assistance please contact the NH DRA Municipal and Property Division
P (603) 230-5090  F: (603) 230-5947  htto:wwow revenue.nh. govimun-propl
BUDGET COMMITTEE CERTIFICATION

Under penaltes of perury, | declarethet | have examined the information contained i tis form and tothe best of my belif itis true, corect
and complete.

Budget Committee Members

Printed Name /! Slgna Hrg

Tosed | M

MARe Mville

{leago Loy

('wwn Mecrele s

I 1(%(”7 ﬁ‘fﬁ‘k/ﬁ

7
X /]
St fieren %Z% o,
RIH4D T.RosS 0 )

(S b, i)

This form must be signe, scanned, and uploaded to the Municipal Tax Rate Seting Porta
https:/lwww.proptax.org/

MS-737: Hooksett 2017
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Appropriations

Budget Budget

Selectmen’s Selectmen's Committee's Committee's

Appropriations Actual Appropriations  Appropriations  Appropriations  Appropriations
Account Warrant PriorYearas  ExpendituresPrior ~ EnsuingFY  EnsuingFY(Not  EnsuingFY  Ensuing FY (Not
Code Description Article#  Approved by DRA Year (Recommended)  Recommended)  (Recommended) ~ Recommended)
General Govemment b o o , G
0000-0000 | Collective Bargaining $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
41304139 |Executive 03 §375,011 $0 $390,064 §224.335 $606,899 §7,500
41404149 | Fection, Regitraton, and Vit Statistics ;3 W 0 §29,48 0 §29,048 00
41504151 |Financial Administration 03 $636,584 $0 $637,860 $0 $619,238 §18,622
415 Revaluation of Praperty 03 $176,6% $0 $179,131 $1,750 $170,306 $10,575
4153 Legal Expense 03 $95,000 $0 $90,000 $0 $90,000 $0
41554159 | Personnel Administration 03 $189,910 $0 $194,000 $0 $194,000 $0
4191-4193  |Planning and Zoning 03 $409,420 $0 $400,208 $0 $395,801 $4,467
4194 General Government Buildings 03 $490,007 $0 $502,630 $0 $492,630 $10,000
4195 Cemeteries 03 2,147 $0 $2,841 $0 $2,841 $0
419 Insurance 03 $241,000 $0 $265,000 $0 $265,000 $0
4197 Advertising and Regional Association 03 $13,000 $0 $14,000 $0 $14,000 $0
4199 Other General Government 03 $1 $0 $1 $0 $1 $0
PublicSafety L e T
9104214 |Police 03 §4392,372 $0 $4.462,440 $0 §4461,940 $500
4154219 | Ambulance $0 %0 $0 $0 $0 $0
42049  |Fire 03 $3,727.00 90 $3,781,060 $500 $3,781,060 $500
440-4249  |Building Inspection 03 $105,152 $0 $100,635 40 $98,022 $2,613
4290-4298 | Emergency Management 03 §4.251 $0 $8,050 %0 $8,050 $0
4299 Other (Including Communications) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Aiport/Aviation Center e e _i e |
4014309 | Airport Operatons \ \ $0] $o\ $0| $o\ 0
HighwaysandStreets il el e B ; L
@11 Administration 03 $206,355 $0 $216,987 $0 $216,987 $0
412 Highways and Streets 03 $1,766,716 $0 $1,746,974 $0 $1,746,974 $0
413 Bridges 03 §1 $0 §1 $0 §1 $0
4316 Street Lighting ] $62,300 $0 $62,000 $0 $62,000 $0
#19 Other 03 $189,648 $0 $192,269 $0 $192,269 $0
MS-737: Hooksett 2017 20f11
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Budget Budget
: Selectmen's  Selectmen's Committee's Committee's
Appropriations Actual ‘Appropriations  Appropriations  Appropriations - Apprapriations
Account - Warrant  PriorYearas  ExpendituresPrior  EnsuingFY ~ EnsuingFY(Not  EnsuingFY  EnsuingFY (Not
Code Description Article #  Approved by DRA Year (Recommended) ~ Recommended)  (Recommended)  Recommended)
a1 Administration $143,210 {0 $144,665 $0 $144,665 §0
42 Solid Waste Collection 03 $272,3M §0 $301,891 $0 $301,801 §0
4324 Solid Waste Disposal 03 §711,62 {0 $651,252 $0 $651,52 §0
4325 Solid Waste Cleanup $0 40 40 )] $0 §0
43064329 |Sewage Collection, Disposal and Other $0 40 $0 §
Water Distrbution and Treatment e B
4331 Administration $0 40 40
a7 Water Services $0 $0 10
43354339 | Water Treatment, Conservation and Other $0 ) 90 40
Becic S R Al
43514352 | Administration and Generation §0 40 §0 40
4353 Purchase Costs $0 )] $0 40
4354 Electric Equipment Maintenance $0 )] 50 $0
4359 (ther Electric Costs $0 $0 §0

3

Health

AT

Administration

411 03 §2,000 ) $2,000 § £2,000 )
4414 Pest Control $0 40 $0 $0 40 )
44154419 | Health Agencies, Hospitals, and Other
44414442 | Administration and Direct Assistance 03 §172420 §0 $147,184 $0 $147,184 §0
4444 Intergovernmental Wefiare Payments 03 $21,403 80 §46,403 $0 $46,403 $0
445-4449  \Vendor Payments and Other $0 80 §0 $0 $0 $0
Cutre and Rerton e LRl L
45204529 | Parks and Recreation 03 $579,489 80 §595,628 $0 §554,878 440,750
45504559 {Library 3 §712.733 40 §747,026 $6,024 §753,050 $0
4583 Patriatic Purposes 03 §2.945 90 §2.945 $0 §2,945 §0
4589 Other Culture and Recreation 03 $12.250 §0 §15,250 §0 §13.250 $2,000
46114612 | Administration and Purchasing of Natural 03 §1,277 90 §1.217 $0 §1,277

Resources
4619 Other Conservation 40 40 $0 $0 40 §0
MS-737. Hooksett 2017 Jof 11
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Budget Budget
Selectmen's Selectmen’s Committee's Committee's
Appropriations Actual  Appropriations  Appropriations  Appropriations  Appropriations
Account Warrant  PriorYearas  ExpendituresPrior  EnsuingFY  EnsuingFY(Not  EnsuingFY  EnsuingFY (Not
Code ~ Description Article #  Approved by DRA Year (Recommended)  Recommended)  (Recommended) ~ Recommended)
46314632 | Redevelopment and Housing $0 $0 $0 ] §0 $0
4651-4659 | Economic Development 03 $500 4500 %0 $500 $0
Debiséfvioe"'_Lfii,:.:'-"" = TR — . R .
41 Long Term Bonds and Notes - Principal §0 §0 80
a1 Long Term Bonds and Notes - Inferest $0 $0 50 50
4723 Tax Anticipation Notes - Interest 03 5l $0 §1 80
47904799 | Other Debt Service §0 $0 §0 §0
CplalOuty a i
4901 Land 03 §1 $0 $1 $0
4902 Machinery, Vehicles, and Equipment $0 $0 $0 $0
4903 Buildings 50 40 50 50
4909 Improvements Other than Buildings $0 80 $0
Operating Transfers Ot~ i ieE T _
4912 To Special Revenue Fund $25,000 $0 $0 30 $0 50
4913 To Capital Projects Fund $0 $0 $0 §0 $0 $0
49144 To Proprietary Fund - Airport $0 $0 40 §0 $0 $0
49148 To Proprietary Fund - Electric $0 $0 $0 $0 50 80
4914 To Proprietary Fund - Sewer 03 $2,002935 40 $2,075,593 $0 $2,070,341 §5,252
4914w To Proprietary Fund - Water $0 50 $0 $0 $0 §0
4918 To Non-Expendable Trust Funds $0 40 ) $0 40 §0
4919 To Agency Funds 40 $0 80 $0 $0 80
Total Proposed Appropriations $17,785,642 $0)  $18,007,175 $232,609|  $18,136,705 $103,079
MS-737: Hooksett 2017 4of 11
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Special Warrant Articles

Budget Budget
Appropriations Selectmen's  Selectmen's  Committee's ~ Committee's
Prior Year as Actual Appropriations  Appropriations  Appropriations  Appropriations
Account Warrant  Approved by  Expenditures  EnsuingFY  Ensuing FY (Not  Ensuing FY  Ensuing FY (Not
Code Purpose of Appropriation Article # DRA Prior Year  (Recommended) Recommended) (Recommended) Recommended)
4916 To Expendable Trust Fund 50 $0 $0 40 $0 $0
4917 To Health Maintenance Trust Funds 30 50 80 $0 $0 ]
4915 To Capital Reserve Fund J 04 $200,000 $200,000 $200,000| 40 $200,000 $0
| Purpose: CR Funding - PW's Vehicles
95 |ToCapial Resere | | v ] §70,00) oo s ;o\ $120000) K
Purpose: CR Funding - Fire & Police
815 [ToCaptl Resee g [ w ] {500 poor| o] ) 55000 40
Purpose: CR Funding - DPW
o1 [To Captal Resenve Fnd T T em]  mw]  som] 0 s K
Purpose: CR Funding - Drainage Upgrade
815 |ToCapial ReseneFurd | s [ o ] g 9 s 4
Purpose: (R Funding - Automated Collection ‘
w15 [ToCapial Resene Fnd | 6 | $30,00) §30,00) 000 40 $30,000 §0)
Purpose: CR Funding - Revaluation !
915 |ToCapital Reserve Fund | v | $10000 $1000) $100) 40 §10,00 )
Purpose: CR Funding - Master Plan
915 |ToCapil Resere Fund [ s [ som $10000] N 10000 0
Purpose: CR Funding - Conservation Land Improvment
Special Articles Recommended | | ss0000  sasooo0] a0 0| 540000 $0
Individual Warrant Articles
Budget Budget
Selectmen's Selectmen's Committee's Committee's
Appropriations Actual Appropriations  Appropriations  Appropriations  Appropriations
Account Warrant  PriorYearas  ExpendituresPrior  EnsuingFY  Ensuing FY(Not  EnsuingFY  Ensuing FY (Not
Code Purpose of Appropriation Article#  Approved by DRA Year (Recommended) ~ Recommended)  (Recommended)  Recommended)
4304135 |preaive | 6 | {0 10 £3,762 | $3,761 40
Purpose: Non-Union raises
41404149 | lecton, Regsraton, and Vital Staiscs | % ] s',b} il §119 o 119 ' {0{
Purpose: Non-Union raises ‘
SISt [l nirain [ T 4 W e 0 f5.4 0
Purpose: Non-Union raises
MS-737: Hooksett 2017 5of 11
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1 Budget Budget
Selectmen's Selectmen's Committee's Committee's
Appropriations Actual Appropriations  Appropriations  Appropriations  Appropriations
Account Warrant PriorYearas  Expenditures Prior  Ensuing FY Ensuing FY (Not Ensuing FY  Ensuing FY (Not
Code Purpose of Appropriation Article#  Approved by DRA Year (Recommended) ~ Recommended)  (Recommended) Recommended)
415 Revaluation of Propety | ® | 1 i 3317 i £3.17 §0
Purpose: Non-Union raises
41554159 |Personnel Administration BE | 1) $0[ 86,618 $0[ g6t )
Purpose: Firefighters Union
41554159 |Personnel Adrminitraion | o \ w‘ 5 $1,190\ 40 $1,190] )
Purpose: Police union
41914193 |Planning and Zoning | ® \ ) $0‘ 48350 e;o\ 45,350 )
Purpose: Non-Union raises
41914193 |Plenning and Zoning | B ] ) $0‘ $100,00) so] 100,000 0
Purpose: Visionary Plan for Sewer and/or Other Infrastuctur
419 |General Govement Buldings | %6 | ) ) 2816 " f516) 0
Purpose: Non-Union raises
0104214 |police | \ ) so[ 44195 $o] $41,9% §
Purpase: Non-Union raises
Q104214 |Polce I ) $0[ $71,959\ $0] $71,869| )
Purpase: Police union ‘
o408 |Fie BE 9| ) §151,7% 9 §151,9% 40
Purpose: Firefighters Union
20409 |Fire | % | ) 1 §14,7) 0 $14,79 )
Purpose: Non-Union raises
00408 |Fre N ) ) $so,oeo\ 40 850000 )
Purpose: Fire Command Vehicle
2049 |Fre N 0 40 S50 40 430,00 0
Purpose: Fire Engine 5 Refurbishing
4404149 | Bulding Inspecton | % ] {0 40 2,28 4 .12 0
Purpase: Non-Union raises
g wnissaton | %6 ] 0 4 3420 10 4201 0
Purpose: Non-Union raises
a0 Highways and Streets % | i 4 §11,75 4 §11,756 0
Purpose: Non-Union raises
319 Other o | {0 4 3303 31 3,303 0
Purpose: Non-Union raises
MS-737: Hooksett 2017 6 of 11
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Budget  Budget
Selectmen's Selectmen's Committee's  Commitiee's

_ Mopropratons  Actal  Appropiatons  proprations Apprpeiatons  Appropriaons
Account Warrant  PriorYearas  ExpendituresPrior  EnsuingFY  fnsuingFY(Not  EnsuingFY  Ensuing FY (Not
Code Purpose of Appropriation Article #  Approved by DRA Year (Recommended)  Recommended)  (Recommended)  Recommended)

a1 wninstation | ® ] 40 o D 0
Purpose: Non-Union raises

a3 [SoidWase olecion |6 ] 40 o s 0 o 4
Purpose: Non-Union raises

a4 [SoidWaste Disosal [ o | 9| 4| 0| %) 80| 0
Purpose: Non-Union raises

4414442 | Adniisaion and Divect Assistrce [ o | 9| o ) $1.% 0
Purpose: Non-Union raises

45204529 | Patsand Rezeaon |6 ] | o s 0 s 9
Purpose: Non-Union raises

45204529 | Pars and Reeation [ 0 ] | o )| ) 0w
Purpose: Recreation Director

45504559 |Ubrry [ o | 8| o s 0 s %
Purpose: Non-Union raises

912 [ToSpedal Revnve Fund [ o ] | o sl W s %
Purpose: Firefighters Union

Individual Artices Recommended | I | 0] so68139] S0 sseop0] 18269

MS-737: Hooksett 2017 Tof 11
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Revenues

Account Warrant Budget Committee's Estimated
Code Purpose of Appropriation Artide#  Actual Revenues Prior Year  Selectmen's Estimated Revenues Revenues

3120 Land Use Change Tax - General Fund 80 $0 | ‘” $0
3180 Resident Tax §0 $0 $0
3185 Yield Tex 03 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000
3186 Payment in Lieu of Taxes $0 10 $0
W |BoationTa B §7,500 7,50 7,50
3189 Other Taxes $0 10 40
3190 Interest and Penialties on Delinquent Taxes 03 $320,000 $320,000 $320,000
9991 i In-venton/ Penalties o $0 B $0 5_0
Licenses,'Permits,and Fees _ il o
210 EBusiness; Licenses and Permits 03 41 §1 $1
20 Motor Vehicle Permit Fees 03 $3,342,000 §3,442,000 §3,442,000
330 Building Permits 03 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000
3290 Other Licenses, Permits, and Fees 03 §21,200 ' §19,000 §19,000
B11-3319 | From Federal Government 10 40 §0
seswasfili b gl R
3351 Shared Revenues §0 $0 80
3352 Meals and Rooms Tax Distribution 03 §748,391 §748.391 §748,391
B3 |Highway Bock Gt 03 300435 0 $3004%
B4 WaterPolion Gt 0 0 4
3355 B Housing and Community Development o 80 50 80
3356 State and Federa[_Fo_rest Land Reimbursement 03 $500 4500 $5[ﬁ
3357 Flood Control Reimbursement $0 90 $0
389 |0t (Idudng Raroad Ta) 3 049 0.4 04
379 From Other Goverﬁments l $0 $0 §0
Charges for Senvices ¢ B ER P i R e W e e
34013406 | Income from Departments 03 $150,878 $119,871 $119,871
3409 Qther Charges 50 80 80
MiscelanesusRevenves £7,1 LED R T e R L R
3501 Sale of Municipal Property 03 $26,500 $1,500 §1,500
0 |eston Inv_ééfn%ents 0 o o owo] 4000
MS-737: Hooksett 2017 8 of 11
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Account Warrant Budget Committee's Estimated
Code Purpose of Appropriation Article#  Actual Revenues PriorYear  Selectmen's Estimated Revenues Revenues

3033509 |Other | 03 \ $282,078[ §296,028 $295,008
Interfund Operating Transfersln b g Sy Wi
11 From Special Revenue Funds 05 $60,000 $15,578 $15,578
913 From Capital Projects Funds 10 $0 $0
39144 From Enterprise Funds: Airport (Offset) 10 40 $0
914E From Enterprise Funds: Flectric (Offset) 10 §0 40
3945 |From Enterprse Funds: Sewer (Offset) 03 2,002,935 $2,075,5%3 §2,0034
3914w From Enterprise Funds: Water (Offset) 40 §0 §0
15 From Capital Reserve Funds 40 f0 §0
3916 From Trust and Fiduciary Funds 03 450,000 45,000 $5,000
17 From Conservation Funds §0
Other Financing Sources e eh e G :
3934 Proceeds from Long Term Bonds and Notes 30 {0 $0
9998 Amount Voted from Fund Balance 08 §0 $100,000 $100,000
9999 Fund Balance to Reduce Taxes $500,000 40 §0
Total Estimated Revenues and Credits §7,964,850 $7,603,829 §7,598,577
MS-737: Hooksett 2017 9of 11
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Budget Summary

Item Selectmen's Recommended Budget Committee's
Prior Year Adopted Budget Budget Recommended Budget
Operating Budget Appropriations Recommended §17,765,642 $18,007,175 $18,136,705
Special Warrant Articles Recommended $490,000 $540,000 $540,000
Individual Warrant Arices Recommended §0 $668,139 $589,870
TOTAL Appropriations Recommended $18,275,642 $19,215,314 $19,266,575
Less: Amount of Estimated Revenues & Credits $7,919,850 $7,603,829 §7,598,577
Estimated Amount of Taxes to be Raised ) $10,355_,792 §11,611,485 $11,667,998
MS-737: Hooksett 2017 100f 11

38



Budget Committee Supplemental Schedule _

1, Total Recommended by Budget Committee $19,266,575
Less Exclusions:
2. Principal: Long-Term Bonds & Notes 4711 $0 §0
3. Interest: Long-Term Bonds & Notes a1 $0 $0
4. Capital outlays funded from Long-Term Bonds & Notes $0
S, Mandatory Assessments $0
6. Total Exclusions (Sum of Lines 2 through 5 above) $0
7. Amount Recommended, Less Exclusions (Line 1 less Line 6) $19,266,575
8. 10% of Amount Recommended, Less Exclusions (Line 7x 10%) $1,926,658
Collective Bargaining Cost Items:
9, Recommended Cost Items (Prior to Meeting) $252,261
10. Voted Cost Items (Voted at Meeting) §0
11, Amount voted over recommended amount (Difference of Lines 9 and 10) $0

Mandatory Water & Waste Treatment Facilities (RSA 32:21):

12. Amount Recommended (Prior to Meeting) §0
13, Amount Voted (Voted at Meeting) §0
14. Amount voted over recommended amount (Difference of Lines 12 and 13) $0
15. Bond Override (RSA 32:18-a), Amount Voted $0
Maximum Allowable Appropriations Voted At Meeting:
(Line 1+ Line 8+ Line 11 + Lie 15) 1,155
MS-737: Hooksett 2017 110f 11
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New Hampshire 2017
Department of Default Budget

Revenue Administration

Hooksett

RSA 40:13, IX (b) "Default budget" as used in this subdivision means the amount of the same appropriations as
contained in the operating budget authorized for the previous year, reduced and increased, as the case may be,
by debt service, contracts, and other obligations previously incurred or mandated by law, and reduced by one-
time expenditures contained in the operating budget. For the purposes of this paragraph, one-time expenditures
shall be appropriations not likely to recur in the succeeding budget, as determined by the governing body,
unless the provisions of RSA 40:14-b are adopted, of the local political subdivision.

=0~
This form was posted with the warrant on: [=26 ~40/7

For Assistance Please Contact:
NH DRA Municipal and Property Division
Phone: (603) 230-5090
Fax: (603) 230-5947
http://www.revenue.nh.gov/mun-pro

GOVERNING BODY CERTIFICATION
Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I have examined the information contained in this form and to the best
of my belief it is true, correct and complete.

St Led st aGoverning Body,Cerifications k. i R
Printed Name Position Signature
- /nmm/’ A Sl g S haal 14,,“,(/’/4 &l{,u.m.—/

MaRke Yﬂ:wlla TC DISTRICT %4 ‘\ Mm@/é,-:pé&
Voha) Lsas s Tc D+ %

/%08 e =T /*’%/;ig
TimeTHY BTSN DisT |

DANO Ro 55 Vet AA
Tord R M\ hmpeRnir | Disv- S mw/@\

This form must be s:gned scanned and uploaded to the Mumcnpal Tax Rate Setting Portal:
https://www.proptax.org/

|
.7 -

| I— |

Default Budget: Hooksett 2017 lof 5
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Department of Default Budget

Revenue Administration

]
New Hampshire i 2017

urpose of Appropriation
General Government
0000-0000 Collective Bargaining $0 $0 $0 $0
4130-4139 Executive $375,011 $11,353 $0 $386,364
4140-4149 Election, Registration, and Vital Statistics $42,773 ($318) ($13,034) $29,421
4150-4151 Financial Administration $636,584 $19,220 $0 $655,804
4152 Revaluation of Property $176,694 $4,604 $0 $181,298
4153 Legal Expense 495,000 $0 $0 $95,000
4155-4159 Personnel Administration $189,910 $0 $0 $189,910
4191-4193 Planning and Zoning $409,420 $24,720 $0 $434,140
4194 General Government Buildings $490,007 $5,901 $0 $495,908
4195 Cemeteries $2,147 $0 $0 $2,147
4196 Insurance $241,000 $19,491 $0 $260,491
4197 Advertising and Regional Association $13,000 40 $0 $13,000
4199 Other General Government $1 $0 $0 $1
Public Safety
4210-4214 Police $4,198,079 $366,979 (49,800) 44,555,258
4215-4219 Ambulance $0 $0 $0 $0
4220-4229 Fire $3,727,200 $178,252 (4$9,000) $3,896,452
4240-4249 Building Inspection $105,152 ($1,158) $0 $103,994
4290-4298 Emergency Management $4,251 $0 $0 $4,251
4299 Other (Including Communications) $0 $0 $0 $0
Airport/Aviation Center
4301-4309  [Airport Operations $0| 50] $0 $0
Highways and Streets
4311 Administration $206,355 $9,721 $0 $216,076
4312 Highways and Streets $1,466,716 $303,983 $0 $1,770,699
4313 Bridges $1 $0 $0 $1
4316 Street Lighting $62,300 $0 $0 $62,300
4319 Other $189,648 $20,699 $0 $210,347
Sanitation
4321 Administration $143,210 $5,031 %0 $148,241
4323 Solid Waste Collection $272,304 $29,697 $0 $302,001
4324 Solid Waste Disposal $651,632 $5,265 $0 $656,897
4325 Solid Waste Cleanup 30 $0 $0 $0
4326-4329 Sewage Collection, Disposal and Other $0 $0 $0 $0
Water Distribution and Treatment
4331 Administration $0 $0 $0 $0
4332 Water Services $0 $0 $0 $0
4335-4339 Water Treatment, Conservation and Other $0 $0 $0 $0
Electric
4351-4352  |Administration and Generation 50| $0] $0 $0
Default Budget: Hooksett 2017 20f5
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2017

New Hampshire
Department of Default Budget
Revenue Administration
~ Account  of Appropriation g Bu y
4353 Purchase Costs $0 $0 $0 $0
4354 Electric Equipment Maintenance $0 $0 $0 $0
4359 Other Electric Costs $0 $0 $0 $0
Health ;
4411 Administration $2,000 $0 $0 $2,000
4414 Pest Control $0 $0 $0 $0
4415-4419 Health Agencies, Hospitals, and Other $0 $0 $0 $0
Welfare
4441-4442 Administration and Direct Assistance $172,420 ($25,000) $0 $147,420
4444 Intergovernmental Welfare Payments $21,403 $0 $0 $21,403
4445-4449 Vendor Payments and Other $0 $0 $0 $0
Culture and Recreation
4520-4529 Parks and Recreation $579,489 $5,896 $0 $585,385
4550-4559 Library $712,733 $23,713 $0 $736,446
4583 Patriotic Purposes $2,945 $0 $0 $2,945
4589 Other Culture and Recreation $12,250 $0 $0 $12,250
Conservation and Development
4611-4612 Administration and Purchasing of Natural $1,277 $0 $0 $1,277
Resources
4619 Other Conservation $0 $0 $0 $0
4631-4632 Redevelopment and Housing $0 $0 $0 $0
4651-4659 Economic Development $500 $0 $0 $500
Debt Service
4711 Long Term Bonds and Notes - Principal $0 $0 $0 $0
4721 Long Term Bonds and Notes - Interest $0 $0 $0 $0
4723 Tax Anticipation Notes - Interest $1 $0 %0 $1
4790-4799 Other Debt Service $0 $0 $0 $0
Capital Outlay
4901 Land $1 $0 $0 $1
4902 Machinery, Vehicles, and Equipment $0 $0 $0 $0
4903 Buildings $0 $0 $0 $0
4909 Improvements Other than Buildings $0 $0 $0 $0
Operating Transfers Out
4912 To Special Revenue Fund $0 $0 $0 $0
4913 To Capital Projects Fund $0 $0 $0 $0
4914A To Proprietary Fund - Airport $0 $0 $0 $0
4914E To Proprietary Fund - Electric $0 $0 $0 $0
4914S To Proprietary Fund - Sewer $2,002,935 $58,105 $0 $2,061,040
4914W To Proprietary Fund - Water $0 $0 $0 $0
4915 To Capital Reserve Fund $0 $0 $0 $0
4916 To Expendable Trusts/Fiduciary Funds $0 $0 $0 $0
Default Budget: Hooksett 2017 3of 5
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2017

New Hampshire
Department of Default Budget
Revenue Administration
4917 To Health Maintenance Trust Funds $0 $0 $0 $0
4918 To Non-Expendable Trust Funds $0 $0 $0 $0
4919 To Agency Funds $0 $0 $0 $0
Default Budget: Hooksett 2017 40of 5
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New Hampshire 2017

1
|
Department of | Default Budget
Revenue Administration |

Health Insurance & NHRS Employer rates

4321 Health Insurance & NHRS Employer rates
4441-4442 Reduced Request
4240-4249 Health Insurance & NHRS Employer rates
4140-4149 Health Insurance; NHRS Employer rates & removed number of elections
4130-4139 Health Insurance & NHRS Employer rates
4150-4151 Health Insurance & NHRS Employer rates
4220-4229 Health Insurance; NHRS Employer rates; Hydrant rental contract; reduced lease payment & removed Immunizations
4194 Health Insurance & NHRS Employer rates
4312 Health Insurance; NHRS Employer rates & Road Improvements CIP passed
4196 Liability Insurance Contract
4550-4559 Health Insurance; NHRS Employer rates; FLSA increase & other contracts
4319 Health Insurance & NHRS Employer rates
4520-4529 Health Insurance & NHRS Employer rates
4191-4193 Health Insurance & NHRS Employer rates
4210-4214 Health Insurance; NHRS Employer rates & removed tactical vests; 2 addtional employees approved at 2015 Town Meeting
4152 Health Insurance & NHRS Employer rates
4323 Health Insurance & NHRS Employer rates
4324 Health Insurance & NHRS Employer rates
4914S Health Insurance; NHRS Employer rates & other contracts

Default Budget: Hooksett 2017
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Budget Status Report FY 2016-17

Approved Budget Budget Adjusted Year to Date (Ower) Under Percent
Department Budget Transfers Increases Budget Encumbered Expenditures Spent Expended
Administration
Executive $ 375,011 $ - $ - 375,011 $ - $ 379,748 $ 4,737) 101%
Computers 131,504 - 15,371 146,875 (2,243) 138,521 6,111 96%
Legal 95,000 - - 95,000 - 80,240 14,760 84%
Benefits 189,910 - 27 189,937 - 167,122 22,815 88%
Insurance 241,000 - - 241,000 - 256,463 (15,463) 106%
Planning 13,000 - - 13,000 - 13,321 (321 102%
Other General Gov't 2 - - 2 - - 2 0%
Patriotic 2,945 - - 2,945 - 2,945 - 100%
Other Culture 12,250 3,000 - 15,250 - 14,777 473 97%
Economic Development 500 - - 500 - 295 205 59%
Land Purchases 1 - - 1 - - 1 0%
Administration Total 1,061,123 3,000 15398 7 1,079,521 (2,243) 1,053,432 7 23,846 98%
Assessing 176,694 2,000 - 178,694 - 156,231 22,463 87%
Bonded Debt Principal & Interest - - - - - - - 0%
Budget Committee 8,305 - - 8,305 - 6,961 1,344 84%
Capital Leases 88,057 - - 88,057 - 88,056 1 100%
Cemetery Commission 1,147 - - 1,147 - 953 194 83%
Conservation Commission 1,277 - - 1,277 - 1,277 - 100%
Family Services 193,823 - - 193,823 - 145,508 48,315 75%
Finance 224,920 4,000 - 228,920 - 220,499 8,421 96%
Fire-Rescue
Fire 3,675,599 31,000 27,998 3,734,597 (26,459) 3,763,159 (55,021) 101%
Emergency Management 4,251 - - 4,251 - 2,312 1,939 54%
Fire-Rescue Total 3,679,850 31,000 27,998 © 3,738,848 (26,459) 3,765471 (53,082) 101%
Library 712,733 - - 712,733 - 712,733 - 100%
Police 4,392,372 (33,000) 91,887 4,451,259 - 4,033,030 418,229 91%
Public Works
Community Development 516,572 (4,000) 14,000 526,572 - 447,865 78,707 85%
Highway 2,378,571 3,000 4,313,691 6,695,262 (3,734,452) 2,655,150 305,660 90%
Parks, Recreation & Cemeteries 580,488 (12,000) - 568,488 - 467,761 100,727 82%
Recycling & Transfer 1,067,146 3,000 - 1,070,146 - 916,821 153,325 86%
Public Works Total 4,542,777 (10,000) 4327,691 T 8,860,468 (3,734,452) 4,487,597 T 638,419 88%
Tax Anticipation Interest 1 - - 1 - - 1 0%
Tax Collector 271,855 3,000 - 274,855 - 247,352 27,503 90%
Town Clerk 42,773 - - 42,773 - 35,970 6,803 84%
Woastewater Department 2,002,935 - - 2,002,935 - - 2,002,935 0%
Total Operating $17,400,642 $ - $4,462,974 $21,863,616 $(3,763,153) $14,955,071 $3,145,391 83%
Warrant Articles
Road Reconstruction Year 1 of 5 $ 300,000 $ - $ - $ 300,000 $ (14,642) $ 285,358 $ 0 100%
Live Bottom Trailer - Solid Waste 60,000 - - 60,000 - 60,000 - 100%
Public Works Vehicles CR 200,000 - - 200,000 - 200,000 - 100%
Automated Collection Equipment CR 30,000 - - 30,000 - 30,000 - 100%
Drainage Upgrades CR 50,000 - - 50,000 - 50,000 - 100%
Parks & Recreation Facilities CR 15,000 - - 15,000 - 15,000 - 100%
Town Building Maintenance CR 75,000 - - 75,000 - 75,000 - 100%
Fire Air Packs & Bottles CR 20,000 - - 20,000 - 20,000 - 100%
Fire Apparatus CR 50,000 - - 50,000 - 50,000 - 100%
Revaluation CR 30,000 - - 30,000 - 30,000 - 100%
Mater Plan CR 10,000 - - 10,000 - 10,000 - 100%
Conservation Land Improvements CR 10,000 - - 10,000 - 10,000 - 100%
Total Warrant Articles $ 850,000 $ - $ - $ 850,000 $ (14,642) $ 835,358 $ 0 100%
Grand Totals $18,250,642 $ - $4,462,974 $22,713616 $(3,777,795) $15,790,429 $3,145,392 83%

Submitted by:

CHoristisme . Sovsere.  Finance Director (603)-485-2712
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Revenue to Offset Taxes FY 2016-17

Budget Yearto Date  Ower (Under) Percent
Type Source Approved Unanticipated  Collected Collected  Collected
Taxes
Timber Tax 10,000 $ - $ 2,701 $ (7,299) 27%
Activity Tax 7,500 - 9,818 2,318 131%
Interest and Penalties on Taxes 320,000 - 222,279 (97,721) 69%
Licenses, Permits & Fees
Motor Vehicles Permits 3,342,000 - 3,498,967 156,967 105%
Building Permits 100,000 - 155,697 55,697 156%
Other Licenses, Permits & Fees 21,200 - 21,794 594 103%
From Federal
DHS Firefighters, BPV, CMAQ - 21,738 27,610 5,872 127%
From State
Meals & Rooms Tax 748,391 - 748,392 1 100%
Highway Block Grant 300,435 - 300,429 6) 100%
State & Federal Forest Land 500 - 578 78 116%
Other - Railroad, Grants 602,432 27,814 74,622 (555,624) 12%
Charges For Services
Town Clerk 1 - 140 139 14000%
Assessing 50 - 18 (32) 36%
Police 11,000 - 9,432 (1,568) 86%
Fire 32,802 27,214 (5,588) 83%
Public Works 107,025 - 80,936 (26,089) 76%
Miscellaneous
Sale of Town Property 26,500 - 6,800 (19,700) 26%
Interest on Investments 40,000 - 77971 37971 195%
Rental of Town Property 76,200 - 76,841 641 101%
Court Fines 13,650 - 14,195 545 104%
Insurance Dividends and Reimbursements 2 - - ) 0%
Gifts and Grants 1,000 - 1,527 527 153%
Elderly Lien Payoff 1 - 37,117 37,116
Welfare Reimbursement 7,500 - 24,616 17,116 328%
Cable Franchise Fee 165,000 - 177,296 12,296 107%
Other 690,811 797 34,199 (657,409) 5%
Other Funds
Capital Reserves 60,000 - 60,000 - 100%
Enterprise Fund - Wastewater 2,455,872 - - (2,455,872) 0%
Trust Funds 5,000 - 4333 (667) 87%
Totals Revenues $ 9144872 $ 50,349 $ 5695523 $ (3,499,698) 62%

Submitted by:

Hsistine Sowcse . Finance Director (603) 485-2712
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General Obligation Debt

As of June 30, 2017. the Town does not have any general long term debt.

Business-type Debt

Repayments of this debt is paid from the Sewer Fund.

Wastewater Treatment Facility Upgrades issued m 2010 for $§3,500.000 2,602,815
Wastewater Treatment Facility Upgrades issued in 2012 for $3,106.470 2,174,529
Total S 4,777,344

The annual requirement to amortize all debt as of June 30, 2017 mchiding mterest payments are

as follows:
Year Ending

June 30, Principal Interest Total
2018 309.662 164,531 474,193
2019 315415 153,956 469,371
2020 321,384 143,166 464,550
2021 327,574 132,154 459,728

2022-2026 1.739.119 487,206 2,226,325

2027-2031 1,764,190 170,390 1,934,580
Total S 4777344 S 1251403 S 6,028,747

Capital Leases

Lease Agreement Payable at June 30, 2017 is comprised of the following issues:

$220,576 Fire Tanker Expires on July 18, 2017 30,214
$248,400 Public W orks Excavator Expires on December 1, 2020 135,931
Total S 166,145

The annual requirement to amortize all debt as of June 30, 2017 mcliding mterest payments are

as follows:
Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total
2018 62,768 4,705 67,473
2019 33.489 3.901 37.390
2020 34,450 2.967 37.417
2021 35438 2,006 37.444
Total S 166,145 S 13,579 § 179,723
Submitted by:

Chesstine Fowocs. Finance Director (603)485-2712
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Other Town Funds FY 2016-17

Balances as of Balances as of

Name of Fund 6/30/2016 Revenues  Expenses Interest 6/30/2017

Reserwve Fund
16 Main Street Town Hall Preservation $ 3,118 § 2,284 8§ - $ 87 $ 5,488
Air Pack & Fire Bottles for Fire Department 178,710 20,000 - 4,566 203,276
Automated Collection Equipment 51,253 30,000 - 1,828 83,081
Conservation Land Improvements - 10,000 - 214 10,214
Drainage Upgrades 193,313 50,000 - 5,574 248,886
Emergency Radio Communications 85,901 - - 1,989 87,890
Feasibility Study Southern Leg Parkway 62,428 - - 1,446 63,874
Fire Apparatus 205,820 50,000 - 5,834 261,654
Fire Cistern 16,372 - (1,077) 398 15,694
Parks & Recreation Facilities Development 78,352 15,000 - 2,135 95,487
Permanent Records Archiving System 23,182 - - 537 23,719
Public Works Vehicles 118,325 200,000 (276,430) 5,961 47,856
Revaluation 30,373 30,000 - 1,344 61,718
Right of Way for West Alice Ave 24,658 - - 571 25,229
Sanitary Landfill 71,262 - (5,018) 1,637 67,881
Town Building Maintenance 108,091 75,000 (75,258) 3,526 111,360
Town of Hooksett's Master Plan 10,907 10,000 - 498 21,406
Town Wide Digitized Mapping System 24,999 - - 579 25,577
Wastewater Plant & Composting Improv 1,597,884 6,826,475 - 47,068 8,471,427
Wastewater Landscape & Security Projects - 10,000 - 11 10,011
Special Revenues Funds

Heritage Commission 14,838 2,259 (1,181) 86 16,001
Heritage Markers 1,969 2,000 - 19 3,988
Heads' School 4,117 - (225) 23 3,915
Conservation 425,062 213,426 (229,774) 1,017 409,731
* Fire Impact Fee 108,246 81,869 - 782 190,897
* Police Impact Fee 80,760 9,339 (37,988) 362 52,473
* Public Recreation Facilities Impact Fee 277927 27,072 (258,788) 686 46,897
* Traffic\Roadway Impact Fee 1,370,623 104,613 (185,906) 7,066 1,296,396
* School Impact Fee 65,438 169,936 (91,274) 394 144,493
Solid Waste Disposal Fund 272,300 100,729 (60,000) 1,676 314,705
Drug Forfeiture 18,578 8,868 - 131 27,577
Police Detail 159,758 145,358 (129,200) 937 176,853
Fire Detail 4,375 7,825 (8,829) 19 3,389
Recreation Revolving 54,837 149,022 (91,636) 459 112,682
Ambulance Service 522,202 422,113 (656,321) 301 288,295

Note: Reported on the accrual basis of accounting.
* Details of Impact fee activity can be found on the Town's website.

Submitted by:

CHristine Sowese . Finance Director (603) 4852712
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TOWN OF HOOKSETT

Capital Improvement Plan

FY Ending 2018 - 2023
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Town of Hooksett 9/19/2016
Capital Improvement Plan Estimated | Balancein|  Projects
Yearof | TrustFund| Recom.hby Total Project
Project Description Completion | asof 7/31 | Town Admin. || 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 202021 2021-22 2022-23 Cost
Town's future projected needs
General Government
Feasibility Study for Southern Leg of Parkway Future 62,118 150,000
Improvements and maintenance of Conservation Land CR As needed 10,093 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 Ongoing
Merrimack Riverfront Trails Future 981,441 981,441
Fire-Rescue
Fire Station #3 at Ext 10 Future 1,000,000
Public Works
Drainage Upgrade Capital Reserve Fund Asneeded | 245,939 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 Ongoing
Parks and Recreation Facilities Development Reserve Fund As needed 94,356 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 Ongoing
Petersbrook Field Expansion 2018-19 150,000 150,000
Rt. 3AImprovement Project: Hackett Hill Section 2017-18 1,643634| 1,643,634 1,643,634
Rt. 3AImprovement Project: Hourglass Section 2018-19 2,200,000 2,200,000
Town Wide Paving
Lilac (Village) Bridge
Old Town Hall
Sewer Department
Did not submit
Total Town Requests | 1msed| 1718634 3406441 s 7o oo oo eam0m
School Districts future projected needs
Roof Replacement and Reseaming at Underhil 2018-19 NIA 95,500 95,500 382,000
Sports Field Upgrades at Cawley 2019-20 NiA 30,000 30,000 30,000 90,000
Total School Requests 125500 125500 30,000 0 0 0 472,000
Central Water Precinct future projected needs
Did not submit
Village Water Precinct future projected needs
Did not submit
Grand Total Al Requests Total Cost 1,718,63411 1,844,134 | 3531941 | 1050001 75000) 75000) 75000 6,597,075
Off-setting Revenues
Fire Station #3 at Exit 10 (Impact Fees)
Merimack Riverfront Conservation Project (Grants, Others) 981,441 981,441
Petersbrook Soccer Fields (Impact Fees) 150,000 150,000
Rt. 3AImprovement Project: Hackett Hill Section (State, Impact Fees) 1643634 1,643,634 1,643,634
Rt. 3AImprovement Project: Hourglass Section (State, Impact Fees) 2,200,000 2,200,000
Sidewalk; Main Street (Impact Fees & Other) 80,000
Total off-setting Revenues 1,643634| 1643634 3331441 0 0 0 0 5,095,075
Grand Total CIP Request Net Cost (Taxation) 75000 || 200500 | 200500 105000 75000 75000 75000 | 1542000
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Adopted by
Planning Board on
September 12, 2016

Capital Improvement Plan

General Government

Feasibility Study for Southern Leg of Parkway Reserve: Total project cost is $150,000. There is $62,118
in account as of July 31, 2016. The purpose of the Parkway was to relieve the heavy traffic congestion on
Route 3 from Industrial Park Drive south to the I-93 interchange. This project has been a recommendation
of the Master Plan since 1971 and has been the subject of a number of public hearings. This study will
answer many questions about the ability of this road segment to receive the necessary State environmental
permits and to determine the path (corridor) more precisely, and to help us determine the costs of land
acquisition and construction. It’s conceived to be a controlled access highway with limited curb cuts; its
purpose it to take through traffic off Route 3, making it easier for customers to access the many businesses
along Route 3. SNHU also needs to know how to plan for their development and how to utilize this new
road, as well as North River Rd.

Improvements and Maintenance of Town-Owned Conservation Land Reserve: Total project cost is
ongoing. There is $10,093 in account as of July 31, 2016. Estimated year of purchase is as needed. The
fund is to begin to plan for improvements, and developments that may be needed for all of the conservation
lands/easements currently held by the Town. Over the past few years, the Commission has continued its
pursuit of acquiring land to conserve for future residents to enjoy, consistent with the mandates of the
Master Plan. The conservation easements, pertaining to such property, require the Town to maintain the
property and make repairs or improvements as necessary. In order to meet this legal obligation, it is
necessary for us to create a capital reserve fund to ensure that the Town will be prepared for any planned or
unexpected maintenance issues that may arise. Over the last 3 years alone, the Commission has acquired
over 1,294 acres of land that we would like to see used for passive recreational purposes. This year, the
Commission added 584 acres, known as the Great Marsh Preserve, as part of the Head’s Pond Development.
The stewardship of the Town's Conservation properties includes the requirement of maintaining existing
trails and the right to develop new trails.
e Town Administrator recommends funding $10,000 in the current year.

Merrimack Riverfront Trails: This project is proposed by the Conservation Commission and involves the
construction of nearly 2 miles of trails and a foot bridge to enable access to the newly purchase Merrimack
Riverfront conservation property by foot, bike, snowmobile, snow-shoe, horse, or cross-country skis. This
12-foot wide trail and bridge with curbs and handrails will enable people of all ages and abilities to access
the property and gain views of the river. An accessible riverfront will allow for education opportunities in
environmental steward ship for all students, instructors and researcher. Both Southern New Hampshire
University and the Hooksett Middle School have expressed their desire to access this property for
instructional purposes. The Conservation Commission received a grant from DRED in the amount of
$50,000 with a $12,500 (20%) match from conservation funds. A $100,000 Warrant Article passed in May
2015 and the project also received $100,000 in Recreation Impact fees. The goal is to have the project
funded by as few tax dollars as possible.
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Fire-Rescue
Fire Station #3 at Exit 10: Total project cost is $1,000,000. Estimated year of purchase is unknown. The
fund is for a third Fire Station to protect new growth in this area of town where response times need to be
improved. This fire station would not only protect exit 10, but all areas west of the Merrimack River along
with the south end of Hooksett.

Public Works
Drainage Upgrade Reserve: Total project cost is ongoing. There is $245,939 in account as of July 31,
2016. Estimated year of purchase is as needed. Various areas throughout town have drainage that has begun
to deteriorate and fail. These failures are due to aging pipes, pipes that have outlived their expected lifespan,
increased storm runoff due to growth in town, and more storms with a higher volume of water. These pipes
were not installed to handle the amount of water that they are taking on. This fund is for updating the
drainage to larger pipes, which will handle both the increased volume of water and anticipated growth.
e Town Administrator recommends funding $50,000 in the current year.

Parks and Recreation Facilities Development Reserve: Total project cost is ongoing. There is $94,356
in account as of July 31, 2016. Estimated year of purchase is as needed. The town continues to grow and
we are forced to deal with aging structures, building updates, and additional recreation areas that will need
to be addressed. We have put together a listing of items that will need to be addressed within the next five
years. Since addressing the lighting at Donati, our next project will be building updates on the Parks & Rec
building. The Parks & Rec Division has outgrown the building and needs more space to work out of and
store the equipment they use daily. This building has not been updated in over 15 years while the division
has grown.
e Town Administrator recommends funding $15,000 in the current year.

Petersbrook Fields Expansion: In 2011 the Town purchased 7+acres adjacent to the Town owned
Petersbrook Fields. Discussions were held with Hooksett Youth Athletic Association and the Parts and
Recreation Advisory Board and a plan was developed to building new fields on the new acquired property.
Council approved the use of Parts & Recreation Impact Fees to begin Phase 1 of this project.

Route 3A Improvements - Hackett Hill Section: In August 2012 Town Council approved the use of
Roadway Impact Fees to improve the Hackett Hill and Route 3A Intersection. This intersection is currently
a failed intersection. Numerous traffic studies have been conducted; two in 2005 both finding similar
problems with the intersection and crash dated for 1995 to 2010 totaled 56 accidents. NHDOT 10 Year plan
which was approved by Governor Lynch in June 2012 includes 2/3 State funding for this intersection in the
amount of $800,000 leaving the balance to come for Roadway Impact fees.

e Town Administrator support the current year request with grants and Impact Fees

Route 3A Improvements - Hourglass Section: This project is Phase II of the Route 3A Improvements and
is focused on widening Route 3A between Walmart and Market Basket.

Town Wide Paving: Currently the Town is updating the cost projections for reconstruction and paving on
all Town Roads.

Lilac (Village) Bridge: Currently the Town is working with our engineers to develop a plan for removing
the current bridge and possible reconstruction of a utility/walking bridge.

Old Town Hall: Committee is working to find grants to help with restorative costs.
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Hooksett Sewer Department
The Hooksett Sewer Department raises funds for their capital replacement through user fees. The CIP uses
the information from the Sewer’s CIP to level out peak years for the taxpayers. The Sewer Commission did
not submit a Capital Improvement Plan for this year.

School District
Roof Replacement and Reseaming at Underhill: Total project cost is $382,000. Estimated year of
purchase is 2018-19. The roof on the Underhill school is 20+ years old and needs to be replaced. This will
help with the reliability of the roof and also will keep repair costs to a minimum.

Sports Field Upgrades at Cawley: Total project cost is $120,000. Estimated year of purchase is 2019.-20.
Currently the Track & Field, Field Hockey, and Lacrosse programs use the soccer field at Cawley Middle
School. Dedicated areas with specialized equipment are desirable for these programs. This project would
also add electrical power and electrical scoreboards to the baseball field and the soccer field.

Hooksett Central Water Precinct
The Hooksett Central Water Precinct raises funds for their capital replacement through user fees. The CIP
uses the information from the Hooksett Central Water Precinct’s CIP to level out peak years for the
taxpayers. The water precinct did not submit a Capital Improvement Plan for this year.

Hooksett Village Water Precinct
The Hooksett Village Water Precinct raises funds for their capital replacement through user fees. The CIP
uses the information from the Hooksett Village Water Precinct’s CIP to level out peak years for the
taxpayers. The water precinct did not submit a Capital Improvement Plan for this year.
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TOWN OF HOOKSETT

Long-Term Budget Plan

FY Ending 2018 - 2023
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Town of Hooksett 9/19/2016
Long-term Budgetary Plan Year |Estimated | Balancein| Projects
oflast | Yearof | TrustFund| Recom.by Total Project
Project Description Purchase| Purchase | as of 7/31 | Town Admin. || 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 Cost
Town's future projected needs
General Government
Revaluation Capital Reserve Fund 2013 | 2017-18 60,987 30,000 30,000, 30,000 30,000 30,000 30,000 30,000, Ongoing
Master Plan Capital Reserve Fund As needed 21,152 10,000 10,000 10,000 4,149 38,848
Parcel Digital Recompilation 2019-20 25275 35,000 29,725 90,000
Fire-Rescue
Fire Apparatus Capital Reserve Fund Asneeded| 258556 50,000 50,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 Ongoing
SCBAReplacement Capital Reserve Fund 2020 200,869 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 300,000
Rescue #1 2009 | 2020-21 530,052 250,000 250,000
Car#4 2001 | 2017-18 50,000 50,000 50,000
Car#2 2005 | 2018-19 50,000 50,000
Car#3 2005 | 2018-19 50,000 50,000
Car#l 2007 | 2019-20 50,000 50,000
Boat#2 2020-21 32,000 32,000
Fire Engine for Station #3 - Impact fees & Taxation Future 550,000
Fire Pumper for Station #3 - Impact fees & Taxation Future 550,000
Police Dept
Vehicles - 2 per year 78,000” 78,000 78,000 78,000 78,000 78,000 78,000 Ongoing
Emergency Radio Communications Capital Reserve Fund 2014 2026 86,850 50,000” 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 383,000
Public Works
Vehicles Capital Reserve Fund Asneeded| 321,683 200,000” 200,000 200,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 Ongoing
Town Building Maintenance Capital Reserve Fund Asneeded| 185,030 75,000 75,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 Ongoing
Automated Collection Equipment Capital Reserve Fund 2011 2022 82,097 30,000 30,000 30,000 30,000 30,000 30,000 30,000 920,000
Dump Trailer (Special Revenue) 1986 | 2019-20 45,000 45,000
Peterhilt Tractor (Special Revenue) 2001 | 2021-22 120,000 120,000
100 Yard Live Bottom Trailer (Special Revenue) 2005 | 2019-20 70,000 70,000
Skid Steer Loader Bobcat (Special Revenue) 2006 | 2019-20 35,000 35,000
Freightliner Tractor (Special Revenue) 2005 | 2020-21 120,000 120,000
Pickup wiplow (Special Revenue) 2008 | 2020-21 40,000 40,000
Carm Recycle Trailer (Special Revenue) 2005 | 202122 20,000 20,000
Stan Live Bottom Trailer (Special Revenue) 2004 | 2020-21 70,000 70,000
Sewer Department
Did not submit ||
[Total Town Requests 593,000|| 5030000 10030000 741875 770000] 480000 508000 3833848
School Districts future projected needs
|Tota| School Requests | ” 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0
Central Water Precinct future projected needs
|Tota| Central Water Precinct | ” 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0
Village Water Precinct future projected needs
Total Village Water Precinct | || 0| 0| 0| O| 0| 0| 0
Grand Total Al Requests Total Cost | 593000] 593000] 1.003000] 741875] 770000] 648000] 508000] 3833848
Off-setting Revenues
Ambulance Fund 250,000 250,000
Fire Engine for Station #3 - Impact fees 0
Solid Waste Disposal Fund 150,000 230,000 140,000 520,000
Total off-setting Revenues 0 0 250,000 150,000 230,000 140,000 0 770,000
Grand Total Long-Term Request Net Cost (Taxation) | sez000]| 593000 753000] 591,875] 540,000 508000] 508,000 | 3063848
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Long-term Budgetary Plan

General Government
Revaluation Reserve: Total project cost is on-going. There is $60,987 in account as of July 31, 2016. This
project is to set aside funds for the next update in 2018. The 2009 revaluation cost was $161,231, the cost
for 2013 is $137,300, and the estimated cost in 2018 is $149,703. Every five years the Town is required to
reappraise all property values for assessment equity property tax purposes per NH State Constitution Article
6.

e Town Administrator support $30,000 in the current year.

Master Plan Reserve: Total project cost is $60,000. There is $21,152 in account as of July 31, 2016. The
fund is to provide a savings account, to be added to every year, that will allow the Town to update its Master
Plan in a manner compliant with RSA 674:3 “Master Plan Preparation”, which states in Sec II that revisions
to the plan are recommended every 5-10 years. The Master Plan was last updated in 2004. Several areas of
the plan are outdated. The following chapters have recently been updated: Economic Development and
Energy. The update of the plan is critical to the long-term development of the Town. The Planning Board,
ZBA, Conservation Commission, and Town Council need clear, accurate information upon which to base
their decisions. Period studies that bring this new information into the Master Plan create an atmosphere of
good planning, informed decision making, and provide critical data for the voter.
e Town Administrator support $10,000 in the current year.

Parcel Digital Recompilation: Total project cost is $90,000. There is $25,275 in account as of July 31,
2016. The GIS system parcels do not align with the orthos (aerial imagery), making it very difficult to
determine exact locations of boundaries, structures, water bodies, etc. This project would include
recompilation of the existing parcel layer to the ortho image base map. The roads would be realigned to fit
the parcels by matching the physical evidence on the image base.

Fire-Rescue

Fire Apparatus Reserve: Total project cost is ongoing. There is $258,556 in account as of July 31, 2016.
Estimated year of purchase is as needed. The fund is for the future replacement of the following fire
department vehicles: all engines, tankers, ladders, and forestry.

e Town Administrator support $50,000 in the current year.
SCBA Replacement Reserve: Total project cost is $300,000. There is $200,869 in the account as of July
31, 2016. Estimated year of purchase is 2020. The project is to establish a fund to replace all of our air
packs in 15 years. The current air packs were purchased in 2005.

e Town Administrator support $20,000 in the current year.

Rescue #1: Total project cost is $250,000. Estimated year of purchase is 2018-19. This request will be paid
from the Ambulance Revenue Fund. This vehicle will replace a 2007 rescue/ambulance.

Car #4: Total project cost is $50,000. Estimated year of purchase is 2017-18. This request is to replace a
2001 Chevy Impala with over 99,000 miles on it with a new command style 4x4 vehicle.

e Town Administrator support $50,000 in the current year.

Car #2: Total project cost is $50,000. Estimated year of purchase is 2018-19. This request is to replace a
2005 Ford Expedition SSV Command vehicle with a new command style 4x4 vehicle.
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Car #3: Total project cost is $50,000. Estimated year of purchase is 2018-19. This request is to replace a
2005 Ford Expedition with a new command vehicle. Currently, Fire Prevention uses this vehicle daily.

Car #1: Total project cost is $50,000. Estimated year of purchase is 2019-20. This request is to replace a
2007 Chevy Tahoe with a new command style 4x4 vehicle.

Boat #2: Total project cost is $32,000. Estimated year of purchase is 2020-21. The fund is to replace a
2005 Mercury water rescue boat.

Fire Engine for Station #3 — Impact fees & taxation: Total project cost is $550,000. The fund is to
purchase a new fire engine to respond out of the new Fire Station #3 located at exit 10 off Route 3A. This
Fire Station project keeps getting pushed back year to year due to not having adequate land for a Fire
Station. This land was supposed to be donated to the town back when exit 10 was developed. The fire
station has been needed since 2000. This piece of apparatus will be housed out of the new facility protecting
Exit 10, Hackett Hill and South Hooksett. The longer this fire station keeps getting pushed back, the
increase of the risk of this growing part of the community.

Fire Pumper for Station #3 — Impact fees & taxation: Total project cost is $550,000. The fund is to
purchase a new fire pumper to respond out of the new Fire Station #3 located at exit 10 off Route 3A.

Police

Vehicle Replacement (2 Cars per Year): Total project cost is Ongoing. This request allows the
department to purchase 2 police vehicles per year, establishing a comprehensive emergency vehicle
replacement program, as outlined in the PSSG audit report calling for a better vehicle management program.
This will also allow us to reduce excess vehicles in the fleet. This program lets us take delivery of two
vehicles at once, keeping the emergency vehicles at optimum readiness. It includes the cost of both vehicles
and all emergency equipment, police radio, graphics, extended bumper to bumper warranty and installation.
With a regular replacement and maintenance plan in place, the cars can be repurposed once they reach fairly
high mileage by reassigning them to detectives, administration functions and/or other Town departments in
need of vehicles. Town Administrator support $78,000 in the current year.

Emergency Radio Communication: Total project cost is $383,000. There is $86,850 in the account as of July
31, 2016. Estimated year of purchase is 2024. These funds will be used well in the future to purchase and
replace the existing emergency radio communication system. Our radio system was replaced in 2014 after a
lightning strike caused extensive damage. The police department was able to replace a major portion of the
system with the funds that had been building in this capital reserve along with what the insurance covered. We
spent $383,000.00. The police department anticipates the system will need replacing in ten years when the
company, Motorola, no longer supports repairs or parts. The anticipated replacement cost is approximately
$500,000.00, so building this fund at $50,000.00 a year for ten years will help ensure the town does not have to
bear the burden of a major expense all at once.
e Town Administrator support $50,000 in the current year.

Public Works
Vehicle Reserve: Total project cost is ongoing. There is $321,683 in accounts as of July 31, 2016.
Estimated year of purchase is as needed. The reserve fund allows for the Town to replace and add vehicles
when needed. This fund evens the burden on tax payers by planning for the purchase. The town is
continuing to grow and we will need to address that growth.
e Town Administrator support $200,000 in the current year.
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Town Building Maintenance Reserve: Total project cost is ongoing. There is $185,030 in account as of
July 31, 2016. Estimated year of purchase is as needed. This fund addresses the needs of town buildings.
Over the past year we utilized this fund for lighting and ventilation upgrades to the highway building; partial
roof replacement at the town hall and the elevator repairs at the Library. It is imperative that the town keep
a minimum of $250,000 in this fund so that there are funds for any major repairs that will need to be
addressed in the future. We have $26,000,000 worth of buildings to maintain within the town. I believe a
$250,000 minimum in this account is not an unreasonable request.
e Town Administrator support $75,000 in the current year.

Automated Collection Equipment Reserve: Total project cost is $940,000. There is $82,097 in the
account as of July 31, 2016. Estimated year of purchase is 2022. The fund is to prepare for the future
replacement of the trash/recycling collection vehicles. The classification is necessary, without the future
replacement of the collection vehicles and carts, residents would lose the service.

e Town Administrator support $30,000 in the current year

Dump Trailer (Special Revenue): Total project cost is $45,000. Estimated year of purchase is 2019-20.
This will replace the existing 1986 trailer. This piece of equipment is used to haul material to and from the
facility, and is also used to help the Public Works Department haul stone, salt and sand.

Peterbilt Tractor (Special Revenue): Total project cost is $120,000. Estimated year of purchase is 2021-
22. The purpose of this project is to replace a 2001 Peterbilt tractor for hauling material to and from the
Recycling and Transfer Department. If we don’t keep up with the fleet, material cannot be hauled.

100 Yard Live Bottom Trailer (Special Revenue): Total project cost is $70,000. Estimated year of
purchase is 2019-20. This will replace a 2005 100-yard live bottom trailer used to haul material to and from
the facility.

Skid Steer Loader Bobcat (Special Revenue): Total project cost is $35,000. Estimated year of purchase
is 2019-20. This will replace a 2006 Bobcat. The Bobcat is one of the most multi-function pieces of
equipment we have with the interchangeable buckets, forks and sweepers.

Freightliner Tractor (Special Revenue): Total project cost is $120,000. Estimated year of purchase is
2020-21. This will replace a 2005 Freightliner Tractor. It was originally scheduled to be replaced in 2018-
19, but with the new collection program we are using the trucks less, saving vehicle wear.

% Ton Pickup with Plow (Special Revenue): Total project cost is $40,000. Estimated year of purchase is
2020-21. This will replace a 2008 % ton pickup and plow.

Carm Recycle Trailer (Special Revenue): Total project cost is $20,000. Estimated year of purchase is
2021-22. This will replace a 2005 Trailer.

Stan Live Bottom Trailer (Special Revenue): Total project cost is $70,000. Estimated year of purchase is
2020-21. This will replace a 2004 Trailer.
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PLODZIK & SANDERSON

Professional Association/Accountants & Auditors
193 North Main Street » Concord « New Hampshire ¢ 03301-5063 » 603-225-6996 ¢ FAX 603-224-1380

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of the Town Council
Town of Hooksett
Hooksett, New Hampshire

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities, major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Hooksett as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Town’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriatencss of accounting policies
used and the rcasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position
of the governmental activities, business-type activities, major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of
Hooksett, as of June 30, 2016, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof, and the
respective budgetary comparison for the general fund, for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information - Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that
the Management's Discussion and Analysis (pages 3-10), the Schedule of Funding Progress for Other Postemployment Benefit
Plan (page 43), the Schedule of the Town’s Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability (page 44), and the Schedule of Town
Contributions (page 45) be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers them to be an essential
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
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historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We
do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance,

Other Information - Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Town of Hooksett’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual fund schedules are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual fund schedules are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual fund schedules are

fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.
4 - L]

January 25, 2017
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

The Town of Hooksett’s (Town) discussion and analysis is designed to (1) assist the reader in focusing on
significant financial issues, (2) provide an overview of the Town’s financial activity, (3) identify changes in the
Town’s financial position (its ability to address the next and subsequent year’s challenges), and (4) identify any
material deviations from the financial plan (the approved budget).

Financial Highlights
Government — wide highlights

» As ofthe close of the current fiscal year, the total assets and deferred outflows exceeded total liabilities and
deferred inflows for the governmental and business type activities by $32,858,141. This amount is
presented as “Total Net Position” on the Statement of Net Position. The beginning net positon was
increased by $415,724 to reflect the removal of the compensated absences liability at the beginning of the
year.

¥ The recognition of the pension liability in the prior year has impacted the governmental activities
unrestricted net position which reported as a deficit of $706,631, while business-type activities are
reporting a positive unrestricted net positon of $2,941,888. Total net position for both governmental
activities and business-type activities report a positive net position of $20,776,519 and $12,081,622,
respectively.

» The Town’s total net position increased by $182,904 for fiscal year 2016. Net position of governmental
activities decreased by $102,508 and the business-type activities increased by $285,412.

Fund highlights
» At the close of the current year, the Town’s governmental funds reported a combined balance of all funds
of $10,699,841, a decrease of $135,013 from the prior year. This decrease is 1% of the total expenditures
for the fiscal year.

» Unassigned fund balance for the General Fund as of June 30™ is $4,245,377; this is a decrease of $212,239
from the prior year of $4,457,616.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Town’s basic financial statements. The
Town’s basic financial statements include three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund
financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. In addition to the basic financial statements, this report
contains other supplementary information.

Government-wide financial statements

The government-wide financial statements provide a broad overview of the Town’s finances. These statements
(Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) provide both short-term and long-term information about
the Town’s overall financial position. They are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting, which recognizes all
revenues and expenses connected with the year even if cash has not been received or paid.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the Town’s non-fiduciary assets, deferred outflows of
resources, liabilities and deferred inflow of resources, with the difference reported as net position. Over time,
increases or decreases in the net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the
Town is improving or deteriorating,.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the Town’s net position changed during the most
recent year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event occurs, regardless of the timing
of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will not result
in cash flows until future periods (such as uncollected taxes and licenses). This statement also presents a comparison
between direct expenses and program revenues for each function of the Town.
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The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities divide the Town into two types of activities:

= Governmental Activities — Most of the Town’s basic functions are reported here which include the general
government, public safety, highways and streets, sanitation, welfare, culture and recreation, conservation,
and economic development. Property taxes, intergovernmental revenues, permits and fees, and state and
federal grants finance most of these activities.

*  Business-type Activities — The Town charges a fee to customers with the intention of recovering all or a
significant portion of the costs through user fees and charges. The Town’s Sewer Department is reported
here.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 11 and 12 of this report.

Fund financial statements

Unlike government-wide financial statements, the focus of the fund financial statements is directed to specific
activities of the Town rather than the Town as a whole. Except for the General Fund, a specific fund is established
to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Town, like
other local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. The fund financial statements, focus on the individual parts of the Town government, and report the
Town’s operations in more detail than the government-wide statements. The Town’s funds are divided into three
categories: 1) governmental, 2) proprietary, and 3) fiduciary.

Governmental funds: Most of the basic services provided by the Town are financed through governmental funds.
Unlike the government-wide financial statements, the governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term
inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of
the year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented here with similar information presented in the government-wide
financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-
term financing decisions. Reconciliations found on page 14 and 16 are provided for both the governmental fund
Balance Sheet and the governmental fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances to
the government-wide statements in order to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and
governmental activities.

The Town maintains ten individual governmental funds. Information is presented in the Governmental Funds
Balance Sheet and in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances for these funds.
They can be found on page 13 and 15.

The General Fund is considered to be a major fund. The General Fund accounts for governmental services provided
to the Town’s residents. As of June 30, 2011, to comply with GASB Statement 54, the Town moved the Library,
Heritage Commission, Head’s Chapel Preservation, and the Expendable Trust funds into the General Fund from the
Other Governmental Funds.

Data from the other nine governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation termed Other
Governmental Funds. More information can be found beginning on page 52 regarding these other governmental
funds.

Proprietary funds: The Town charges sewer customers for the services it provides; they are reported in the
proprietary fund, which can be found, on pages 18-20. Proprietary funds are reported in the same way that all
business-type activities are reported in the governmental-wide financial statements, but provide more detail and a
statement of cash flows.

Fiduciary funds: These funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
government. While these funds represent trust responsibilities of the Town, these assets are restricted in purpose and
do not represent discretionary assets of the government. Therefore, these assets are not presented as part of the
government-wide financial statements. The Town’s fiduciary funds statement can be found on page 21.
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Notes to the financial statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the
government-wide and the fund financial statements, and are required by generally accepted accounting principles.
The notes to the financial statements begin on page 22.

Required supplementary information: In addition to this Management’s Discussion and Analysis the basic
financial statements and accompanying notes are followed by a section of required supplementary information. This
section includes Funding Progress for Other Postemployment Benefits Plans and information about the New
Hampshire Retirement System as required under GASBS 68.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

The following is a summary of condensed government-wide financial data for the current and prior years. The
Town’s combined net position (government and business-type activities) totaled $32,858,141 at the end of 2016,
which increased by $182,904.

Town of Hooksett
Net Position as of June 30th

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Totals
2016 2015* 2016 2015 2016 2015*

Currentand otherassets $ 32,471,043 $ 32,482,746 S 4,293,807 S 3,683,790 $ 36,764,850 $ 36,166,536
Capital assets, net 19,536,700 19,296,147 14,221,193 14,916,017 33,757,893 34,212,164
Total assets $ 52,007,743 § 51,778,893 $ 18,515,000 $ 18,599,807 $ 70,522,743 S 70,378,700

Deferred outflows

of Resources $ 1328978 $ 1,459,962 $ 39,850 $ 39,413 $ 1,368,828 $ 1,499,375
Current liabilities $ 15,919,578 § 15,444,433 s 421,029 S 473,602 5 16,340,607 S 15,918,035
Long-term liabilities 15,300,331 14,960,700 5,549,335 5,837,961 20,849,666 20,798,661

Total liabilities $ 31,219,909 $ 30,405,133 $ 5970,364 $ 6,311,563 $ 37,190,273 $ 36,716,696

Deferred inflows
of Resources S 1,340,293 S 1,954,695 $ 502,864 S 531,447 $ 1,843,157 S 2,486,142

Net Position
NetInvestmentin
capital assets § 19,289,428 $ 18,969,913 S 9,139,734 $ 9,535,791 S 28,429,162 S 28,505,704

Restricted 2,193,722 2,144,999 . 2,193,722 2,144,999
Unrestricted (Deficit) (706,631) (235,885) 2,941,888 2,260,419 2,235,257 2,024,534
Total net position $ 20,776,519 $ 20,879,027 S 12,081,622 $ 11,796,210 $ 32,858,141 §$ 32,675,237

*2015 amounts reflect the prior period adjustments as described in Note 18 to the financial statements.

The largest portion of the government’s net position, $28,429,162 (86%), reflects investment in assets such as land,
buildings, equipment, and infrastructure (roads and bridges), less any outstanding related debt used to acquire those
assets. These assets are used to provide services to citizens; consequently, they are not available for future spending.

An additional portion of net position, $2,193,722 (7%) represents resources that are subject to external restrictions
on how they may be use.

The remaining balance of unrestricted net position $2,235,257 (7%) may be used to meet the government’s
operating needs and ongoing obligations. The deficit in the Governmental Activities unrestricted net position is
$706,631. The largest component of the deficit is due to the cumulative effect of the implementation of GASB 68,
specifically the net pension liability recorded as of June 30, 2016 of $13,168,413.
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Government-wide Total Net Position
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The government-wide total net position has increased from $23,308,820 as of June 30, 2010 to $32,858,141 as of
June 30, 2016.

The following is 2 summary of the information presented in the Statement of Activities for the current and prior
ears.

Town of Hooksett
Statement of Changes in Net Position

Revenues Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Combined Totals
Program revenues: 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Charges forservices s 920,564 921,753 $ 1866618 S 1844889 S 2,787,182 $ 2,766,642
Operating grants and contributions 393,515 266,153 - - 393,515 266,153
General revenues:
Property and other taxes 9,318,865 10,143,263 . . 9,318,865 10,143,263
licenses and permits 3,627,939 3,315,769 . . 3,627,939 3,315,769
Grants and contributions 719,410 695,057 - - 719,410 695,057
Investment earnings 40,899 34,263 43,218 16,459 84,117 50,721
Miscellaneous 447,603 627,572 12,232 18,669 459,835 646,241
Special item - donated infrastructure - 9,161,219 . - - 9,161,219
Extraordinaryitem - - 707,358 - 707,358 -
Total revenues $ 15,468,795 S 25,165,049 $ 2629426 S 1,880,017 $ 18,098,221 S 27,045,066
Expenses
General government S 271,773 S 2,577,166 s - -] - $ 2,714,773 § 2,577,166
Public safety 7,887,236 7,901,851 . . 7,887,236 7,901,851
Highways and streets 2,334,022 2,086,792 - - 2,334,022 2,086,792
Sanitation 1,129,467 988,192 - - 1,129,467 988,192
Welfare 117,551 157,501 = - 117,551 157,501
Culture and recreation 1,191,234 1,026,135 - - 1,191,234 1,026,135
Conservation 199,739 55,372 - - 199,739 55,372
Economic development 281 485 - - 281 485
Interest on long-term debt - 2,134 - - - 2,134
Sewer Department - - 2,344,014 2,296,177 2,344,014 2,296,177
Total expenses $ 15571,303 S 14,795,628 $ 2344014 S 229,177 $ 17915317 5 17,091,805
Increase(decrease) in net position (102,508) 10,369,421 285,412 (416,160) 182,904 9,953,261
Net Position, beginning of year
as restated 20,879,027 10,509,606 11,796,210 12,212,370 32,675,237 22,721,976

Net Position, end of year $ 20,776,519 ] 20,879,027 i mhm 2 uinsem $ 32,858,141 $ 32,675,237

*2015 amounts reflect the prior period adjustments as described in Note 18to the financial statements.
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Financial Results
The governmental activities decrease in net position was $102,508. Key elements of this decrease are as follows:

Total Governmental Funds expenditures in excess of revenues $ (135,013)
Depreciation expense in excess of principal debt service (1,338,635)
Capital assets acquired from current year revenues, net of disposals 1,579,188
Change in net pension liability, net of related deferred inflows 227,535
Change in deferred tax revenues (356,594)
Increase in net OPEB obligation (176,369)
Other 97,380
Decrease in Governmental Activities Net Position $ (102,508)

The total cost of governmental activities this year was $15,571,303. However, as shown in the Statement of
Activities, the amount that our taxpayers ultimately financed for these activities through Town property and other
taxes was only $9,318,865 (60%) because those who directly benefited from the programs paid $920,564 (6%) and
other governments and organizations subsidized certain programs in the amount of $393,515 (2%).

The Town paid for the remaining governmental activities with revenue not specifically targeted for specific
programs. 32% of all revenues are known as general revenues, which include: interest, miscellaneous, motor
vehicle permit fees, and other licenses and permits.

The Town’s expenses cover a range of services. The largest expenses were for Public Safety, which accounts for
51% of total expenses. Program revenue consisting of grants and charges for services in the amount of $636,982 was
collected to offset these expenses. Public safety is made up of police, fire, ambulance, building inspections and
emergency services.

Expenses by Function - Governmental Activities R by - Gover | Activiti

General

Bovernment
17%

Conservation
1%

Culture and
recreation
Welfare __ b ~Charges for
1% ) services
Sanlj;lion - 6%
S Operating
| Highways and grants and
streets contribution
15% 3%

The Sewer fund reported in the business-type activities resulted in an increase to net position of $285,412 for the
year. Key elements of this increase are as follows:

Operating expenses excess revenues $ (282,770)
Interest revenue 43,218
Interest expense (182,394)
Disk cleanup Settlement (extraordinary item) 707,358
Increase in business-type activities net position $ 285412

Financial Analysis of the Town’s Funds

As noted earlier, the Town uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements.

Governmental funds
The governmental fund financial statements for the Town are provided on pages 13-16. The focus of the Town’s

governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources.
Such information is useful in assessing the Town’s financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance
may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the year.
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The general fund is the chief operating fund of the Town. As of June 30, 2016 the total unassigned fund balance
was $4,245,377 which is a decrease of $212,239 from the prior year. The key factors are:

Revenues and transfer collected more than budgeted $ 490,236
Excess appropriations unspent by departments 944,935
Increase in nonspendable fund balance (39,163)
Fund balance used to reduce tax rate (1,647,814)
Change in net tax revenue not collected within 60 days 39,567
Decrease in general fund unassigned fund balance £ _(212,239)

At the end of the current year, the governmental funds reported a combined ending fund balance of $10,699,841, a
decrease of $135,013, in comparison with the prior year. The general fund decreased $338,744 while the other
governmental funds increased by $203,731. Key elements of these changes are as follows:

General Fund

Revenues and transfers collected more than budgeted $ 490,236
Excess appropriations unspent by departments 944,935
Fund balance used to reduce tax rate (1,647,814)
Net change in Encumbrances 86,500
Deferred tax revenue not collected within 60 days 57,895
Change in allowance for uncollectible taxes (18,328)
Net change in Library 5,001
Net change in Expendable Trusts (260,309)
Net change in Heritage Commission 3,128
Net change in Head Chapel RNV, |
Total General Fund $ (338,744)
Other Governmental Funds
Conservation revenues $ 230,993
Conservation land purchases improvements (247,463)
Impact Fee revenues 129,564
Impact Fees Police equipment (7,113)
Impact Fees Route 3A Hackett Hill improvements (37,501)
Impact Fees Merrimack Riverfront Trail (40,854)
Impact Fees other purchases and refunds (7,667)
Solid Waste Disposal revenues 94,398
Net change in Recreation Revolving fund 2,342
Net change in Ambulance Revolving fund 65,961
Drug Forfeiture interest revenue 54
Net change in Police Special Details fund 12,110
Net change in Fire Special Details fund 1,668
Net change in Permanent fund 7.239
Total Other Governmental Funds $_ 203,731

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Difference between the original general fund operating budget, removing Sewer and Capital Reserve appropriations,
and the final amended budget was $42,878. The increase in budget represents transfers from the trust funds for

accounts that are no longer being utilized.

Significant budget to actual variances for the general fund revenues and expenditures include the following:

e Licenses and Permits revenues surpassed projections by $503,406 largely due to the increase in motor
vehicle registrations.

e Charges for Service revenues fell short of estimates by $54,231. Income from engineer’s positon was not
carned.

s  General government expenditures were under budget by $158,905. The Town obtained a new contacted
assessor resulting in a savings of approximately $10,000. There was also saving related to wages and
benefits due to staff turnover in Finance, Community Development and Tax Collections.
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e Public safety expenditures came in below budget by $412,371. 75% of that savings was in staff turnover in
the police department and 25% was in fire rescue department.

e Highway & Streets exceeded appropriations by $39,338. Council autherized an additional $524,751 for
paving and street repairs,

e Sanitation expenditures were under budget by $148,628. This is related to unfilled positions.

e Welfare retuned $98,946 of the budget. The improved economy has lowered the need for assistance.

e  Culture and recreation is returning $163,202 due to vacant potions in the parks division.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital assets

The Town’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of June 30, 2016
amounts to $33,757,893 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land,
construction in progress, buildings and improvements, vehicles and equipment, infrastructure and intangible assets.

Capital Assets

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Combined Totals

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Land S 2,434,929 5 2,333,441 S 300,000 S 300,000 S 2,734,929 S 2,633,441
Infrastructure 103,292,429 102,816,306 11,314,929 11,314,929 114,607,358 114,131,235
Land improvements 162,961 162,961 - . 162,961 162,961
Buildings and improvements 9,068,433 8,709,433 16,829,953 16,829,953 25,898,386 25,539,386
Vehicles and equipment 8,797,823 8,367,630 868,166 850,416 9,665,989 9,218,046
Canstruction in progress 284,527 172,071 307,618 307,618 592,145 479,689
Intangible assets 410,935 410,935 - - 410,935 410,935
Total 124,452,037 122,972,777 29,620,666 29,602,916 154,072,703 152,575,693
Accumulated depreciation (104,915,337) {103,676,630) (15,399,473) (14,686,899) (120,314,810) (118,363,529)
Total capital assets $ 19,536,700 S5 19,296,147 5 14,221,193  § 14,916,017 $ 33,757,893 S 34,212,164

Major capital asset activity for the governmental activities during the current year included the following:

" Land
Conservation purchased North Candia Road property adding $92,188.
Conservation purchased property on Kimball Road adding $9,300.

= Construction in progress
Petersbrook Field expansion added $100.
College Park Drive sidewalks $17,923.
Improvements to the Merrimack Riverfront Trail added $148,933.
Repairs to the Library elevator is underway adding $45,428.
Removed $99,928 for the completion of South Bow Road.

*  Building and improvements
New Flat Roof for 35 Main Street added $359,000.

= Vehicles and equipment
Purchased two 2016 police interceptor $60,356.
Purchased Kawasaki side car adding $14,433.
Purchased Police Tasers adding $21,689.
Purchased 2015 Ford F550 Plow truck for Public Works adding $70,279.
Purchased 2016 Mack plow tuck for Public Works adding $224,556.
Purchase Bobcat Planer for Public Works $18,004.
Two Scoreboards were donated to the Town adding $20,876.

= [nfrastructure
South Bow Road improvements added $476,123.

Major capital asset activity for the business-type activities during the current year included the following:

= Vehicles and equipment
Purchased 2016 Chevy truck adding $17,750.
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Debt administration

At the end of the current fiscal year, the Town had total outstanding debt of $5,081,459 which is related to the
wastewater treatment facility upgrades reported in the Sewer Fund and is repaid by the users of the sewer system.
An additional $247,272 is outstanding in capital lease obligations and another $115,000 for post-closure landfill
costs.

Additional information on the debt can be found in Note 12 in the Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.

Economic Factors and the Future:

According to the NH Employment Security, New Hampshire is emerging from the recession. Statistical information
available at the NH Employment Security website reports Merrimack County’s unemployment rate for October
2016 at 2.1%,(not seasonally adjusted) which is a decrease from a rate of 0.5% in October 2015. This compares to
the State’s average unemployment rate of 2.3% which continues to be below the national average rate of 4.7%.

For fiscal year 2017, the Town’s operating budget totaled $18,275,642, which represents $15,397,707 for the
general fund budget, $2,002,935 for Sewer operations, $490,000 for capital reserves, $60,000 from Solid Waste
Fund, $300,000 for road reconstruction and $25,000 for Conservation. This budget includes funding for the capital
improvement program and the necessary funding to maintain Town services at their current level with improved
services in the public safety.

Requests for Information:

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Town of Hookseit’s finances for all of the
citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and creditors. This financial report seeks to demonstrate the Town’s
accountability for the money it receives. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or
requests for additional information should be addressed to: Town of Hooksett, Finance Department, 35 Main Street,
Hooksett, NH 03106. The Finance Director can also be reached at (603) 485-2017 or at esoucie(@hooksett.org.
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EXHIBIT A

TOWN OF HOOKSETT, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2016

Governmental

Business-type

Activities Aclivities Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 21,392,676 $ 5,725,994 $ 27,118,670
Investiments 1,606,221 1,620,629 3,226,850
Taxes receivables (net) 4,457,145 - 4,457,145
Account receivables (net) 144,977 957,426 1,102,403
Intergovernmental receivable 60,370 - 60,370
Internal balances 4,010,242 (4,010,242) -
Prepaid items 39,717 - 39,717
Tax deeded property, subject o resale 634,446 - 634,446
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 125,249 - 125,249
Capital assets:
Land and construction in progress 2,719,456 607,618 3,327,074
Other capital assets, net of depreciation 16,817,244 13,613,575 30,430,819
Total assets 52,007,743 18,515,000 70,522,743
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Amounts related 1o pensions 1,328,978 39,850 1,368,828
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 311,494 117,172 428,666
Accrued salaries and benefits 517,748 7.643 525,391
Retainage payable - 196,241 196,241
Accrued interest payable 4,819 56,790 61,609
Intergovernmental payable 14,968,756 - 14,968,756
Escrow and performance deposits 116,761 43,183 159,944
Long-term liabilities:
Due within one year 96,127 304,115 400,242
Due in more than one year 15,204,204 5,245,220 20,449,424
Total liabilities 31,219,909 5,970,364 37,190,273
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue - future service agreements - 475,000 475,000
Unavailable revenue - donations 288,270 - 288,270
Amounts related to pensions 1,052,023 27,864 1,079,887
Total deferred inflows of resources 1,340,293 502,864 1,843,157
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 19,289,428 9,139,734 28,429,162
Restricted 2,193,722 - 2,193,722
Unrestricted (706,631) 2,941,888 2:235.257
Total net position 20,776,519 $ 12,081,622 $ 32,858,141

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

11

71



EXHIBIT B
TOWN OF HOOKSETT, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Statement of Activities
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

Program Revenues

Net (Expense) Revenue and

Charges Operating Change in Net Position
for Grants and Governmental Business-type
Expenses Services Contributions Activities Activities Total
Governmental activities:
General government $ 2,711,773 $ 120,219 $ - $ (2,591,554) $ - § (2,591,554)
Public safety 7,887,236 608,960 28,022 (7,250,254) - (7,250,254)
Highways and streets 2,334,022 10,075 300,776 (2,023,171) - (2,023,171)
Sanitation 1,129,467 93,739 - (1,035,728) - (1,035,728)
Welfare 117,551 - - (117,551) - (117,551)
Culture and recreation 1,191,234 87,571 - (1,103,663) - (1,103,663)
Conservation 199,739 - 64,717 (135,022) - (135,022)
Economic development 281 - - (281) - (281)
Total governmental activities 15.571.303 920,564 393,515 (14,257,224) - (14,257,224)
Business-type activities:
Sewer 2,344,014 1,866,618 - - (477,396) (477,396)
Total $ 17,915,317 $ 2,787,182 $ 393,515 (14,257,224) (477,396) (14,734,620)
General revenues:
Taxes:
Property 8,864,645 B 8,864,645
Other 454,220 B 454,220
Motor vehicle permit fees 3,480,591 B 3,480,591
Licenses and other fees 147,348 - 147,348
Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs 719,410 - 719,410
Contributions to permanent funds 3,020 - 3,020
Unrestricted investment earnings 40,899 43,218 84,117
Miscellaneous 444,583 12,232 456,815
Extraordinary item:
Disk cleanup settlement - 707,358 707,358
Total general revenues and special item 14,154,716 762,808 14,917,524
Change in net position (102,508) 285,412 182,904
Net position, beginning, as restated (see Note 18) 20,879,027 11,796,210 32,675,237

Net position, ending

$ 20,776,519 $ 12,081,622

$ 32,858,141

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT C-1
TOWN OF HOOKSETT, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Governmental Funds
Balance Sheet
June 30, 2016

Other Total
Governmental Governmental
General Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 18,021,938 $ 3,370,738 $ 21,392,676
Investments 1,385,145 221,076 1,606,221
Receivables:

Accounts (net) 44,061 100,916 144,977

Taxes 5,124,623 - 5,124,623

Intergovernmental 10,370 50,000 60,370

Interfund receivable 4,015,315 - 4,015,315
Voluntary tax liens 371,945 - 371,945
Voluntary tax liens reserved until collected (371,945) - (371,943)
Prepaid items 39,717 - 39,717
Tax deeded property, subject to resale 634,446 - 634,446
Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 125,249 - 125,249
Total assets $ 29,400,864 $ 3,742,730 $ 33,143,594
LIABILITIES

Accounts payable b 299,216 $ 12,278 $ 311,494
Accrued salaries and benefits 508,856 8,892 517,748
Intergovernmental payable 14,968,756 - 14,968,756
Interfund payable - 5,073 5,073
Escrow and performance deposits 116,761 - 116,761

Total liabilities 15,893,589 26,243 15,919,832

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue - Property taxes 6,235,651 - 6,235,651
Unavailable revenue - Donations 288,270 - 288,270

Total deferred inflows of resources 6,523,921 - 6,523,921

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable 674,163 204,033 878,196
Restricted 107,542 1,882,147 1,989,689
Committed 1,310,242 - 1,310,242
Assigned 646,030 1,630,307 2,276,337
Unassigned 4,245,377 - 4,245,377

Total fund balances 6,983,354 3,716,487 10,699,841
Total liabilities, deferred in[lows

of resources. and [und balances $ 29,400,864 $ 3,742,730 $ 33,143,594

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
13
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EXHIBIT C-2

TOWN OF HOOKSETT, NEW HAMPSHIRE

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2016

Total fund balances of governmental funds (Exhibit C-1)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net
Position are different because:

Capital asscts used in governmental activities are not financial resources,
therefore, are not reported in the funds.
Cost
Less accumulated depreciation

Certain items are not current financial resources in the governmental funds, but
instead are reported in the Statement of Net Position.
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions

Interfund receivables and payables between governmental funds are
climinated on the Statement of Net Position.
Receivables
Payables

Long term revenue (taxes) is not available to pay current-period expenditures and,
therefore, is recorded as deferred inflows of resources in the governmental funds.

Recording of allowance for an estimated uncollectible property tax reccivable

climinated as part of entry to remove long term revenuc (1axes) not available to pay

current-period expenditures.

Interest on long-term debt is not accrued in governmental funds.
Accrued interest payable

Long-term liabilitics are not due and payable in the current period,
therefore, are not reported in the funds.
Capital lcases
Accrued landfill postclosure care costs
Other postemployment benefits
Net pension liability

Net position of governmental activities (Exhibit A)

$ 124,452,037
__(104,915,337)
$ 1,328,978

o (1,052.023)

$

(5,073)
5.073

(247,272)
(115,000)
(1,769,646)

_(13,168.413)

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

14

74

$ 10,699,841

19,536,700

276,955

6,235,651

(667.478)

(4,819)

(15,300,331)

$ 20,776,519
e



For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

EXHIBIT C-3
TOWN OF HOOKSETT, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Governmental Funds
Stratement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

REVENUES
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Miscellaneous
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government
Public safety
Highways and streets
Sanitation
Welfare
Culture and recreation
Conservation
Economic development
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Translers out
Total other linancing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

IFund balances. beginning
Fund balances. ending

Other Total
Governmental Governmental
General Funds Funds

$ 9,551,459 $ 124,000 b 9,675,459
3,632,406 13,289 3,645,695
1,024,763 50,000 1,074,763
96,293 746,782 843,075
440,089 146,308 586,397
14,745,010 1,080,379 15,825,389
2,912,488 - 2,912,488
7,651,243 496,618 8,147,861
2,045,930 41,879 2,087,809
1,083,061 - 1,083,061
117,551 - 117,551
1,177,023 85,615 1,262,638
101,250 247,463 348,713
281 - 281
15,088,827 871,575 15,960,402
(343,817) 208,804 (135,013)
5,073 40,854 45,927
- (45,927) (45,927)

5,073 (5,073) -
(338,744) 203,731 (135,013)
7,322,098 3,512,756 10,834,854
$ 6,983,354 $ 3,716,487 $ 10,699,841

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT C-4
TOWN OF HOOKSETT, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

Net change in fund balances of governmental funds (Exhibit C-3) $ (135,013)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities
are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. In the Statement
of Activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as
depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capitalized capital outlay exceeded
depreciation expense in the current period.

Capitalized capital outlay $ 1,579,188
Depreciation expense (1,238,707)
340,481
Governmental funds report pension contributions as expenditures. However, in
the Statement of Activities, the cost of pension benefits earned net of employee
contributions is reported as pension expenses.
Change in contributions subsequent to the measurement date $  (56,988)
Changes in proportion (485,109}
Change in differences between expected and actual experience (288,908)
Change in net difference between projected and actual investment
carnings on pension plan investments 1,315,824
Change in net pension liability (257,224)
227,535
The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital
assets (i.e. sales and disposals) that increase net position. (99,928)
Transfers in and out between governmental funds are eliminated
on the Statement of Activities.
Transfers in $ (45,927}
Transfers out 45,927
Revenue in the Statement of Activities that does not provide current financial
resources is not reported as revenue in the governmental funds.
Change in deferred tax revenue for receivables not collected
within 60 days of fiscal year-end $ (57,895)
Change in allowance for an estimated uncollectible property
tax receivable 18.328
Change in deferred tax revenue for taxes levied prior to their
due date (317,027)
(356,594)
The repayment of principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial
resources of governmental [unds, but has no effect on net position. 78,962
Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the
use of current financial resources, and therefore, are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds.
Increase in accrued interest expense $ 3.418
Increase in postemployment benefits payable (176.369)
Decease in acerued landfill postclosure care costs 15.000
(157,951)
Changes in net position of governmental activities (Exhibit B) $ (102,508)

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT D

TOWN OF HOOKSETT, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

General Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

Variance
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES
Taxes $ 9,544,099 $ 9,544,099 $ 9,511,892 $ (32,207)
Licenses and permits 3,129,000 3,129,000 3,632,406 503,406
Intergovernmental 997,742 997,742 1,024,763 27,021
Charges for services 150,524 150,524 96,293 (54,231)
Investment earnings -
Misceltaneous 310,751 310,751 357,006 46,255
Total revenues 14,132,116 14,132,116 14,622,360 490,244
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 2,655,055 2,697,933 2,539,028 158,905
Public safety 8,093,062 8,093,062 7,680,691 412,371
Highways and streets 1,873,666 1,873,666 1,913,004 (39,338)
Sanitation 1,077,689 1,077,689 929,061 148,628
Health 2,000 2,000 - 2,000
Welfare 216,497 216,497 117,551 98,946
Culture and recreation 1,295,209 1,295,209 1,132,007 163,202
Conservation 101,250 101,250 101,250 -
Economic development 500 500 281 219
Debt service:
Interest I 1 - 1
Capital outlay | | - 1
Total expenditures 15,314,930 15,357,808 14,412,873 944,935
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (1,182,814) (1,225,692) 209,487 1,435,179
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 5,000 47,878 47,870 8)
Transfers out (470,000) (470,000) (470,000) -
Total other financing sources (uses) (465,000) (422,122) (422,130) (8)
Net change in fund balances $ (1,647,814) $ (1,647,814) (212,643) $ 1,435,171
Increase in nonspendable fund balance (39,163)
Unassigned fund balance, beginning 5,263,685
Unassigned fund balance, ending $ 5,011,879

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT E-1
TOWN OF HOOKSETT, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Proprietary Fund
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2016

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments

Accounts receivable

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and building improvements
Vehicles and equipment
Infrastructure

Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Amounts related to pensions

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries and benefits
Interfund payable
Retainage payable
Accrued interest payable
Escrow and performance deposits
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year:
Notes
Due in more than one year:
Noles
Compensated absences
Other postemployment benefits
Net pension liability
Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue - future service agreements
Amounts related to pensions

Total deferred inflows of resources

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

Total net position

Business-type
Activities

Enterprise Fund

(Sewer)

$ 5725994
1,620,629
957,426

300,000
307,618

9,948,098
263,242
3,402,235

22,525,242

39,850

117,172
7,643
4,010,242
196,241
56,790
43,183

304,115

4,777,344
30,547
63,520

373,809

9,980,606

475,000
27.864
502,864

9,139,734
2,941,888

5 _12.081622

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT E-2
TOWN OF HOOKSETT, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Proprietary Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

Business-type

Enterprise Fund
(Sewer)
Operating revenues:
User charges $ 1,866,618
Miscellaneous 12,232
Total operating revenues 1,878,850
Operating expenses:

Salaries and wages 626,283

Contractual services 691,487

Materials and supplies 205,544

Operation and maintenance 27,810

Depreciation and amortization 610,496

Total operating expenses 2,161,620
Operating loss (282,770)
Nonoperating revenue (expenses);

Interest revenue 43,218

Interest expense (182,394)

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (139,176)
Extraordinary item:

Settlement revenue 707,358
Change in net position 285,412
Net position, beginning 11,796,210
Net position, ending $ 12,081,622

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT E-3
TOWN OF HOOKSETT, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Proprietary Fund
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers
Cash paid to suppliers and employees
Net cash provided by operating activitics

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Principal paid on bonds
Acquisition and construction of fixed assets
Interest paid
Net cash used by capital and related financing activities

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:
Transfer from general fund

Cash flows from investing activities:
Sale of investments
Interest received
Net cash used by investing activities

Net increase in cash
Cash, beginning
Cash, ending

1,860,833

(1,523,926)

336,907

(298,767)
(17,750)
(182,394)

(498,911)

4,010,242

1,728,744
43,218

1,771,962

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Operating loss

$

Adjustments to reconcile operating gain to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation expense

Increase in intergovernmental and other receivables
Decrease in accounts payable

Decrease in accrued salaries and benefits

Increase in retainage payable

Decrease in accrued interest payable

Increase in escrow and performance deposits
Decrease in compensated absences

Increase in other postemployment benefits

Decrease in net pension liability and deferred inflows and outflows of resources related to pensions

Decrease in deferred inflows of resources
Total adjustments

Net cash provided by operating activities

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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5,620,200
105,794

5,725,994

(282,770)

712,574
(21,445)
(61,448)
(1,969)
308
(2,674)
13,210
(5.087)
6,132
(10,142)
(9,782)
619,677

336,907



EXHIBIT F
TOWN OF HOOKSETT, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Fiduciary Funds
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2016

Agency
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 70,833
Investments 2,073,842
Total assets 2,144,675
LIABILITIES
Intergovernmental payable 1,700,772
Due to others 443,903
Total liabilities 2,144,675
NET POSITION $ =

Held in trust for specific purposes

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF HOOKSETT, NEW HAMPSHIRE
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30, 2016
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TOWN OF HOOKSETT, NEW HAMPSHIRE
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Town of Hooksett, New Hampshire (the Town), have been prepared in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America for governmental units as prescribed by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and other authoritative sources.

The more significant of the Town’s accounting policies arc described below.

1-A Reporting Entity

The Town of Hooksett is a municipal corporation governed by an elected 9-member Town Council and Town Administrator. In
evaluating how to define the Town for financial reporting purposes, management has considered all potential component units.
The decision to include a potential component unit in the reporting entity is made by applying the criteria set forth by the GASB.
The Town has no component units to include in its reporting entity.

1-B Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) report information
on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been
removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental
revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The Statement of Net Position presents the financial position of the governmental activities of the Town at year-end. This
statement includes all of the Town’s assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and net
position.

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment is offset by
program revenues, Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues
include (1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided
by a given function or segment and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are
reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even though the latter
are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental funds and major individual
enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

Government resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes for which they are to be
spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled.

1-C Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis
of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements, except for agency funds which do not have a
measurement focus. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when liability is incurred, regardless of the
timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar
items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are
considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the
current period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the
end of the current fiscal period, except for State shared revenue, reimbursement-based grants and interest which use one year.
Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service
expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when
payment is due. Property taxes, licenses and permits, intergovernmental revenue, and interest associated with the current fiscal
period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. All
other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the government.

23

83



TOWN OF HOOKSETT, NEW HAMPSHIRE
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30, 2016

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses
generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal
ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the enterprise fund are charges for services. Operating expenses for the
enterprise funds include depreciation on capital assets, labor, supplies, and contracted services. All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and receives essentially equal value, is recorded on the
accrual basis when the exchange takes place. On a modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded in the year in which the resources
are measurable and become available.

Non-exchange transactions, in which the Town receives value without directly giving equal value in return, include property
taxes, grants, entitlement, and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the year for which
the tax is levied. Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized in the year in which all eligibility requirements
have been satisfied. Eligibility requirements include timing requirements, which specify the year when the resources are
required to be used or the year when use is first permitted, matching requirements, in which the Town must provide local
resources to be used for a specific purpose, and expenditure requirements, in which the resources are provided to the Town on a
reimbursement basis. On a modified accrual basis, revenue from non-exchange transactions must also be available before it can
be recognized.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect reported amounts of assets, deferred
inflows/outflows, and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during
the reporting period. Actual resuits could differ from those estimates.

The Town reports the following major governmental fund:

General Fund — all general revenues and other receipts that are not allocated by law or contracted agreement to another
fund are accounted for in this fund. This fund accounts for general operating expenditures, fixed charges, and the capital
improvement costs that are not reported in other funds.

All the governmental funds not meeting the criteria established for major funds are presented in the other governmental column
of the fund financial statements.

The Town reports the following major proprietary fund:
Sewer Fund — accounts for the operation of the sewer treatment plant, pumping stations, and sewer lines.
Additionally, the Town reports the following fund types:

Special Revenue Funds - are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally restricted to
expenditures for specified purposes.

Permanent Fund - is used to record activity of legal trusts for which the interest on the corpus provides funds for the
Town’s cemetery operations.

Fiduciary Funds — The Town also reports the following fiduciary fund:
Agency Fund - used to account for assets held in a trustee or agency capacity on behalf of outside parties, including other
governments.

1-D Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Town considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.
Deposits with financial institutions consist primarily of demand deposits, certificates of deposits, and savings accounts. A cash
pool is maintained that is available for use by all funds. Each fund’s portion of this pool is reflected on the combined financial
statements under the caption “cash and cash equivalents.”
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The treasurer is required to deposit such moneys in solvent banks in state or the Public Deposit Investment Poo! pursuant to New
Hampshire RSA 383:22. Funds may be deposited in banks outside of the state if such banks pledge and deliver to a third party
custodial bank or the Federal Reserve Bank, collateral security for such deposits, United States government or government
agency obligations or obligations to the State of New Hampshire in value at least equal to the amount of the deposit in each case.

1-E Statement of Cash Flows

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the Town considers all highly liquid investments (including restricted assets) with
a maturity when purchased of three months or less and all local government investment pools to be cash equivalents.

1-F Investments
State statutes place certain limitations on the nature of deposits and investments available as follows:

New Hampshire law authorizes the Town to invest in the following type of obligations:

*  Obligations of the United States government,

»  The public deposit investment pool established pursuant to RSA 383:22,

*  Savings bank deposits,

+  Certificates of deposit and repurchase agreements of banks incorporated under the laws of the State of New
Hampshire or in banks recognized by the State treasurer.

Any person who directly or indirectly receives any such funds or moneys for deposit or for investment in securities of any kind
shall, prior to acceptance of such funds, make available at the time of such deposit or investment an option to have such funds
secured by collateral having a value at least equal to the amount of such funds. Such collateral shall be segregated for the
exclusive benefit of the Town. Only securities defined by the bank commissioner as provided by rules adopted pursuant to
RSA 386:57 shall be eligible to be pledged as collateral.

Investments for the Town are reported at fair value generally based on quoted market prices.

1-G Receivables

Receivables recorded in the financial statements represent amounts due to the Town at June 30. They are aggregated into a
single accounts receivable (net of allowance for uncollectibles) line for certain funds and aggregated columns. They consist
primarily of taxes, billing for charges, and other user fees.

1-H Property Taxes

Property tax billings occur semi-annually and are based on the assessed inventory values as of April 1 of each year. Warrants for
the year were issued on May 27, 2015 and November 16, 2015, and due on July 1, 2015 and December 16, 2015, respectively.
Interest accrues at a rate of 12% on bills outstanding after the due date and 18% on tax liens outstanding,.

In connection with the setting of the tax rate, Town officials, with the approval of the Department of Revenue Administration,
establish and raise through taxation an amount for tax abatement and refunds, known as overlay. This amount is reported as a
reduction in tax revenue and is adjusted by management for any reserve for uncollectable at year end. The property taxes
collected by the Town include taxes levied for the State of New Hampshire, Hooksett School District, and Merrimack County,
which are remitted to these entities as required by law.

The Town net assessed valuation as of April 1, 2015 utilized in the setting of the tax rate was as follows:

For the New Hampshire education tax $ 1.517,829,301
For all other taxes $ 1,583,357,301
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The tax rates and amounts assessed for the year ended June 30, 2016 were as follows:

Per $1,000 Property
of Assessed Taxes
Valuation Assessed
Municipal portion $ 6.04 $ 9,557,561
School portion:
State of New Hampshire 2.51 3,815,350
Local 12.94 20,495,782
County portion 3.23 5,107,424
Total § 2472 $ 38,976,117

1-I Interfund Activities
Interfund activities are reported as follows:

Interfund Receivables and Payables — Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as “due to/from other funds” (i.e. the current portion of interfund loans).
Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business activities are reported in the government-
wide financial statements as “internal balances.” Interfund receivables and payables between funds are eliminated in the
Statement of Net Position.

Interfund Transfers — Interfund transfers represent flows of assets without equivalent flows of assets in return and without a
requirement for repayment. In governmental funds, transfers are reported as other financing uses in the funds making the
transfers and other financing sources in the funds receiving the transfers. In the government-wide financial statements, all
interfund transfers between individual governmental funds have been eliminated.

1-J Prepaid Items

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items in both
government-wide and fund financial statements, and expenses as the items are used.

1-K Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar
items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities column in the government-wide financial
statements.

Capital assets are defined by the Town as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $10, 000 and an estimated minimum
useful life in excess of three years. As the Town constructs or acquires additional capital assets each year, they are capitalized
and reported at historical cost. The reported value excludes normal maintenance and repairs which are essentially amounts spent
in relation to capital assets that do not increase the capacity or efficiency of the item or increase its estimated useful life.
Donated capital assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation.

Land and construction in progress are not depreciated. The other property, plant, and equipment of the Town are depreciated
using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Years

Governmental activities:

Land improvements 10-20

Buildings and building improvements 20-40

Vehicles and equipment 5-15

Infrastructure 10-20

Intangible assets if
Business-type activities:

Buildings and building improvements 10-26

Vehicles and equipment 5-21

Infrastructure 10-99
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In the fund financial statements, capital assets used in governmental fund operations are accounted for as capital outlay
expenditures of the governmental fund upon acquisition. Capital assets are not capitalized and related depreciation is not
reported in the fund financial statements.

I-L Restricted Assets

Cash received for developer’s performance bond deposits and unpaid retainage balances are classified as restricted assets on the
balance sheet because their use is designated for a specific purpose and therefore not available for immediate and general use by
the Town.

1-M Deferred Qutflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the Statements of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources.
This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to
a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense) until then.

In addition to liabilities, the Statements of Net Position and Balance Sheet will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement clement, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net
position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.

1-N Long-term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-term debt and
other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or
proprietary fund Statement of Net Position.

1-0 Compensated Absences

The Town’s policy allows certain employees to earn varying amounts of vacation and compensatory time based on the
employee’s length of employment. Upon separation from service, employces are paid in full for any accrued leave earned as set
forth by personnel policy. The liability for compensated absences includes salary-related benefits and is recorded the
governmental funds as it is accrued.

I-P Claims and Judgments

Claims and judgments are recorded as liabilities if all the conditions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board
pronouncements are met. Claims and judgments that would normally be liquidated with expendable available financial resources
are recorded during the year as expenditures in the governmental funds. Claims and judgments are recorded in the government-
wide financial statements as expense when the related liabilities are incurred. There were no significant claims or judgments at
year-end.

I-Q Defined Benefit Pension Plan

GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27 and as
amended by GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date requires
participating employers to recognize their proportionate share of collective net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources,
deferred inflows of resources, and pension expense, and schedules have been prepared to provide employers with their calculated
proportionate share of these amounts. The collective amounts have been allocated based on employer contributions during the
respective fiscal years. Contributions from employers are recognized when legally due, based on statutory requirements.

The schedules prepared by New Hampshire Retirement System, and audited by the plan’s independent auditors, require
management to make a number of estimates and assumptions relating to the reported amounts. Due to the inherent nature and
uncertainty of these estimates, actual results could differ, and the differences may be material.
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1-R Net Position/Fund Balances
Government-wide Statements — Equity is classified as net position and displayed in three components:

a) Net investment in capital assets — Consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, and reduced by the
outstanding balances of notes or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement
of those assets.

b) Restricted net position — Consists of net position with constraints placed on use either by (1) external groups such as
creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or (2) law through constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation.

¢) Unrestricted net position — All other net position that does not meet the definition of “restricted” or “net investment in
capital assets.”

Fund Balance Classifications - The fund balance of governmental funds is reported in five categories based on the nature of any
limitations requiring the use of resources for specific programs. The Town itself can establish limitations on the use of resources
through either a commitment (committed fund balance) or an assignment (assigned fund balance). The classifications used in the
Town’s governmental fund financial statements are as follows:

Nonspendable — This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in spendable
form; or (b) are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Restricted — This classification includes amounts for which constraints have been placed on the use of the resources
either (a) externally imposed by creditors (such as through a debt covenant), grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations of other governments; or (b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed — This classification includes amounts that can be used only for specific purposes pursuant to constraints
imposed by formal action of the legislative body (Town Meeting). These amounts cannot be used for any other purpose
unless the legislative body removes or changes the specified use by taking the same type of action that was employed
when the funds were initially committed. This classification also includes contractual obligations to the extent that
existing resources have been specifically committed for use in satisfying those contractual requirements.

Assigned — This classification includes amounts that are constrained by the Town’s intent to be used for a specific
purpose but are neither restricted nor committed. This intent can be expressed by the Board of Selectmen through the
budgetary process.

Unassigned — This classification includes the residual fund balance for the general fund.

When multiple net position/fund balance classifications are available for use, it is the Town’s policy to utilize the most restricted
balances first, then the next most restricted balance as needed. When components of unrestricted fund balance are used,
committed fund balance is depleted first followed by assigned fund balance. Unassigned fund balance is applied last.

In the general fund, the Town strives to maintain a minimum unassigned fund balance to be used for unanticipated emergencies
of approximately 5% of the general fund’s annual budget, including Town, School, and County appropriations. This target
balance should be achieved over the next four fiscal years.

NOTE 2 —STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

2-A Budgetary Information

General governmental revenues and expenditures accounted for in budgetary funds are controlled by a formal integrated
budgetary accounting system in accordance with various legal requirements which govern the Town’s operations. At its annual
meeting, the Town adopts a budget for the current year for the general and sewer funds, Except as reconciled below, the budget
was adopted on a basis consistent with US generally accepted accounting principles.

28

88



TOWN OF HOOKSETT, NEW HAMPSHIRE
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30, 2016

Management may transfer appropriations between operating categories as deemed necessary, but expenditures may not legally
exceed budgeted appropriations in total. All annual appropriations lapse at year-end unless encumbered.

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and continuing appropriations (certain projects and specific
items not fully expended at year-end) are recognized, is employed in the governmental funds. Encumbrances are not the
equivalent of expenditures, and are therefore, reported as part of the assigned fund balance at year-end, and are carried forward to
supplement appropriations of the subsequent year.

State statutes require balanced budgets, but provide for the use of beginning unassigned fund balance to achieve that end. For
the fiscal year 2016, $1,647,814 of the beginning general fund unassigned fund balance was applied for this purpose.

2-B Budgetary Reconciliation to GAAP Basis

The Town employs certain accounting principles for budgetary reporting purposes that differ from a GAAP basis. The
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis presents the actual results to provide a
comparison with the budget. The major difference between the budgetary basis and GAAP basis is as follows:

Encumbrances outstanding at year-end do not represent GAAP expenditures or liabilities, but represent budgetary
accounting controls. Governmental fund budgets are maintained on the modified accrual basis of accounting except that
budgetary basis expenditures include purchase orders and commitments (encumbrances) for goods or services not
received at year-end. Encumbrances are recorded to reserve a portion of fund balance in the governmental fund types
for commitments for which no liability exists.

The following reconciles the general fund budgetary basis to the GAAP basis:

Revenues and other financing sources:
Per Exhibit D (budgetary basis) $ 14,670,230
Adjustment:
Basis difference:
GASB Statement No. 54:

To record miscellaneous income of the blended funds 83.083
To eliminate transfers between blended funds (42.797)
Change in deferred tax revenue relating to 60-day revenue recognition 57.895
Change in allowance for uncollectible property tax receivable (18,328)
Per Exhibit C-3 (GAAP basis) $ 14,750,083
Expenditures and other financing uses:
Per Exhibit D (budgetary basis) $ 14,882.873
Adjustment:
Basis differences:
Encumbrances, beginning 540.186
[Encumbrances, ending (626,686)
GASB Statement No. 54:
To record expenditures of the blended funds 765.954
To eliminate transfers between general and expendable trust funds (516.378)
To recognize transfer between expendable trust and nonmajor funds 42.878
Per Exhibit C-3 (GAAP basis) $ 15,088,827
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DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

NOTE 3 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The Town’s deposits and certificates of deposit are entirely covered by federal depository insurance (FDIC) or by collateral held
by the Town’s agent in the Town’s name, The FDIC currently insures the first $250,000 of the Town’s deposits at each financial
institution, per case custodian. Deposit balances over $250,000 are insured by the coilateral. As of year-end, the carrying
amount of the Town’'s deposits was $27,314,752 and the bank balances totaled $26,464,415, Petty cash totaled $1,610. The
Town held $2,008,387 in certificates of deposit at various banks at year-end.

Cash and cash equivalents reconciliation:

Cash per Statement of Net Position (Exhibit A) $ 27,243,919
Cash per Statement of Net Position-Fiduciary Funds (Exhibit F) 70,833
Total cash and cash equivalents $ 27,314,752

NOTE 4 — INVESTMENTS

Note 1-F describes statutory requirements covering the investment of the Town funds. The Town also maintains a portfolio of
short maturity investments that are reported at fair value, based on quoted market prices. The Town’s fiscal agent or custodian
provides the fair value of all intermediate maturity investments.

At June 30, 2016, this Town had the following investments and maturities:

Governmental Business-type Fiduciary
Activities Activities Funds Fair Value
Investments type:
New Hampshire Public Deposit Investment Pool $ 48,767 $ - $ 443,903 $ 492,670
Equity funds 285,910 245,067 246,475 777,452
Fixed income funds 1,271,544 1,375,562 1,383,464 4,030,570
Total fair value 5 1,606,221 $ 1,620,629 $ 2,073,842 $ 5,300,692

Interest Rate Risk — This is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment,
Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates.
The Town’s investment policy limits investment maturities to 180 days or less, as a means of managing its exposure to fair value
losses arising from increasing interest rates.

Credit Risk — State law limits investments as explained in Note 1-F. The Town’s investment policy addresses credit risk by
limiting the Town’s exposure and concentrating its investments in safety securities. In addition, the Town strives to diversify its
investment portfolio in order to minimize potential losses, and actively monitors its investment portfolio holdings for ratings
changes as well as changing economic and market conditions.

Custodial Credit Risk — This is the risk that in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g. broker/dealer) to honor a
transaction, the Town will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of
an outside party.

Investment reconciliation:

Investments per Statement of Net Position (Exhibit A) $ 3,226,850

Investments per Statement of Net Position-Fiduciary Funds (Exhibit F) 2,073,842

Total investments $ 5,300,692
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NOTE 5 - TAXES RECEIVABLE

Taxes receivable represent the amount of current and prior year taxes which have not been collected as of June 30, 2016. The
amount has been reduced by an allowance for an estimated uncollectible amount of $667,478. Taxes receivable by year are as
follows:

As reported on:

Exhibit A Exhibit C-1
Property:
Levy of 2016 $ 3,631,095 $ 3,631,095
Unredeemed (under tax lien):
Levy of 2015 542,694 542,694
Levy of 2014 315,437 315.437
Levies of 2013 and prior 629,717 629.717
Yield 114 114
Excavation 5,566 5.566
Less: allowance for estimated uncollectible taxes* (667,478) -
Net taxes receivable $ 4,457,145 $ 5,124,623

*The allowance for uncollectible property taxes is not recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting (Exhibit C-1 and C-3) due to the 60 day rule as
explained in Note 1-C. However, the allowance is recognized under the full accrual basis of accounting (Exhibits A and B).

NOTE 6 - OTHER RECEIVABLES

Receivables at June 30, 2016, consisted of accounts (billings for police details, sewer, ambulance, and other user charges) and
intergovernmental amounts arising from grants. Receivables are recorded on the Town’s financial statements to the extent that
the amounts are determined to be material and substantiated not only by supporting documentation, but also by a reasonable,
systematic method of determining their existence, completeness, valuation, and collectability.

Receivables as of June 30, 2016 for the Town’s individual major fund and nonmajor funds in the aggregate, including applicable
allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

Business-type

Governmental Activities Activities
General Nonmajor Sewer
Fund IFunds Total FFund
Receivables:

Accounts $ 44,061 $ 569,153 $ 613,214 $ 957,426
Intergovernmental 10,370 50,000 60,370 -
Liens 371,945 - 371,945 -
Gross receivables 426,376 619,153 1,045,529 957,426
Less: allowance for uncollectibles (371.945) (468,237) (840,182) -
Net total receivables $ 54431 $ 150916 $ 205,347 $ 957,426

NOTE 7 - INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS

Interfund Balances - The composition of interfund balances as of June 30, 2016 is as follows:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
General Sewer proprietary fund $ 4,010,242
General Nonmajor 5,073

$ 4,015,315

The outstanding balances among funds result mainly from the time lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods and services
are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system, and (3) payments
between funds are made.
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Interfund Transfers - The composition of interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2016 is as follows:

Transfers In:

General Nonmajor
Fund Fund Total
Transfers out:
Nonmajor funds $ 5,073 $ 40,854 $ 45,927

During the year, transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund with collection authority to the fund responsible for
expenditure and (2) move general fund resources to provide an annual subsidy.

NOTE 8 — CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2016 consisted of the following:

Balance, Balance,
beginning Additions Disposals ending
Governmental activities:
At cost:
Not being depreciated:
Land $ 2,333,441 $ 101,488 $ - $ 2,434,929
Construction in progress 172,071 212,384 (99,928) 284,527
Total capital assets not being depreciated 2,505,512 313,872 (99,928) 2,719,456
Being depreciated:
Land improvements 162,961 - - 162,961
Buildings and building improvements 8,709,433 359,000 - 9,068,433
Vehicles and equipment 8,367,630 430.193 - 8,797,823
Infrastructure 102,816,306 476,123 - 103,292,429
Intangible assets 410,935 - - 410,935
Total capital assets being depreciated 120,467,265 1,265,316 - 121,732,581
Total all capital assets 122,972,777 1,579.188 (99.928) 124,452,037
Less accumulated depreciation:
Land improvements (61,877) (14.428) - (76,305)
Buildings and building improvements (4,499,713) (201,602) - (4,701,315)
Vehicles and equipment (5,583,262) (472.862) - (6,056,124)
Infrastructure (93,492,870) (520,396) - (94,013,266)
Intangible assets (38,908) (29,419) - (68,327)
Total accumulated depreciation (103,676,630) (1,238,707) - (104,915,337)
Net book value, capital assets being depreciated 16,790,635 26,609 - 16,817,244
Net book value, all governmental activities capital assets $ 19,296,147 $  340.481 $ (99.928) $ 19,536,700
Business-type activities:
Al cost:
Not being depreciated:
Land $ 300,000 $ - $ - $ 300,000
Construction in progress 307,618 - - 307,618
Total capital assets not being depreciated 607.618 - - 607,618
Being depreciated:
Buildings and building improvements 16,829,953 - - 16,829,953
Vehicles and equipment 850,416 17.750 - 868,166
Infrastructure 11,314,929 - - 11,314,929
Total capital assets being depreciated 28.995.298 17.750 - 29,013,048
Total all capital assets 29.602.916 17.750 - 29,620,666
(Conlinued)
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Capital assets continued:

Balance, Balance,
beginning Additions Disposals ending
Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and building improvements (6,355,605) (526,250) - (6,881,855)
Vehicles and equipment (558,391) (46,533) - (604,924)
Infrastructure (7,772,903) (139.791) - (7,912,694)
Total accumulated depreciation (14,686,899) (712,574) - (15,399.473)
Net book value, capital assets being depreciated 14,308,399 (694,824) - 13613575
Net book value, all business-type activities capital assets § 14,916,017 $  (694.824) $ - $ 14,221,193

Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the Town based on their usage of the related assets. The amounts allocated to

cach function are as follows:

Governmental activities:
General government
Public safety
Highways and streets
Sanitation
Culture and recreation
Total depreciation expense

Business-type activities:
Sewer

NOTE 9 - DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

¥ 41,294
387.636
681,991

67,829
59,957

S 712574

Deferred outflows of resources as of June 30, 2016 of $1,328,978 in the governmental activities and $39,850 in the business-type

activities consist of amounts related to pensions.

Deferred inflows of resources as of June 30, 2016 consist of the following:

Amounts related to pensions

Donations reccived in advance of eligible expenditures being made

Future service agreements received in advance of eligible expenditures occurring
Property taxes levied prior to their due date

Property tax receivables not collected within 60 days of the end of the fiscal year

NOTE 10 - INTERGOVERNMENTAL PAYABLES

Amounts due to other governments of $16,669,528 at June 30, 2016 consist of the following:

General fund:
Property taxes levied prior to their due date and payable to:
Merrimack County
Hooksett School District
Miscellaneous fees due to the State of New Hampshire

Iune portion of retirement payables due to New Hampshire Retirement System

Total intergovernmental payables due from the general fund
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Entity-wide Basis Governmental
Governmental Business-type Funds
Activities Activities General
$ 1,052,023 $ 27,864 $ -

288,270 - 288,270

> 475,000 -
- - 4,801,671
- - 1,433,980
$  1.340,293 $ 502,864 $ 6,523,921
$ 2,565,944
12,213,791
1,368
187653
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TOWN OF HOOKSETT, NEW HAMPSHIRE
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30, 2016

Intergovernmental payables continued:

Agency fund:
Balance of trust funds belonging to the:

Hooksett School District 432,262
Central Hooksett Water Precinct 585,458
Hooksett Village Water Precinct 683,052
Total intergovernmental payables due from the agency fund 1,700,772

Total intergovernmental payables due $ 16,669,528

NOTE 11 - CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS

The Town has entered into certain capital lease agreements under which the related equipment will become the property of the
Town when all the terms of the lease agreements are met.
Present Value
Standard of Remaining
Interest Payments as of

Rate June 30, 2016

Capital lease obligations:
Tanker truck 2.66% $ 79,695
Excavator 2.87% 167,577
Total capital lease obligations $ 247,272

Leased equipment under capital leases, included in capital assets, is as follows:

Governmental
Activities
Equipment:

Tanker truck b 348,000

Excavator 234,795

Total equipment 582,795
Less: accumulated depreciation (136,824)

Total capital lease equipment $ 445,971

The annual requirements to amortize the capital leases payable as of June 30, 2016, including interest payments, are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending Governmental
June 30, Activities
2017 $ 88,056
2018 67,473
2019 36,456
2020 36,456
2021 36,455
Total requirements 264,896
Less: interest (17,624)
Present value of remaining payments $ 247,272

Amortization of lease equipment under capital assets is included with depreciation expense.
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AS OF AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 12 — LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Changes in the Town’s long-term liabilities consisted of the following for the year ended June 30, 2016:

Batance Balance Due Within
July 1, 2015 Reductions June 30, 2016 One Year
Governmental activities:
Capital leases $ 326,234 $ (78,962) § 247272 $ 81,127
Accrued landfill postclosure care costs 130,000 (15,000) 115,000 15,000
Total long-term liabilities $ 456,234 $ (93,962) $ 362,272 $ 96,127
Business-type activities:
Notes payable $  5.380.226 $ (298.767) $ 5,081,459 $ 304,115
Compensated absences 35,634 (5,087) 30,547 -
Total long-term liabilities $ 5,415,860 $ (303.854) § 5,112,006 $ 304,115

Long-term notes are comprised of the following:
Outstanding at

Original Issue Maturity Interest June 30, Current
Amount Date Date Rate % 2016 Portion
Business-type activities:
Notes payable:
Water treatment facility upgrade $ 3,500,000 2010 2030 3.70% $ 2,751,606 $ 148,792
Water treatment facility upgrade $ 3,106,470 2012 2031 3.10% 2,329,853 155,323
Total $ 5,081,459 $ 304,115

The annual requirements to amortize all business-type activities general obligation notes outstanding as of June 30, 2016,
including interest payments, are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending

June 30, Principal Interest Total
2017 $ 304,115 $ 174,899 $ 479,014
2018 309,662 164.531 474,193
2019 315,415 153,956 469,371
2020 321,384 143,166 464,550
2021 327,574 132,154 459,728

2022-2026 1,739,119 487.206 2,226,325
2027-2031 1,764,190 170,390 1,934,580
Totals $ 5,081,459 $ 1.426.302 $ 6,507,761

Acerued Landfill Postelosure Care Costs — The Town ceased operating its landfill in 1999. Federal and State laws and
regulations require that the Town perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the landfill site after closure. A
liability has been recognized based on the future postclosure care costs that will be incurred. The recognition of these landfill
postclosure care costs is based on the amount of the landfill used through the end of the year. The estimated liability for landfill
postclosure care costs has a balance of $115,000 as of June 30, 20]16. The estimated total cost of the landfill postclosure care is
based on the amount that would be paid if all equipment, facilities, and services required to close, monitor, and maintain the
landfill were acquired as of June 30, 2016. However, the actual cost of postclosure care may be higher or lower due to inflation,
changes in technology, or changes in landfill laws and regulations.

The Town has established a capital reserve fund for landfill postclosure care costs. At June 30, 2016, the balance in the landfill
capital reserve is $73,047.

Debt Authorized and Unissued — Debt authorized and unissued in the amount of $14,424 as of June 30, 2016 was for sewer
construction.
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NOTE 13 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

Plan Description: The New Hampshire Retirement System (NHRS or the System) is a public employee retirement system that
administers one cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan (Pension Plan), a component unit of the State of
New Hampshire, as defined in Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting for
Pension Plans — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 25. The Pension Plan was established in 1967 by RSA 100-A:2 and is
qualified as a tax exempt organization under Sections 401(a) and 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Pension Plan is a
contributory, defined benefit plan providing service, disability, death and vested retirement benefits to members and their
beneficiaries. Substantially all full-time state employees, public school teachers and administrators, permanent firefighters and
permanent police officers with in the State are eligible and required to participate in the Pension Plan. The System issues a
publically available financial report that may be obtained by writing the New Hampshire Retirement System, 54 Regional Drive,
Concord, NH 03301,

Benefits Provided: The Pension Plan is divided into two membership groups. State and local employees and teachers belong to
Group [. Police and firefighters belong to Group 1. All assets are held in a single trust and available to pay retirement benefits
to all members.

Group I members at age 60 or 65 (for members who commence service after July 1, 2011) quality for a normal service retirement
allowance based on years of creditable service and average final salary for the highest of either three or five years, depending on
when their service commenced. The yearly pension amount is 1/60 or 1.667% of average final compensation (AFC) multiplied
by years of creditable service, At age 65, the yearly pension amount is recalculated at 1/66 or 1.515% of AFC multiplied by
years of creditable service.

Group I members who are age 60, or members who are at least age 45 with at least 20 years of creditable service, can receive a
retirement allowance at a rate of 2.5% of AFC for each year of creditable service, not to exceed 40 years. Members commencing
service on or after July 1, 2011 or members who have nonvested status as of Januvary 1, 2012 can receive a retirement allowance
at age 52.5 with 25 years of service or age 60. The benefit shall be equal to 2% of AFC times creditable service up to 42.5 years.
However, a member who commenced service on or after July I, 2011 shall not receive a retirement allowance until attaining the
age of 52.5, but may receive a reduced allowance after age 50 if the member has at least 25 years of creditable service where the
allowance shall be reduced, for each month by which the member attains 52.5 years of age by 4 of 1% or age 60.

Members of both groups may qualify for vested deferred allowances, disability allowances and death benefit allowances, subject
to meeting various eligibility requirements. Benefits are based on AFC or earnable compensation and/or service.

Contributions: The System is financed by contributions from both the employees and the Town. Member contribution rates are
established and may be amended by the State legislature while employer contribution rates are set by the System trustees based
on an actuarial valuation. For fiscal year 2016, all employees except police officers and firefighters were required to contribute
7% of earnable compensation. The contribution rates were 11.55% for police officers and 11.80% for firefighters. The Town’s
contribution rates for 2016 for pension and medical subsidy were 26.38% for police officers, 29.16% for firefighters, and 11.17%
for all other employees. The contribution requirements for the fiscal years 2014, 2015, and 2016 were $1,261,519, $1,150,676,
and $1,323,214, respectively, which were paid in full in each year.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Ouiflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions - At June 30, 2016, the Town reported liabilities of $13,168,413 in the governmental activities and $373,809 in the
business-type activities for its proportionate shares of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of
June 30, 2015, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation
as of that date. The Town’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the Town’s long-term share of
contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating towns and school districts, actuarially
determined. At June 30, 2015, the Town’s proportions were 0.33240752% in the governmental activities and 0.00943599% in
the business-type activities, which were decreases of 0.01156197% and 0.00028039%, respectively, from its proportions
measured as of June 30, 2014,
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For the year ended June 30, 2016, the Town recognized pension expense of $850,841 in the governmental activities and $24,153
in the business-type activities. At June 30, 2016, the Town reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Governmental activities Business-type activities

Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of Qutflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources Resources Resources
Changes in proportion $ 266,947 $ 411,113 $ 6,073 $ 9,670
Differences between expected and actual experience - 288,968 - 8,203

Net difference between projected and actual investment

earnings on pension plan investments - 351,942 - 9,991
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 1,062,031 - 33,771 -
Total $ 1,328,978 $ 1,052,023 $ 39,850 $ 27,864

The amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions result from the Town contributions subsequent to the
measurement date and will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2017. Other
amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in
pension expense as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending  Governmental Business-type
June 30, Activities Activities
2016 $ (273,704) § (7,715)
2017 (273,704) (7.715)
2018 (273.704) (7,715)
2019 97,7117 2,956
2020 (61,681) (1,602)
Totals $ (785.076) § (21,791)

Actuarial Assumptions: The collective total pension liability was determined by a roll forward of the actuarial valuation as of
June 30, 2014, using the following actuarial assumptions which, accordingly apply to 2015 measurements:

Inflation: 3.0%
Salary increases: 3.75- 5.8% average, including inflation
Investment rate of return: 7.75% net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 mortality table, projected to 2020 with Scale AA. The table includes a margin of
15% for men and 17% for women for mortality improvements.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2015 valuation were based on the results of the most recent actuarial experience
study, which was for the period July 1, 2005 — June 30, 2010.

Long—term Rates of Return: The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investment was selected from a best estimate
range determined using the building block approach. Under this method, an expected future real return range is calculated
separately for each asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the
expected future real rate of return net of investment expenses by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected
inflation.
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Following is a table presenting target allocations and long-term rates of return for 2015:

Weighted average long-term

Target expected real rate of return %
Asset Class Allocation % 2015
Large Cap Equities 22.50% 3.00%
Small/Mid Cap Equities 7.50% 3.00%
Total domestic equity 30.00%
Int'l Equities (unhedged) 13.00% 4.00%
Emerging Int'l Equities 7.00% 6.00%
Total international equity 20.00%
Core Bonds 4.50% (0.70%)
Short Duration 2.50% (1.00%)
Global Multi-Sector Fixed Income 11.00% (0.28%)
Unconstrained Fixed Income 7.00% (0.16%)
High-Yield Bonds 0.00% 0.00%
Global Bonds (unhedged) 0.00% 0.00%
Emerging Market Debt (external) 0.00% 0.00%
Total fixed income 25.00%
Private equity 5.00% 5.50%
Private debt 5.00% 4.50%
Real estate 10.00% 3.50%
Opportunistic 5.00% 2.75%
Total alternative investments 25.00%
Total 100.00%

Discount Rate: The discount rate used to measure the collective total pension liability was 7.75%. The projection of cash flows
used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that
employer contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates and the
member rate. For purposes of the projection, member contributions and employer service cost contributions are projected based
on the expected payroll of current members only. Employer contributions are determined based on the Pension Plan’s actuarial
funding policy as required by RSA 100-A:16. Based on those assumptions, the Pension Plan’s fiduciary net position was
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments to current plan members. Therefore, the long-term
expected rate of return on Pension Plan investment was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the
collective total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the Town’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate: The following
table presents the Town’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 7.75% as well as
what the Town’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-
percentage point lower (6.75%) or |-percentage point higher (8.75%) than the current rate:

Governmental activities:

Actuarial Current Single
Valuation 1% Decrease Rate Assumption 1% Increase
Date 6.75% 7.75% 8.75%

June 30. 2015 $ 17.334.506 $ 13,168,413 $ 9,616,797

June 30, 2014 $ 17.006.138 $ 12,911,190 $ 9,456,488

June 30, 2013 $ 18.471.302 $ 14,407,956 $ 10,992,331
(Continued)
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Sensitivity of the town’s proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate continued:

Business-type activities:

Actuarial Current Single
Valuation 1% Decrease Rate Assumption 1% Increase
Date 6.75% 7.75% 8.75%
June 30, 2015 $ 492,071 $ 373,809 $ 272,990
June 30, 2014 $ 480,386 $ 364,713 $ 267,125
June 30, 2013 $ 524,005 $ 408,733 $ 311,837

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position: Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the
separately issued New Hampshire Retirement System Cost-Sharing Multiple Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan financial
report.

NOTE 14 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)

Plan Description and Annual OPEB Cost - The Town provides postemployment benefit options for health care to eligible
retirees, terminated employees, and their dependents in accordance with the provisions of various employment contracts. The
benefit levels, employee contributions, and employer contributions are governed by the Town’s contractual agreements.

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by
Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. GASB Statement No. 45 requires that the long-term cost of
retirement health care and obligations for other postemployment benefits (OPEB) be determined on an actuarial basis and
reported similar to pension plans, GASB Statement No. 45 does not mandate the pre-funding of postemployment benefit
liabilities. However, any pre-funding of these benefits will help minimize or eliminate the postemployment benefit obligation
that will be required to be reported on the financial statements.

The Town has only partially funded (on a pay-as-you-go basis) the annual required contribution (ARC), an actuarially
determined rate in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if
paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities over a
period not to exceed 30 years.

The following table presents the OPEB cost for the year, the amount contributed and changes in the OPEB plan for fiscal year
2016:

Annual required contribution/OPEB cost $ 274,623
Interest 66,027
Adjustment (63,954)
Contributions made (pay-as-you-go) (94,195)
Increase in net OPEB obligation 182,501
Net OPEB obligation, beginning 1,650,665
Net OPEB obligation, ending $ 1,833,166

The Town’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB obligation for
fiscal year 2016 and the six preceding years were as follows:

Annual
OPEB Actual
Fiscal Year Contribution Contributions Percentage Net OPEB
Ended Cost (pay-as-you-go) Contributed Obligation
June 30, 2016 $ 270,564 $ 94,195 34.8% $ 1,833,166
June 30, 2015 $ 271,017 $ 87,218 32.2% $ 1,650,665
June 30, 2014 $ 299,070 $ 82,780 27.7% $ 1,466,866
June 30, 2013 $ 299,633 $ 71,054 23.7% $ 1,250,576
June 30, 2012 $ 303,879 $ 05,188 21.5% $ 1,021,997
June 30, 2011 $ 312,474 $ 43,038 13.8% $ 783,306
June 30, 2010 $ 295192 $ 32,176 10.9% $ 513,870
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As of July 1, 2014, the date of the most recent actuarial valuation, the actuarial accrued liabilities (AAL) for benefits were
$2,932,482 for the governmental activities and $67,998 for the business-type activities, with no actuarial value of assets,
resulting in unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities (UAAL) of $2,932,482 and $67,998, respectively. The covered payroll (annual
payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $5,565,294 and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 53.9%.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability
of events far into the future, Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend.
Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revisions as actual results are compared with past expectations and new
estimates are made about the future. The Schedule of Funding Progress for Other Postemployment Benefits Plan, presented as
required supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements, is designed to present multiyear trend
information about whether the actuarial value of the plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial
accrued liabilities for benefits.

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer
and the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of
sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The projection of benefits for financial reporting
purposes does not explicitly incorporate the potential effects of legal or contractual funding limitations on the pattern of cost
sharing between the employer and plan members in the future. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques
that are designed to reduce the effect of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets,
consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

In the July 1, 2014 actuarial valuation, the entry age normal level percentage of pay cost method was used. The actuarial
assumptions included a 4,0% investment rate of return per annum. The projected annual healthcare cost trend is 8.0% initially,
reduced by decrements to an ultimate rate of 5.0% for years 2022 and later. The UAAL is being amortized as a level percentage
of pay over 30 years based on an open group. The remaining amortization period at June 30, 2016 was 30 years.

NOTE 15— COMMITMENTS/ENCUMBRANCES

The Town entered into several construction contracts during the fiscal year for capital improvements. As of June 30, 2016, the
Town had outstanding construction contracts totaling $853,176 that will be financed from operating funds or trust fund transfers.
Construction commitments and other significant commitments are as follows:

Construction Commitments

Contract Remaining
Amount Contract
Description:
Martin Ferry Road $ 474,522 $ 474,522
College Park Drive Sidewalks 60,787 6,811
Library Elevator Replacement 100,905 55,478
Merrimack Riverfront Trail System 347,981 214,779
Hacket Hill/Route 3A 128,491 90,990
Lilac Bridge 132,450 10,596
Total $ 1,245,136 $ 853,176
Encumbrances outstanding at June 30, 2016 are as follows:

General government $ 32,604

Public salety 69,564

Fighways and streets 524,518

Total encumbrances $ 626,686
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NOTE 16 — GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES NET POSITION

Governmental activities net position reported on the government-wide Statement of Net Position at June 30, 2016 include the
following:

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
Net investment in capital assets:
Net property. buildings, and equipment $ 19,536,700 $ 14,221,193 $ 33,757,893
Less:
Capital leases payable (247,272) - (247,272)
Notes payable and other long-term debt - (5,081,459) (5,081.459)
Total net investment in capital assets 19,289,428 9,139,734 $ 28,429,162
Restricted net position for:
Impact fees 1,837,556 - 1,837,556
Library purposes 107,542 - 107.542
Drug forfeiture 18,578 - 18,578
Permanent funds 230,046 - 230,046
Total restricted net position 2,193,722 - 2,193,722
Unrestricted (706,631) 2,941,888 2235257
Total net position $ 20,776,519 $ 12,081,622 $ 32,858,141

NOTE 17 - GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCES

Governmental fund balances reported on the fund financial statements at June 30, 2016 include the following:

Total
General Nonmajor Governmental
Fund Funds Funds
Nonspendable:
Prepaid items $ 39,717 $ - $ 39,717
Tax deeded property. subject to resale 634,446 - 634,446
Permanent fund - principal balance - 204,033 204,033
Total nonspendable fund balance 674,163 204,033 878,196
Restricted:
Library 107,542 - 107,542
Impact fees - 1,837,556 1,837,556
Drug forfeiture - 18,578 18,578
Permanent fund - income balance - 26,013 26,013
Total restricted fund balance 107,542 1,882,147 1,989,689
Committed:
Expendable trust 1,310,242 - 1,310,242
Assigned:
Encumbrances 626,686 - 626,686
Heritage commission 15,227 - 15,227
Head's Chapel preservation 4,117 - 4,117
Conservation commission - 515917 515,917
Solid wasle disposal - 272,301 272,301
Recreation revolving - 54,837 54,837
Ambulance revolving - 601,147 601,147
Police special detail - 181,730 181.730
Fire detail - 4,375 4,375
Total assigned fund balance 646,030 1,630,307 2,276,337
Unassigned 4,245,377 - 4,245,377
Total governmental fund balances b 6,983,354 $§ 3,716,487 $ 10.699.841
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NOTE 18 — PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT
Net position balance at July 1, 2015 was restated to give retroactive effect to the following prior period adjustment:

Governmental

Activities
To remove compensated absences payable liability
which is recorded in the general fund $ 415,724
Net position, as previously reported 20,463,303
Net position, as restated $ 20,879,027

NOTE 19 — CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

There are various legal claims and suits pending against the Town which arose in the normal course of the governments
activities. In the opinion of management, the ultimate disposition of these various claims and suits will not have a material effect
on the financial position of the Town.

The Town participates in various federal grant programs, the principal of which are subject to program compliance audits
pursuant to the Single Audit Act as amended. Accordingly, the government’s compliance with applicable grant requirements
will be established at a future date. The amount of expenditures which may be disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be
determined at this time, although the government anticipates such amounts, if any, will be immaterial.

NOTE 20 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the balance sheet date, but before the financial statements arc
issued. Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that provided additional evidence about conditions that existed
at the balance sheet date, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing the financial statements. Nonrecognized
subsequent events are events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the balance sheet date, but arose after
the date. Management has evaluated subsequent events through January 25, 2017, the date the June 30, 2016 financial
statements were available to be issued, and no events occurred that require recognition or disclosure.
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EXHIBIT G
TOWN OF HOOKSETT, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Schedule of Funding Progress for Other Postemployment Benefit Plan
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

Actuarial UAAL as
Actuarial Accrued Unfunded a Percentage
Actuarial Value of Liability AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assels (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ([b-a)/c)
July 1,2014 $ = $ 3,000,480 $ 3,000,480 0.0% $ 5,565,294 53.9%
July 1, 2012 $ = $ 2,997,356 $ 2,997,356 0.0% $ 5,305,822 56.5%
July 1,2011 $ - $ 3,005,730 $ 3,005,730 0.0% $ 5,176,412 58.1%
July 1, 2008 $ - $ 1,988,285 $ 1,988,285 0.0% $ 5,622,099 35.4%

The notes to the required supplementary information is an integral part of this schedule.
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EXHIBITH
TOWN OF HOOKSETT, NEW HAMPSHIRE

Schedule of the Town's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

Plan Fiduciary
Town Proportionate Net Position
Fiscal Town's Proportionate Share of Net Pension as a Percentage
Year Valuation Proportion of Net Share of Net Covered Liability as a Percentage of the Total
End Date Pension Liability ~ Pension Liability Payroll of Covered Payroll Pension Liability
June 30, 2016 July 1, 2015 0.34184351% $ 13,542,222 $ 6,361,062 212.89% 65.47%
June 30, 2015 July 1, 2014 0.35368587% $ 13,275,903 $ 6,264,872 211.91% 59.81%
June 30, 2014 July 1, 2013 0.34427117% $ 14,816,689 $ 6,024,275 245.95% 66.32%

The notes to the required supplementary information is an integral part of this schedule.
EE!
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EXHIBIT 1
TOWN OF HOOKSETT, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Schedule of Town Contributions
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

Fiscal Contractually Contribution Contributions as

Year Valuation Required Actual Deficiency Covered a Percentage of

End Date Contribution Contribution (Excess) Payroll Covered Payroll
June 30, 2016 July 1, 2015 $ 1,146,845 $ 1,146,845 5 - $ 6,361,062 18.03%
June 30, 2015 July 1, 2014 $ 1,147,439 $ 1,147,439 $ - $ 6,264,872 18.32%
June 30, 2014 July 1, 2013 $ 856,043 $ 856,043 $ - $ 6,024,275 14.21%

The notes to the required supplementary information is an integral part of this schedule.
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Schedule of Funding Progress for Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)

As required by GASB Statement No. 45, Exhibit G represents the actuarial determined costs associated with the Town’s other
postemployment benefits for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016.

The GASB standard on accounting for postretirement benefits other than pensions requires the following disclosures in the
financial statements with regard to the retiree benefit liability:

Eligibility Employees are eligible for retiree health care benefits until Medicare eligibility once they
qualify for retirement benefits from New Hampshire Retirement System (NHRS).

NHRS requirement for retirement benefits are as shown below:
1. Group I members hired prior to July I, 2011, earlier of:
a. Age 60 (normal retirement)
b. 20 years of service with 70 points (early reduced retirement)
c. Age 50 with 10 years of service (early reduced retirement)
2. Group I members hired on/after July 1, 2011, earlier of:
a. Age 65 (normal retirement)
b. Age 60 with 30 years of service (early reduced retirement)
3. Group II members hired prior to July 1, 2011, earlier of:
a. Age 45 with 20 years of service (normal retirement)
b. Age 60 (normal retirement)
4. Group II members hired on/after July 1, 2011, earlier of:
a. Age 50 with 25 years of service (early reduced retirement)
b. Age 52.5 with 25 years of service (normal retirement)
c. Age 60 (normal retirement)

Spouse Benefit Surviving spouses of retirees and active employees are eligible for COBRA coverage upon
the member’s death.

Retiree Cost Sharing  Retirees contribute the full cost of coverage.

Medical Benefit Same benefit options are offered to retirees as active employees. The Town’s health plans
are fully-insured and experience-rated. The monthly premiums by plan effective on January 1,
2015 are as shown below.

Single 2-Person
Matthew Thornton $730.13 $1,460.25
Blue Choice Tier 2 (10/20/45 Rx) $789.25 $1,578.50
HSA Lumenos $574.60 $1,149.21
Medicomp 111 $496.84 N/A
Medicomp III (no rx) $198.69 N/A
Medicare Liabilities There is no GASB liability for Medicare retirees as they pay the full cost of coverage.
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TOWN OF HOOKSETT, NEW HAMPSHIRE
NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30, 2016

Schedule of the Town’s Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability & Schedule of Town Contributions

As required by GASB Statement No. 68, and as amended by GASB Statement No. 71, Exhibits H and I represent the actuarial
determined costs associated with the Town’s pension plan at June 30, 2016.

Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Contribution Rates for Fiscal Year 2015:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal

Amortization Method Level Percentage-of-Payroll, Closed

Remaining Amortization Period 25 Years beginning July 1, 2015 (30 years beginning July 1, 2009)

Asset Valuation Method 5-Year smooth market for funding purposes

Price Inflation 3.0% per year

Wage Inflation 3.75% per year

Salary Increases 5.8% Average, including inflation

Municipal Bond Rate 4.29% per year

Investment Rate of Return 7.75% per year

Retirement Age Experience-based table of rates that are specific to the type of eligibility condition. Last

updated for the 2011 valuation pursuant to an experience study of the period 2005-2010.

Mortality RP-2000 mortality table, projected to 2020 with Scale AA. The table includes a margin of
15% for men and 17% for women for mortality improvements.

Other Information:

Notes Contribution rates for Fiscal Year 2015 were determined based on the benefit changes
adopted under House Bill No. 2 as amended by 011-2513-CofC.
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COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND SCHEDULES
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SCHEDULE 1
TOWN OF HOOKSETT, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Major General Fund
Schedule of Estimated and Actual Revenues (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

Variance
Positive
Estimated Actual (Negative)
Taxes:

Property $ 9,208,099 $ 9,181,672 $  (26,427)

Land use change 13,000 383 (12,617)

Excavation 8,000 9,628 1,628

Interest and penalties on taxes 315,000 320,209 5,209

Total from taxes 9,544,099 9,511,892 (32,207)
Licenses, permits, and fees:

Motor vehicle permit fees 3,000,000 3,480,591 480,591

Building permits 75,000 94,013 19,013

Other 54,000 57,802 3,802

Total from licenses, permits, and fees 3,129,000 3,632,406 503,406
Intergovernmental:
State:
Meals and rental tax distribution 697,242 697,242 -
Highway block grant 293,736 300,776 7,040
State and federal forest land reimbursement 521 500 2n
Other 5,053 10,717 5,664

Federal:

Other 1,190 15,528 14,338
Total from intergovernmental 997,742 1,024,763 27,021
Charges for services:

Income from departments 150,524 96,293 (54,231)
Miscellaneous:

Sale of municipal property 1,500 - (1,500)

Interest on investments 30,000 40,457 10,457

Other 279,251 316,549 37,298

Total from miscellaneous 310,751 357,006 46,255
Other financing sources:

Transfers in 47,878 47,870 (8)
Total revenues and other financing sources 14,179,994 $ 14,670,230 $ 490,236
Unassigned fund balance used to reduce tax rate 1,647,814
Total revenues, other financing sources, and use of fund balance $ 15,827,808
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SCHEDULE 2

TOWN OF HOOKSETT, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Major General Fund

Schedule of Appropriations, Expenditures, and Encumbrances (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

Current:
General government:
Executive
Election and registration
Financial administration
Revaluation of property
Legal
Personnel administration
Planning and zoning
General government buildings
Cemeteries
Insurance, not otherwise allocated
Advertising and regional associations
Other
Total general government

Public safety:
Police
Fire
Building inspection
Emergency management
Total public safety

Highways and streets:
Public works garage
Highways and streets
Bridges
Street lighting
Other
Total highways and streets

Sanitation:
Administration
Solid waste collection
Solid waste disposal
Total sanitation

Health administration

Welfare:
Direct assistance
Intergovernmental welfare payments
Total welfare
Culture and recreation:
Parks and recreation
Library
Patriotic purposes
Other
Total culture and recreation

Conservation

Economic development

Encumbered Encumbered Variance
from Prior to Subseguent Positive
Year Appropriations Expenditures Year (Negative)
$ - $ 353,341 $ 365,457 $ - $  (2116)
- 31,920 28,354 - 3,566
- 680,515 620,938 15,371 44,206
- 158,952 148,760 - 10,192
- 90,000 89,673 - 327
- 177,487 173215 - 4,272
- 402,318 372,469 15,533 14316
10,000 531,348 443,464 1,700 96,184
- 4,551 2,768 - 1,783
- 255,000 248,725 - 6,275
- 12,500 12,601 - (101)
- 1 10,000 - (9,999)
10,000 2,697,933 2,516,424 32,604 158,905
37,978 4,199,684 3,878,254 61,338 298,070
- 3,782,205 3,671,656 8,226 102,323
- 105,673 96,156 - 9.517
- 5,500 3,039 - 2,461
37,978 8,093,062 7,649,105 69,564 412,371
- 199,711 209,031 - (9,320)
492,208 1,441,367 1,350,938 513,922 68,715
- 1 125,708 10,596 (136,303)
- 62,000 61,914 - 86
- 170,587 133,103 - 37,484
492,208 1,873,666 1,880,694 524,518 (39,338)
- 168,769 138,018 - 30,751
- 242,520 222,260 - 20,260
- 666,400 568,783 - 97,617
. 1,077,689 929,061 - 148,628
- 2,000 - - 2,000
- 196,877 97,932 - 98,945
- 19,620 19,619 - |
- 216,497 117,551 - 98,946
- 583,587 418.876 - 164,711
- 697,927 697.927 - -
- 2,945 2,945 - -
- 10,750 12.259 - (1,509}
- 1,295,209 1,132,007 - 163,202
- 101,250 101,250 - -
- 500 281 - 219
49 (Continued)
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SCHEDULE 2 (Continued)

TOWN OF HOOKSETT, NEW HAMPSHIRE

Major General Fund
Schedule of Appropriations, Expenditures, and Encumbrances (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

Debt service:
Interest on tax anticipation notes

Capital outlay

Other financing uses:
Transfers out

Total appropriations, expenditures,
other financing uses, and encumbrances

Encumbered Encumbered Variance
from Prior to Subsequent Positive
Year Appropriations Expenditures Year (Negative)
- | - . 1
- 1 - . |
- 470,000 470,000 - =
$ 540,186 $ 15,827,808 $ 14,796,373 $ 626,686 $ 944,935
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SCHEDULE 3
TOWN OF HOOKSETT, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Major General Fund
Schedule of Changes in Unassigned Fund Balance
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

Unassigned fund balance, beginning (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) $ 5,263,685
Changes:
Unassigned fund balance used to reduce 2016 tax rate (1,647,814)
2016 Budget summary:
Revenue surplus (Schedule 1) $ 490,236
Unexpended balance of appropriations (Schedule 2) 944,935
2016 Budget surplus 1,435,171
Increase in nonspendable fund balance (39,163)
Unassigned fund balance, ending (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) 5,011,879

Reconciliation of Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis to GAAP Basis:

To comply with generally accepted accounting principles by deferring
property taxes not collected within 60 days of fiscal year-end (1,433,980)

To eliminate the allowance for doubtful property tax receivables, which is
not necessary with the deferral of property taxes not collected within 60 days of
fiscal year-end 667,478

Unassigned fund balance, ending (GAAP basis Exhibit C-1) $ 4,245,377
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TOWN OF HOOKSETT
DELIBERATIVE SESSION
MINUTES
Cawley Middle School
Saturday February 4, 2017
CALL TO ORDER
Moderator, Don Riley called the First Deliberative Session to Order at Hooksett Cawley Middle School
Cafeteria Center at 9:02 AM.

Boy Scout Troop led the Pledge of Allegiance.

ATTENDANCE

James Sullivan, Chair, Rob Duhaime, John Giotas, Adam Jennings, James Levesque, Marc Miville, David Ross,
Tim Tsantoulis, and Don Winterton

Moderator, Don Riley

Supervisor of the Checklist Mike Horne, Kim Daggett, and Bryan Williams

Town Clerk, Todd Rainier

Legal Counsel, Matt Serge

Registered voters — 78 in attendance

PROOF OF POSTING
Proof of posting was provided by the Dr. Dean Shankle.

The Moderator introduced the members of the Town Council in Attendance as well as the Town Staff.
The Moderator thanked the Cawley Staff and the Town Staff for all the work in setting up the meeting.

The Moderator recognized all veterans for their service.

A general overview of the rules and procedures was given by the Moderator and are available in writing in the
voter’s guide.

BUSIINESS
Moderator Don Riley read the Warrant Articles into the record:

To the inhabitants of the Town of Hooksett, New Hampshire, in the county of Merrimack in said state, qualified
to vote in Town affairs.

You are hereby notified to meet at David R. Cawley Middle School on Saturday, February 4, 2017 at 9:00
am for the first session of the Town Meeting to discuss and amend, as required, warrant articles 3 through 19.

The final ballot vote for warrant articles will take place at David R. Cawley Middle School on Tuesday,
March 14,2017. The polls will be open from 6 am until 7 pm.

The estimated tax impact is provided to give voters an idea of what the individual items will cost if approved.
The estimated tax rate impact information is simply an estimate based on a current snapshot in time using the
information and revenue projections that are available at the time of printing. The actual tax rate is not set until
the fall using actual information known when the rate is set by NH Department of Revenue Administration.
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Article 3

Shall the town raise and appropriate as an operating budget, not including appropriations by special warrant
articles, the amounts set forth on the budget posted with the warrant, for the purposes set forth therein, and other
appropriations voted separately totaling $18,136,705.00. Should this article be defeated, the operating budget
shall be $18,240,669.00, which is the same as last year, with certain adjustments required by previous action of
the Town meeting, or by law or the Town Council may hold one special meeting, to take up the issue of a
revised operating budget only. Estimated tax rate impact $6.67. Not recommended by Town Council (0-8),
Recommended by Budget Committee (10-0).

A “Yes” vote would approve the operating budget of $18,136,705 as presented by the Budget Committee. The
operating budget does not include raises for employees or new positions, with the exception of Administration,
Library and Wastewater which are detailed below. However in each of the departments the employer share of
NH Retirement is included. Listed below are the projects, equipment and other items included in the operating
budget that will continue to allow for the quality service the residents of Hooksett have come to expect.

- The Administration budget increased in total $244,108. This budget includes a 5% increase in the
Administrator’s wages in accordance with his employment contract, as well as, an increase in the number of
part time hours available. In this budget is $224,335 to cover about 60% of the health insurance increase for
the Town and another $24,000 for property liability insurance, which reflects the current level of coverage.
-The Assessing budget has decreased $6,388 largely due to a reduction in the assessor’s contract.

- The FEamily Services budget has basically
remained level from the prior year. The Town’s

Proposed Operating Budget by

Expense — welfare line has been lowered by $25,000 based on
O esintenance|  the economy. A new request for bus transportation
(equipment, | increased the budget by $25,000; however there is
M eoady | offsetting revenue from a grant of $20,000 which
8% means the taxpayers will fund $5,000 for this
service.
Iqw:;:jm . - The Einance budget reflects an increase of

o — capital Leases | approximately $7,000. GASB compliance is needed
" this year at an estimated cost $5,000 and an

Wastewater

12% ~Tepinerees| gdditional  $2,000 is requested for auditing
Welfare SerViCES_
- The Fire-Rescue budget has increased by

1%

approximately $78,000. The majority of that
increase is due to employer share of NH

Retirement. Also there was an increase in rates for fire hydrant rental, and vehicle maintenance

has a slight increase to address preventative maintenance issues.

- The Police budget has increased by approximately $70,000. Again the majority of that

increase is the employer share of NH Retirement. Wages have increased based on steps in the

union contract. The department has some savings in fuel costs.
- The Public Works budget increased approximately $282,000 over the current year’s budget. The Community
Development Division has a decrease in wages due to re-organization of positions and an increase in health
insurance due to employee turnover. The Highway Division’s biggest increase is the reconstruction of roads,
costing $300,000, which was approved by the voters last years. Vehicle maintenance costs were decreased by
$20,000. $20,000 is budgeted for the Old Town Hall’s restorations of windows and bathrooms. New
equipment and other operational supplies have been kept to a minimum, reduced when possible. The Parks,
Recreation and Cemeteries Division have a $28,000 decrease in wages and a $5,000 decrease in electrical
costs. There are increases for water and ground maintenance for the field. The Recycling and Transfer
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Division reflects an increase of $30,000 from the current year’s budget. There are budget increases in both
health insurance costs and vehicle maintenance and a decrease in budgeted fuel.

- The Tax_Collector budget reflects a total decrease of approximately $11,000 primarily due to employee
turnover and some cuts to supplies and new equipment.

- The Town Clerk and Elections overall budget reflects a decrease of $13,725 due to the reduction in the
number of elections held during this year.

— The Library budget increased a total of $40,317. This includes additional staffing, wages, benefits and books
& materials.

— The Wastewater budget request has increased approximately $67,000 due to wages, insurances, tipping fees
and $12,000 for replanting of land that has been cleared. There is a budget decrease in electricity costs of

Town of Hooksett, New Hampshire

$5,252.

FY 2017-18 Town Operating Budget

Appropriation by Department

FY 2016-17

FY 2017-18

FY 2015-16 Amended Budget Com Dollar %

Departments Actuals Budget Recomm. Change Change

*Administration $ 1,058,766 $ 1,061,123 $ 1,305,231 $ 244,108 23.00%
Assessing 148,760 176,694 170,306 (6,388) -3.62%
Family Services 117,550 193,823 193,587 (236) -0.12%
Finance 226,997 224,920 232,286 7,366 3.27%
*Fire-Rescue 3,623,096 3,679,850 3,758,092 78,242 2.13%
*Police 3,878,253 4,392,372 4,461,940 69,568 1.58%
* Public Works 4,088,421 4,542,777 4,824,913 282,136 6.21%
Tax Collector 242,476 271,855 260,540 (11,315) -4.16%
Town Clerk & Elections 28,354 42,773 29,048 (13,725) -32.09%
Budget Committee 7,854 8,305 7,778 B27) -6.35%
Capital Leases 88,056 88,057 67,474 (20,583) -23.37%
Cemetery Commission 838 1,147 841 (306) -26.68%
Conservation Commission 1,250 1,277 1,277 (o] 0.00%
Debt TAN interest o 1 1 o 0.00%
Library 697,927 712,733 753,050 40,317 5.66%
Wastewater 1,931,988 2,002,935 2,070,341 67,406 3.37%
Grand Total B 16,140,587 $ 17,400,642 $ 18,136,705 $ 736,063 4.23%

Appropriation by Expense Category
FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18
FY 2015-16 Amended Budget Com Dollar %

Expense Category Actuals Budget Recomm. Change Change

Personal Services $ 10,544,992 $ 11,773,410 $ 12,198,545 $ 425,135 3.61%
General Operations 1,407,003 1,439,931 1,449,296 9,365 0.65%
Maintenance (Equipment, Buildings & Roads) 1,501,941 1,371,107 1,662,674 291,567 21.27%
New Equipment & Capital Leases 294,123 257,184 223,281 (33,903) -13.18%
Tipping Fees 400,037 431,075 432,568 1,493 0.35%
Welfare Assistance 60,503 125,000 100,000 (25,000) -20.00%0
Wastewater 1,931,988 2,002,935 2,070,341 67,406 3.37%
Grand Total $ 16,140,587 $ 17,400,642 $ 18,136,705 $ 736,063 4.23%

* Grants, donations and encumbrances have been removed from FY 2016-17 Budget for budgeting purposes.

A “No” vote would not approve the proposed operating budget and would result in the default budget totaling
$18,240,669 being approved. The operating budget is lower than the default budget by $103,964. The town’s
health insurance rates for 2017 increased by 27.9%. The Town Council asked for the full impact of this
increase to be added to the budget $390,413; however the Budget Committee recommend adding approximately
60% or $226,585 to the operating budget.
M. Miville motioned to move Article 3 to the Official Ballot. Seconded by D. Winterton.
D. Winterton motioned to amend Article 3 to add $77,000 to the operating budget the following items:

$5,000 for administration’s employment testing

$13,000 for computer new equipment

$10,000 for assessing professional services

$5,000 for town building maintenance

$5,000 for town building electric

$28,000 for park, recreation and cemeteries full-time wages

$11,000 for park, recreation and cemeteries electric
Seconded by M. Miville.
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D. Winterton: This money is needed for the operation of the town.

J. Hyde, Budget Committee Chair: Regarding the amendment, the Budget Committee recommended the Budget
10-0 and the Town Council didn’t recommend. The Budget Committee went through those lines and removed
this money because in the past they have not spent that money. Some movement was to remove from these lines
and move to insurance because this year the town was behind the eight ball for insurance. This year, after the
Council completed the budget they had an increase of 27% in insurance. The Budget Committee, in an effort to
cover that increase moved money from other lines that had been underspent to help cover the increase. I point
out that year after year the town underspends its budget. You can see that in the book. It is important to note that
they underspent by $999,000 last year which was $750,000 in unfilled positions. They have started to fill those
positions this year. This year, all that money was in the budget. They have hired the police and they are about
$500,000 under so far this year. The Budget Committee said you need an additional $390,000 in insurance. The
town’s budget year runs July to June, the insurance year runs January to December; therefore there is an
overlap. The Budget committee went over and over this budget. There is a new service in this budget for
transportation for people for $25,000. We looked at if insurance runs January to December and we have July to
June, if we fund some of it, half, then in theory they can make adjustments to the plans this year to decrease the
dollars. The budget has gone up $194,000. Everything that the town asked for is in the budget. It is a bottom
line budget. They have everything they need to fund everything they asked for. I would not support this
amendment.

M. Miville: This motion addresses items that were cut from the budget, not transferred. This has nothing to do
with the insurance. These are cuts that the Council believes are needed for the town. We have an ongoing
replacement plan for computers. There is $10,000 for assessing service that is to contract an Assessor to assist
our staff. They are cutting electric and they are cutting Park and Rec wages for a position. Everything has to be
truth in appropriation. Every dollar in the budget must represent. My question is if you didn’t think the positions
would be filled, why did you fund it? You have to appropriate every dollar in every line. You can’t abstract
budget. It is against State Law RSA 32 to not appropriate every line. There are 26 items cut and transferred to
other funds. We chose 7 items out of the 26 items cut that we feel are needed by the town. We chose these
crucial items that are needed by the town. Employee testing, if we are hiring, then we need to test those
individuals

D Winterton: I thank the Budget Committee for their efforts and understand the dilemma represented with the
insurance. The $13,000 for computer new equipment is for servers. That is for records. We need to keep adding
to our server base. The last item is the $11,000 for DPW. The town is spending money for soccer fields at Peter
brook. It would be a crime if we built those fields and then they can’t light the field. The Council got hit with
the insurance and we are only asking for $77,000.

S. Perrotta, 22 Joanne Drive: The electric we are referencing, as was explained, was initially planning to open
this year and now it won’t open until the spring of 2018. The Assessor was reduced because historically it was
not used. We did have to take down a Park and Rec position and we were looking at one of three (3) positions
that were vacant for 3 years. We reduced the budget so that the taxpayers would have what was valuable to the
town.

R. Duhaime: It was a two-year contract for the insurance. Any money on the budget that is not used is put back
to the town fund and used to reduce the tax rate. The Council usually agrees with the Budget Committee. We
were blindsided by the insurance and we didn’t have time to renegotiate it.

John Hillis: I’ve listened to the Budget Committee and see how they scrubbed the budget and now they want it
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back in. I would rather not have money from my house held in reserve
J. Hyde: Regarding the $77,000, Article 19 is $63,000 and if defeated will be available to cover the $77,000.

Mike Sorel motioned to call the question. Seconded by Bryan Williams.
Vote in favor

Vote on amendment
Voice Vote — majority No. Amendment failed.

J. Sullivan motioned to amendment Article 3 to add $97,000 to the operating budget as follows:
$63,000 to Police Health Insurance
$11,000 to Library Health Insurance
$23,000 to Wastewater Health Insurance

Seconded by T. Tsantoulis.

J. Sullivan: As the Chair of the Budget Committee mentioned, after the Council’s review of the budget we
learned that the insurance which was budgeted for 6% went up actually 27%. The Budget Committee moved
$194,000 to insurance but leaves us short. We looked at how to deal with that increase. The Council established
a committee to look into dealing with that. Those meetings are available to be reviewed on the Town website.
We are now requiring new employees to be offered only one plan which will save the Town and employees. We
also allow current employees to move to this plan which will reduce cost. This increase will only cover 75% of
the cost. Even moving to a more consumer driven plan, the $194,000 added by the Budget Committee, we still
need more to cover our costs. To compromise and find savings, we felt it was appropriate to deal with the
$390,000 and increase $97,000. There will still be a $90,000 short fall. If we are going to provide the insurance
we have all approve of, we need to approve and increase by $97,000.

D. Winterton: I also was a member of the sub-committee to deal with the tremendous increase. We have
contractual obligation to fund this insurance with our negotiating groups. We struggled whether to mandate to
people’s lives for immediate changes. We can only work within the Interlocal Trust because of the contract. The
committee will meet after the election to work again to save money. When you build a bridge, you build it
stronger than any truck to go over it. If we don’t fund the insurance, we may have to make draconian changes.
We have employees planning their lives based on their benefit packages. I don’t think it is right to abandon
those today but in the future I pledge to address it.

J. Hyde: Councilor Sullivan explained it effectively. We had several motions regarding this. Initially we voted
not to add the insurance money back. We felt that there is money available. They budgeted $3 per gallon for
fuel and that has been underspent. The Budget Committee feels the Town had the money somewhere else in the
budget. [ am voting against the amendment.

B. Tilton: We funded about 70% of the insurance increase with $194,000 as a compromise. The $70,000 that
was moved from other lines and went to the insurance. Only 6 months of the insurance year overlaps. We
worked hard and this was a contentious debate and we asked for help from the Department Heads and the staff
and we didn’t get it.

M. Farwell, 24 Grant: I’ve been to the Committee hearings and it was contentious and everyone had the best
intentions. The health insurance will have to be paid. This is reasonable and it keeps the budget below the
default budget. I think they need this money and it will be difficult if they don’t get it. The DPW has been
understaffed because the salaries are too low. We have raised the salaries and should be able to fund the
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positions.

Peter Bartlett: $63,000 will affect my budget and I will have to make that up in my budget and make reductions.
I will hire all positions that the town has approved. The public safety is imperative. The $63,000 will have to be
made by either a reduction in a position or overtime. We have had some drastic things in this town and the
incident at the Underhill school took all our staff. I cannot overspend my budget by law. Please let us put this
money back in this budget. I have 3 officers at the academy and I will be at full staff of 30 positions which this
town approved.

D. Ross: We need to pay the bill. If we don’t fund it, we will cut. Returning money is commendable. We use
that money to offset the tax rate. We are trying to be responsible and funding this insurance is primary. We have
to pay the bill so let’s be honest.

Pat Gosselin: In light of what I heard, I will vote yes but I think we need to make some changes in insurance.

M. Miville: There are real stories behind the budget lines and this is for real people. The reason the Budget
Committee couldn’t help the committee because it is the Budget Committee’s budget once it is passed to the
Committee. We have to budget for an entire 12 months. How will we represent the rest of the money? There is
actually $163,000 remaining and we are looking for $97,000 and we will also look for a better plan. The gas
line is a state bid and it is a lower amount than last year. For the Budget Committee or Council to budget is to
provide services. It is not appropriate to say it is already in the budget.

Tammy Hooker motioned to call the question. Seconded by M. Farwell.
Voice vote in favor.

Vote on amendment
Voice vote majority Yes. Amendment passed

New amended amount for Article 3 $18,233,705.
D. Riley declared Article 3 moved to the ballot.

Article 4

To see if the town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $200,000.00 to be added to the Public Works’
Vehicles Capital Reserve Fund previously established. Estimated tax rate impact is $0.13. Recommended by
Town Council (7-0), Recommended by Budget Committee (8-2).

Explanation: Balance held by the Trustees of the Trust Funds as of December 31, 2016 for this fund is
$84,103.75. This savings account will assist the department in purchasing vehicles for plowing and road
maintenance, including equipment to replace an aging fleet, which will reduce vehicle maintenance expenses.
This reserve allows for the town to replace and add vehicles when needed, which evens the burden on tax
payers by planning for the purchase.

J. Levesque motioned to move Article 4 to the Official Ballot. Seconded by R. Duhaime.

We have a balance of $84,000 and this is for future trucks for plowing and road maintenance. This is a fund that
was established so when we need a truck for the fleet, we will have the funds

D. Riley declared Article 4 moved to the ballot.
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Article 5
To see if the town will vote to approve the cost items included in the collective bargaining agreement reached
between the Hooksett Town Council and the Hooksett Permanent Firefighters Association Local 3264, IAFF
which calls for the following increases in salaries and benefits at the current staffing level:

Estimated increase over prior year

Fiscal Year Salaries Benefits Estimated Increase
2017-18 $151,550.00 $22.442.00 $173,992.00
2018-19 $ 97,960.00 $32,442.00 $130,402.00

and further to raise and appropriate the sum of $173,992.00 for the current fiscal year; of this amount
$15,578.00 is authorized to be withdrawn from the Ambulance Revenue Fund, and the balance of $158,414.00
to be raised from general taxation. Such sum represents the additional costs attributable to the increase in
salaries and benefits required by the new agreement over those that would be paid at current staffing levels.
Estimated tax rate impact is $0.10. Recommended by Town Council (7-0), Recommended by Budget
Committee (8-2).

Explanation: The Firefighters have been working without an agreement since June 30, 2015. This agreement
addresses many issues, mainly employee retention. Due to low pay, Hooksett Fire-Rescue has experienced
difficulty in attracting and retaining qualified candidates. In addition, this agreement contains significant
concessions by the firefighters in health insurance co-pays.

Donald Winterton motioned to move Article 5 to the Official Ballot. Seconded by Adam Jennings

D. Winterton: This was not brought forward last year. They were without a contract since 2015. Our new Chief
came on and was successful with helping as well as Assistant Chief Colburn. If we don’t pass this, they now
contribute 8% and if this passes they will contribute 15% in the first year and 16% in the second year. This is
beneficial to the town. They come to the town and do their job and have not had a pay increase in 3 years.

P Gosselin: What are the salary increases in percentages?
D. Winterton: They are 3% in year one and two.

John Hillis: This has some health insurance co-pays. I’'m not sure how to approach this. If it doesn’t get passed
what are the ramifications.

D Winterton: I would think the ramifications are it would be hard for Chief Burkush to retain and hire. If
passed, there are other provisions, we have recreated longevity to make it more attractive and retain employees.
We would have to go back to bargain but we can’t do anything for another year and would function under the
expired contract.

N. Forrest: How many fires have we had and how many houses destroyed?

Chief Burkush: We’ve had 12 structure fires in 2016 and a couple significant on Johns and Casey Drive. We
have had a couple wildland fires as well. We have had only minor job related injury.

We did transport 850 people by Ambulance for medical service.

I support this agreement because there are significant health care concessions. They now only pay 8% and it
will go to 15%. One issue that the town has faced is we hire firefighters and train them at $30,000 per persons
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and then they leave. We want to retain. We also have management language which is beneficial and a
paramedic training program.

Kevin Souza, 21 Morningside Drive: This is much editorialized. It says underpaid. What is the comparison to
surrounding towns? There is no transparency.

Chief Burkush: Starting firefighter pay is $17/hr. and we require that they be certified prior and they must have
a 2 year degree. The last firefighter went to Salem for $22/hr.

Valerie Silva: I had the worst type of heart attack and because they got to the house on time and because of the
personnel on the truck, I am alive.

N. Forrest: There have been a lot of fires in Oregon and California. Has anyone from Hooksett gone to
California to help?

Chief Burkush: Not this year but we have had some in the past.
D. Winterton: Regarding transparency, the entire contract is available on the town website.

Carol Harris, 5 Nancy Lane: I can’t believe you can get anyone to take that job for $17/hr. If you are going to
spend to train, let’s keep them.

D. Riley declared Article 5 moved to the ballot

Matt Broderick: |1 motioned to restrict reconsideration re-consideration of Article 3. Seconded by M. Farwell.
P. Gosselin: I don’t think we need this motion.

J. Hyde: I wasn’t planning on reconsidering everything but I don’t like shutting anything down.

M. Farwell: | remember when people would leave the meeting and there are only a few people left in the room
and these 7 people want to change the budget number. This is an attempt to make sure that what we voted on at
9 am will come out at 12 pm.

Vote 2/3 in favor by a voice and hand vote

Avrticle 6
To see if the town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $142,819.00 for an increase in salaries and
benefits for non-union full-time and part-time Town personnel.

Fiscal Year Salaries Benefits Total

2017-18 $118,173.00 $24,646.00 $142,819.00
Estimated tax impact is $0.09. Recommended by Town Council (7-0), Recommended by Budget Committee
(8-2).

Explanation: This article would provide a 2% cost of living wage increase to all non-union employees and a
discretionary wage adjustment pool of $47,606. There are 67 full-time and 24 part-time employees; including
Police, Library and DPW employees. This article does not include the Town Administrator’s position, seasonal
or Wastewater employees.

123



T. Tsantoulis motioned to move Article 6 to the Official Ballot. Seconded by D. Ross
M. Sorel: Could someone clarify the discretionary wage adjustment.

M. Miville: There is a 2% cost of living with an extra 1% for the Administrator to use for merit or wage
adjustments for those on the lower scale.

M. Sorel: The amount is 3% of the salary and who decides where the money goes.

M. Miville: All the employees get 2% with the remaining amount at the discretion of the Administrator.
D. Riley declared Article 6 moved to the ballot.

Article 7

To see if the town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $120,000.00 to be added to the previously
established Capital Reserve Funds and to apportion the sum among several funds as listed below:

Fire Apparatus $ 50,000.00
Air Packs & Bottles 20,000.00
Emergency Radio Communications 50,000.00

Total $120,000.00

Estimated tax rate impact is $0.08. Recommended by Town Council (6-1), Recommended by Budget
Committee (8-2).

Explanation: Air Packs & Bottles - Balance held by the Trustees of the Trust Funds as of December 31, 2016
for this fund is $202,100.18. The purpose of this article is to save for the replacement of all air packs and
breathing air bottles in year 2020 at an estimated cost of $300,000.00. The current air packs were purchased
in 2005.

Explanation: Fire Apparatus - Balance held by the Trustees of the Trust Funds as of December 31, 2016 for
this fund is $260,140.47. This request is to save and offset costs for the future replacement of the following fire
department vehicles: engines, tankers, ladders and forestry. This is an ongoing request as these vehicles can
cost anywhere from $100,000 to $800,000 individually.

Explanation: Emergency Radio Communications - Balance held by the Trustees of the Trust Funds as of
December 31, 2016 for this fund is $87,381.87. Estimated year of purchase is 2024. These funds will be used
in the future to purchase and replace the existing emergency radio communication system. Our radio system
was replaced in 2014 after a lighting strike caused extensive damage. The police department was able to
replace a major portion of the system with the funds that had been building in this capital reserve along with
what the insurance covered. The town spent $383,000. The police department anticipates the system will need
replacing in ten years when the company, Motorola, no longer supports repairs or parts. The anticipated
replacement cost is approximately $500,000, so building this fund at $50,000 a year for ten years will help
ensure the town does not have to bear the burden of a major expense all at once.

J. Sullivan motioned to move Article 7 to the Official Ballot. Seconded by T. Tsantoulis
J. Sullivan: The explanation under the articles is for those here and is included in the guide but will not appear
on the ballot. This is for air packs for the Fire Department. These are items needed and have appeared for the

last 10 years.

Norm Forrest, Pine Street: What is in the fund currently?
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D. Riley: There are 3 separate balances, $500,000 each.
P. Gosselin: I don’t see the $50,000 for the radios.
C. Soucie: The deposits are for last year and not for this year yet.

Chief Bartlett: We had a lightning strike that destroyed our radio sand we had money in our CIP and we got
money from insurance and we were able to replace the majority of the system. That system is under warrantee.
This is to build for future replace when it is needed in 10 years for 2 million dollars.

D. Riley declared Article 7 moved to the ballot.

Article 8

To see if the town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $100,000.00 for the Visionary Plan for Sewer
and/or Other Infrastructure Improvements on the west side of Hooksett. The sum to come from fund balance
and no amount to be raised from taxation. Recommended by Town Council (6-2), Recommended by Budget
Committee (8-2).

Explanation: The Town’s Master Plan recommends a plan to develop Route 3A exits 10 and 11. These funds
will be used for a detailed visionary plan of Route 3A focused on sewer and other infrastructure improvements.
The plan will answer questions about potential build out and weather infrastructure improvements would
attract commercial development that will increase property taxes. The plan will look at the feasibility of a
60/40 town/business model to help with cost of infrastructure improvements.

Donald Winterton motioned to move Article 8 to the Official Ballot. Seconded by James Sullivan

D. Winterton: This is coming from fund balance so it is needed to be voted on because the west side of the river
does not have the needed infrastructure for development. This will look at if it is viable. We need this to
develop restaurants, hotels or hospitals. We need to spend money to make money. This will give us solid data to
say this makes sense. I ask for your support and this will come from fund balance.

Cindy Robertson: The fund balance, we were concerned with the tax rate. If the money doesn’t t doesn’t go to
this, will it be used to offset taxes?

C. Soucie: The fund balance has been used historically to reduce tax rate. We used $500,000 this year foe the
tax rate. You can use this fund for this. You can’t change it this year. We use it for emergency situations like the
discs.

P Gosselin: I agree with this but why couldn’t we use the fund balance for the insurance increase?

M. Miville: We were advised and considered using fund balance to cover the insurance increase.
This increase for insurance couldn’t not come from fund balance because the State would deem that we already
had the opportunity to budget for this, so it would not be an emergency.

John Hillis: I’'m not ready for development on the west side and more traffic and noise. There is development
now has not reduced our property taxes. Does the money from current development go into a fund for
development or reduce taxes because it hasn’t been reduced so far.
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D. Winterton: The first issue is noise from development. With development, there are regulations. The $100,000
is to see if it makes sense. All taxes go into the general fund. The Exit 10 TIF went to the infrastructure and now
it is paid off. The intent for this is 5 years from now your taxes are less. One thing we do control is what kind of
industry we have for the town. Towns spend a lot of money on economic development. Bass, Walmart and
Market Basket may leave because they are on septic. We have Exit 10 and Exit 11 which is valuable real estate.
We need to think forward. This won’t impact the town for the next 3-4 years.

J. Hyde: I was one of the 2 votes on the Budget Committee that was not in favor of this Article. This goes back
to a general concept. Bass, Walmart, Market Basket, came here without us. They are multi-billion dollar
companies. If they want it they can put it in. There are restaurants and medical facilities on the west side. I
would like to see that $100,000 to offset the tax rate. If they want a line they can pay for it. That is capitalism
and I don’t believe in corporate welfare.

M. Sorel: 54 Cross: I believe the first Master Plan was done in 1950 and in that plan and 2 subsequent plans it
said that the west side would remain a rural area of the community. Then there Exit 11 and Exit 10 were
developed as gravel pits I reject that the businesses will move out because of failed septic systems. We have a
Route 3 in Hooksett that is sewered and developed and does the town want another Route 3 on the west side. |
think sewer would help Exit 10 and 11 but I don’t think we need it at this time. I think this could be better spent.

Terry Pfaff: We have a nice balanced tax base. We are stable. We did a TIF for Exit 10. I think this seed money
would help that stability. Look at your Planning Board and the impact fees.

C. Soucie: On the town’s website is a summary of the Exit 10 district and what value it produces.

R. Duhaime: I don’t represent the west side but they are taxpayers and they should get services. As the TIF
District would grow we were to look into sewer. These business, half a million goes into taxes and what
services do they get? They don’t get trash, sewer or schools. This is a bad time to ask for this but it shows good
will on the part of the town. We will encourage businesses that they will get something for their tax dollars.

D. Ross: I voted against this because it is $100,000 just to look at something with no solid results. The State is
going to be doing road changes including the rotary at Hackett Hill. We also have topography challenges. This
is $100,000 that is not to be raised and this is your tax money.

This is unnecessary and I’m afraid people will vote for this and it promising nothing. It doesn’t include anything
substantial and I think this is a bad idea this year. We have a lot of commercial property and there is a lot of
vacant property with sewer and we should work to develop that.

J Sullivan: The Council grappled with this Article. It was originally $649,000. How do we as a town as a
gateway to the North, which we are, we have Exit 9, 10, and 11 that have the potential for development and
some without sewer. Administration looked at this and they indicated that $100,000 will answer questions. We
need to grapple how to look at growth in the exits in Hooksett and if comes from additional taxation or
previously raised taxes. It gives us the ability to see how it will work and I think it makes sense.

J. Hyde: What will this bring us?

Dr. Shankle: I started in Planning as the Regional Director in Keene. I tried to figure what can be done. We
need to look at the regional market. This is adjacent to the Village District. We need to do a regional market
analysis and see if there is one on 3A which has river front property. I called it a build out study. We need a
graphical representation based on our market niche.
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We need to look at specific sites. It doesn’t make sense to spend 18 million on a sewer project if there is only
one restaurant that can go there. Once we have what is possible, then we decide on the implementation strategy
if there is one.

Pat Burton, University Circle: We moved here three (3) years ago from Massachusetts because it was so
beautiful with the rivers and streams and trails. We live off Route 3 and it is a used car lot. There is
development on Route 3 and behind us are apartments. They are putting more apartments south on Route 3 and
a large project across from the cinema. North to Allenstown there are large developments. Route 3 is a
dangerous road. More development is something I cannot support.

A. Jennings: I don’t support that. I think those developers came without sewer and were not promised sewer.

Robert Sweet, 76 Pheasant Hill Road: This $100,000 looks like pie in the sky. We have development at Exit 10.
They built it without us spending money. I don’t support this.

Linda Kleinschmidt call he question. Seconded by M. Farwell.
Vote unanimously in favor

D. Riley declared Article 8 moved to the ballot.
Avrticle 9

To see if the town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $90,000.00 to be added to previously established
Capital Reserve Funds and to apportion the sum among several funds as listed below:

Parks & Recreation Facilities Development $ 15,000.00
Town Building Maintenance 75.000.00
Total $90,000.00

Estimated tax rate impact is $0.06. Recommended by Town Council (7-0), Recommended by Budget
Committee (8-2).

Explanation: Parks and Recreation Facilities Development - Balance held by the Trustees of the Trust Funds
as of December 31, 2016 for this fund is $94,934.54. The town continues to grow and we are forced to deal
with aging structures, building updates and additional recreation areas that will need to be addressed. The
Town has a list of items that need to be addressed within the next five years. Since addressing the lighting at
Donati, the next project will be building updates to the Parks and Recreation building at Donati Park. The
building is used to house the trucks, equipment and materials that are located at the facility and is used daily.
The building has not been updated in over 15 years, while the Parks Division has grown.
Explanation: Town Building Maintenance - Balance held by the Trustees of the Trust Funds as of December
31, 2016 for this fund is $110,248.95. This fund assists the Department of Public Works in addressing the needs
of town buildings for unexpected situations and large projects. Since this fund was established in 2008, it has
been used to:

- Replace the water main at the Public Library

- Conduct masonry work and window replacement at the Safety Center

- Replace the main steps at the Public Library

- Replace the truck lifts at the Highway Garage

- Correct issues (mostly electrical) identified by the Department of Labor’s safety inspection

- Mold Remediation at the Court House

- Repairs to the Salt and Sand shed

- Lighting and ventilation upgrades to the highway garage

- Replaced 75% of the roof at 35 Main Street Town Hall.
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- Replacement heater and exchanges at the Safety Center

- Replacing major components to the elevator at the Public Library
The Town has $26,000,000 worth of buildings to maintain. Contributions to this fund yearly will help repair
items in such a manner that it would not be a major impact to the taxpayers all at once. It is imperative that the
Town pass this article to address future needs of the community.

J. Giotas motioned to move Article 9 to the Official Ballot. Seconded by M. Miville.
J. Giotas: This is to put money aside for building maintenance and any major repairs.

M. Miville: This is to start putting money aside for large ticket items. The target plan is to improve the Donati
buildings and create more storage rooms and build bathrooms. We like to have $250,000 in the fund for
maintenance.

D. Riley declared Article 9 moved to ballot.

Article 10
To see if the town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $78,269.00 for the salary and benefits to hire a
full-time recreation director.

Fiscal Year Salary Benefits Estimated Increase

2017-18 $47,476.00 $30,793.00 $78,269.00
Estimated tax rate impact is $0.05. Recommended by Town Council (4-3), Not recommended by Budget
Committee (3-7).

Explanation: To hire a full-time employee whose would be responsible to plan and manage a comprehensive
town-wide recreation program including day camps, special events and other programs as added. The position
will oversee the Fun in the Sun summer camp and explore and initiate recreational events and programs for all
ages. The position would be supported by tax dollars. All program operations, including additional staff will be
paid for by the Recreation Revolving Fund.

R. Duhaime motioned to move Article 10 to the Official Ballot. Seconded by A. Jennings.

R. Duhaime: This is to hire a full time coordinator for recreation. We are growing. The activity is being
coordinated now by HYAA and is not always well coordinated with the town. This will improve activities in
town.

M. Sorel: The Benefit amount is 65% more than the salary amount. Why are the benefits of 47,000 65% more?
C. Soucie: The benefits are $30,000 which includes a family medical plan plus retirement.

M. Sorel: The $31,000 is 65% of the salary. That seems like a high percentage.

C. Soucie: It includes NH retirement, and a 2 person plan for medical and dental and employment taxes,
disability and life insurance as well.

M. Sorel: I can take the salaries in town and add 65% and get to the costs?

D. Riley: No it depends on the health plan.
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M. Sorel: Is it the norm?

Dr. Shankle: Each component is a percentage. Some are fixed costs. Considering our wage rates, we probably
have people making more in benefits than wages. There are some that take no insurance so it would be less.

C. Soucie: Different employees take different benefits and contributions to retirement are different.

P. Gosselin: I think this is a good thought but in light of the budget, we should hold off another year. Did the
Council consider this before or after the insurance increase? I’'m on the HYAA Board and I think there are
opportunities for us to work more closely with the Town before we get a full time employee. We have the
college available with the possibility of getting an intern to help with this.

J. Hyde: The Town Council vote was close. The Budget Committee debated this and understands that new
employees cost a lot of money. We debated whether it was necessary. We have great programs that don’t
require a coordinator; we have HYAA, churches, and scouts. What is this person going to do beyond what is
being done by volunteers?

Cindy Robertson: Where did the salary amount come from if we have firefighters at $17; why is this at $47,000.
The Administration put in a minimum salary for salaried employees established by the Obama Administration
which s $47,000 so we don’t have to pay overtime.

B. Ehlers: Is there a current job description? Is a degree required and what kind of background is required.

D. Shankle: Our DPW Director called surrounding towns and there are minimum requirements. What is the
person going to do? We now have a number of programs that are being overseen haphazardly like Fun in the
Sun that has grown from 40 to 120 kids weekly and is being run by part time people. You have HYAA and
others and no one is coordinating with the town. Over the last 10-15 years this town has done a tremendous job
of accumulating conservation land and we now have a river front park and we have taken 25% off the tax rate.
We should invest and try to make it generate cash for us either through tourism or somehow. My primary care
doctor in Merrimack says he watches eagles nest by the river. There are a lot of things we could do better and
sell better. People at visioning meetings have asked for this. Ultimately the people will decide.

Heather Rainer: The Library is being asked for more and more programs. We are asked to do Zumba for kids
and yoga for kids. There is a need in this town.

B. Tilton: I support the concept but I voted against this. My wife supported this originally but when she saw the
figure for the salary and the cost, she thought the costs were off the chart.

?, Pheasant Hill: Recreation is needed but the salary is out of line. It could be put together step by step possibly
starting as part time in the beginning.

J. Hillis, 19 South Bow Road: We have a lot of recreation that is working and these numbers are high.

D. Ross: It is not the whole town’s responsibility to take care of a few of the town’s children. You are already
paying for the facility, the lights etc. To grow our government to add this employee is not the right thing to do.
This is a bad idea. We can possibly get two (2) employees part time for this money or get an intern from the
college. This is a want and not a need.

D. Riley declared Article 10 moved to the ballot
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Article 11
To see if the town will vote to approve the cost items included in the collective bargaining agreement reached
between the Hooksett Town Council and the Hooksett Police Union Local 46, NEPBA which calls for the
following increases in salaries and benefits at the current staffing level:

Estimated increase over prior year

Fiscal Year Salaries Benefits Estimated Increase
2017-18 $ 59,043.00 $14,016.00 $ 73,059.00
2018-19 $ 94,172.00 $20,977.00 $115,149.00
2019-20 $116,915.00 $18,544.00 $135,459.00

and further to raise and appropriate the sum of $73,059.00 for the current fiscal year, such sum represents the
additional costs attributable to the increase in salaries and benefits required by the new agreement over those
that would be paid at current staffing levels. Estimated tax rate impact is $0.05. Recommended by Town
Council (8-0), Recommended by Budget Committee (8-2).

Explanation: The passing of this article will ensure the implementation of the negotiated agreement between
the town and the police officer and dispatcher collective bargaining unit (NEBPA Local 46). This negotiated
agreement offers police officers and dispatchers reasonable pay increases over a three year agreement as
outlined in the above matrix, while shifting some costs associated with medical insurance back to the
employees. Additionally, this agreement provides for longevity pay rewards for specific milestones achieved
such as years 6, 9, 12, 15 and 25 as the employees stay and grow with the community. This level of institutional
knowledge and practical experience is invaluable to this community and will aid in quality employee
retention. The entire proposed contract can be seen at www.hooksett.org.”

R. Duhaime motioned to move Article 11 to the Official Ballot. Seconded by D. Winterton.

R. Duhaime: This is something that the Council negotiated. It includes moderate increases and if we want to
retain these employees we need to make it desirable.

D. Winterton: Negotiations went well and his is a 3 year contract and they agreed to contribute 16% in year 1
and 17% year 2 and 19% year 3. We adjusted the longevity so that we won’t lose long term officers. We looked
at competitive salaries. We are losing officers to Allenstown. We now can attract quality people. The issues are
about crime, speeding and drugs.

J. Hyde: The Budget Committee noted concessions on the police side for percentage increases but they were
tied to increases in salaries that offset that.

Chief Bartlett: Some of the increases come from the wage scale. The wage scale is a commonly used scale.
This contract combines the patrol and sergeant scale into one. We are also going to tie the cola increases to the
Consumer Index for cost of living. The other thing we did is the longevity incentive. It is in years 6, 9, 12, 15
and 31. This will help me keep employees with institutional knowledge. The larger communities don’t deal with
that. We can give an incentive at crucial levels of seniority. Officers are now required to commit to 36 months
upon training. We spend a lot of money to train and hire so they must commit to 36 months upon hire. We did a
comparison study and we are currently below the salaries of Allenstown and Litchfield. I think this is a fair
compromise.

D. Riley declared Article 11 moved to the ballot
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Avrticle 12

To see if the town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $50,000.00 to be added to the Drainage
Upgrades Capital Reserve Fund previously established. Estimated tax rate impact is $0.03. Recommended by
Town Council (7-0), Recommended by Budget Committee (6-4).

Explanation: Balance held by the Trustees of the Trust Funds as of December 31, 2016 for this fund is
$247,446.85. It has been determined that various areas throughout the town have failed drainage pipes due to
aging. Many of these pipes, and in some areas swales, were not installed to handle the amount of water that
they are taking on, especially since the town has been experiencing more storms with higher volumes of water
than in the past. This is helping to deteriorate the roads as well. These funds will help address issues and begin
upgrades as necessary. During the last two fiscal years, funds have been used to repair Sherwood Drive and
Grant Street.

J. Sullivan motioned to move Article 12 to the Ballot. Seconded by D. Ross.

J. Sullivan: This is an established fund to deal with the drainage in our road network. It has been used on Hale,
Grant and Sherwood. It is a valuable tool for DPW to maintain our roads.

D. Riley declared Article 12 moved to the ballot

Article 13

To see if the town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $50,000.00 to purchase a Fire Command vehicle
for the Fire-Rescue Department. Estimated tax rate impact is $0.03. Recommended by Town Council (7-0),
Recommended by Budget Committee (8-2).

Explanation: With the passing of this article, the Town will replace a 2001 Chevy Impala with a new command
style 4x4 vehicle. The Impala has over 99,000 miles on it and will be removed from the Fire-Rescue fleet and
recommend to be scrapped. This vehicle is used for emergency responses and daily operations to meet the
needs for the Fire-Rescue department mission. The replacement vehicle is essential to safe operation at
emergency incidents for on-scene personnel and involved bystanders. The vehicle, like other emergency
response command vehicles, may sit with the engine running; at idle, for hours in order to electrically supply
safety lighting, radios or other data devices being used.

D. Ross motioned to move Article 13 to the Official Ballot. Seconded by M. Miville.
D. Ross: It is replacing a 2001 vehicle.

J. Hyde: I saw a Tahoe and Explorer n the lot today. What are those vehicles? Are they command vehicles and
can they be repurposed?

S. Colburn: The two (2) that are here today are command vehicles. This is replacing a 2001 and we have a 2004
and a 2005 with over 120,000 as well. We have an aging fleet and this is to keep it up to date.

Carol Harris: The impala which has over 99,000 miles was scraped? Does that mean destroyed?
M. Miville: It goes to State auction?

Carol Harris: Does it get thrown away or could it be donated?
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Dr. Shankle: It depends; sometimes we repurpose them in the town for staff. If we don’t need them, we will
trade them in.

J. Hyde: How many command vehicles do we have? What are they used for and how many do we really need?

S. Colburn: We have four (4) command vehicles. This one is the spare and is used for training. We do not have
a backup vehicle when we have one go out of service. We have to carry a lot of equipment.

Bob Sweet: You now have four (4) command vehicles and one is a spare. When did you use four (4) vehicles
this year? Four (4) vehicles seem like a lot.

S. Colburn: These are used every day by staff. They use them to go to training and medics going to classes.
They are on the road every day.

D. Riley declared the Article 13 moved to the ballot.

Article 14

To see if the town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $50,000.00 for the purpose of refurbishing
Hooksett Fire Engine 5, a 2006 E-1 Typhoon Pumper. Estimated tax rate impact is $0.03. Recommended by
Town Council (7-0), Recommended by Budget Committee (10-0).

Explanation: This vehicle is in need of some preventative maintenance to address rebuilding the apparatus
pump, replacing old lighting system with higher efficiency and longer lasting LED lighting and other electrical
system upgrades and maintenance, as needed, along with body restoration and coating to address all ongoing
corrosion issues. Addressing these issues will prolong the life of the vehicle another eight to ten years, and
improve the safety provided by this engine. This vehicle has 78,000 miles and 5,660 hours of services. It has
reached it midpoint of expected service life. To insure confidence in its operations and to aid in controlling
future maintenance costs, refurbishing high cost apparatus keeps the fire department fleet safe and
operationally sound, while also preserving the vehicle image that the Town expects.

M. Miville motioned to move Article 14 to the Official Ballot. Seconded by D. Ross.

M. Miville: This engine is different because we want to save it. It is a 2006 but it needs to be refurbished. This
is an upgrade. It has 78,000 miles on it.

D. Riley declared Article 14 moved to the Bballot.
Article 15
To see if the town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $30,000.00 to be added to the Automated

Collection Equipment Capital Reserve Fund previously established. Estimated tax rate impact is $0.02.
Recommended by Town Council (6-1), Recommended by Budget Committee (9-1).

Explanation: Balance held by the Trustees of the Trust Funds as of December 31, 2016 for this fund is
$82,600.02. The town estimates the need to replace barrels and the automated collection vehicles in 2020.
These funds would be used to offset future costs of replacement.

J. Levesque motioned to move Article 15 to the Official Ballot. Seconded by R. Duhaime
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J. Levesque: This is an ongoing fund for our automated collection. This is a savings account to buy new
vehicles.

D. Riley declared Article 15 moved to the ballot.

Avrticle 16

To see if the town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $30,000.00 to be added to the Revaluation
Capital Reserve Fund previously established. Estimated tax rate impact is $0.02. Recommended by Town
Council (7-0), Recommended by Budget Committee (9-1).

Explanation: Balance held by the Trustees of the Trust Funds as of December 31, 2016 for this fund is
$61,360.59. The State of New Hampshire (State Constitution Part 2 Article 6) requires that all cities and towns
perform a revaluation every 5 years so that all properties can be brought to current market value and
contribute an equitable portion of the total tax burden. This request saves for the next revaluation update which
is required in 2018 at an estimated cost of $149,703.

J. Sullivan motioned to move Article 16 to the Official Ballot. Seconded by M. Miville.

J. Sullivan: It is required by State for revaluation which is due in 2018 and will be funded whether it passes or
not.

M. Miville: Just because you vote no, doesn’t mean we won’t revalue the property. It is required by law.
D. Riley declared Article 16 moved to the ballot.

Article 17

To see if the town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $10,000.00 to be added to the Master Plan
Capital Reserve Fund previously established. Estimated tax rate impact is $0.01. Recommended by Town
Council (7-0), Recommended by Budget Committee (7-3).

Explanation: Balance held by the Trustees of the Trust Funds as of December 31, 2016 for this fund is
$21,282.02. The fund is to provide a savings account, to be added to as necessary, that will allow the Town to
update its Master Plan in a manner compliant with RSA 674:3 “Master Plan Preparation”, which states in Sec
Il that revisions to the plan are recommended every 5-10 years. The Master Plan was last updated in
2004. Several areas of the plan are outdated. The following chapter has recently been updated: Economic
Development and Energy. It is the intent of the Planning Board to perform draft updates, chapter by chapter, at
monthly work sessions with input and assistance from Town staff and interested citizens. Chapters include: land
use, community facilities and services, population and housing, roads and transportation, economic
development, conservation and natural resources, recreation, education, natural hazards and
goals/objectives. Once the draft update of all chapters is complete, public information/input meetings will be
held. The Master Plan update funds will be available for a consultant to assemble the draft chapters into a
cohesive report. The update of the plan is critical to the long-term development of the Town. The Planning
Board, ZBA, Conservation Commission, and Town Council need clear, accurate information upon which to
base their decisions. Period studies that bring this new information into the Master Plan create an atmosphere
of good planning, informed decision making, and provide critical data for the voter.

J. Giotas motioned to move Article 17 to the Official Ballot. Seconded by D. Ross.

133



J. Giotas: The Master Plan was last updated in 2004 and the State recommends we do that every 5 to 10 years.
This is our blueprint for the town. This allows for the impact fees as well.

D. Riley motioned to move Article 17 to the Ballot.

Avrticle 18

To see if the town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $10,000.00 to be added to the Conservation
Land Improvements Capital Reserve Fund previously established. Estimated tax rate impact is $0.01.
Recommended by Town Council (7-0), Recommended by Budget Committee (7-3).

Explanation: Balance held by Trustee of Trust Funds as of December 31, 2016 for this fund is $10,154.47.
The Town of Hooksett has over 1,000 acres of conservation land for which it is responsible for managing. Most
of the conservation properties do not have formal access or trail networks. The intent of this Conservation
Land Improvements Capital Reserve Fund is to improve recreational access via trails development and
management and developing formal access points.

D. Ross motioned to move Article 18 to the Official Ballot. Seconded by A. Jennings.

D. Ross: This is an ongoing project and is part of our trail system.

D. Riley declared Article 18 move to the Ballot.

Article 19

To see if the town will vote to discontinue the Feasibility Study for Southern Leg of Parkway Capital Reserve
Funds created in 2005. Said funds, with accumulated interest to date of withdrawal, are to be transferred to the
town's general fund.

Explanation: This is a housekeeping item that requires the town to vote to close capital reserve funds that are
no longer needed. All funds remaining in the accounts will be deposited into the Town’s General Fund.
Balance held by Trustee of Trust Fund as of December 31, 2016 for this fund is $63,504.72.

T. Tsantoulis motioned to move Article 19 to the Official Ballot. Seconded by J. Sullivan.

T. Tsantoulis: This is to return money back to the general fund. The money has been siting there for the
Southern Park Feasibility Study and we are no longer going to use it so it will be returned to the General Fund.

D. Riley declared Article 19 moved to the Ballot.
D. Ross motioned to adjourn at 12:30. Seconded by J. Sullivan.

D. Riley declared the Deliberative Session closed at 12:30 pm.
Respectfully submitted,

Lee Ann Moynihan
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Town Election Results 2017

Article 1

To choose all necessary Town officers for the year ensuing.
Council At Large, Expiring 6/30/2020 Budget Committee, Term Expiring, 6/30/2019
Jim Sullivan 463 Steve Perrota 43
Council District 2 6/30/2020 (2) Budget Committee, Term Expiring, 6/30/2018
Rob Duhaime 71 Richard Ross 193 Timothy Stewart 309
Council District 3, Term Expiring 6/30/2020 Cemetery Commission, Term Expiring 4/30/2020
James Levesque 66 Sharon Champagne
Council District 6, Term Expiring 6/30/2020 Sewer Commission, Term Expiring 6/30/2020
John Giotas 40 Roger Bergeron 435
(3) Budget Committee, Term Expiring 6/30/2020 Michael Trustee of the Trust Funds, Term Expiring 6/30/2020
Yakubovich 365 Nathan Norton 376 Marcy Rothenberg 389 Claire Lyons 43

Article 2

Zoning Amendments

Amendment No. 1

Are you in favor of the adoption of Amendment No. 1, as proposed by the Hooksett Planning Board, for the Hooksett
Zoning Ordinance to remove the language of Article 27, Accessory Apartments, and replace it with a new Article 27,
Accessory Dwelling Units?

YES 417 NO 90

Amendment No. 2

Are you in favor of the adoption of Amendment No. 2, as proposed by the Hooksett Planning Board, for the Hooksett
Zoning Ordinance to amend Article 22, Definitions, by adding a new definition for Accessory Dwelling Units: A
residential living unit that is within or attached to a single-family dwelling, and that provides independent living facilities
for one or more persons, including provisions for sleeping, eating, cooking, and sanitation on the same parcel of land as
the principal dwelling unit it accompanies?

The purpose of this amendment is to comply with NH RSA Chapter 674:71, Definitions, which defines an Accessory
Dwelling Unit.

YES 416 NO 89

Amendment No. 3

Are you in favor of Amendment No. 3, as proposed by the Hooksett Planning Board, for the Hooksett Zoning Ordinance
to amend the following Articles: To rezone Map 6, Lot 15, Lots 22-1 through 22-70, 22-72 through 22- 73, 22-77 from
Mixed Use District 5 (MUDS) to Medium Density Residential (MDR); to rezone Map 6, Lots 22-71, 22-75 and 22-76
from Mixed Use District 5 (MUDS) to High Density Residential (HDR); to rezone Map 19, Lot 4-1 from Mixed Use
District 5 (MUDS5) to Commercial (COM); to rezone Map 25, Lot 80-3 from Mixed Use District 5 (MUDS) to
Performance Zone (PZ); and to rezone Map 24, Lots 32, 36-3 and 36-6 from Mixed Use District 5 (MUDS) to Industrial
(IND).

The purpose of this amendment is to rezone the lots listed above, which were previously developed under the Mixed
Use District 5 (MUDS5) to the zoning districts that conform to their present use.

YES 332 NO 143

Avrticle 3

Shall the town raise and appropriate as an operating budget, not including appropriations by special warrant articles, the
amounts set forth on the budget posted with the warrant, for the purposes set forth therein, and other appropriations voted
separately totaling $18,136,705.00. Should this article be defeated, the operating budget shall be $18,240,669.00, which
is the same as last year, with certain adjustments required by previous action of the Town meeting, or by law or the Town
Council may hold one special meeting, to take up the issue of a revised operating budget only. Estimated tax rate impact
$6.67. Not recommended by Town Council (0-8), Recommended by Budget Committee (10-0).
YES 354 NO 149
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Article 4

To see if the town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $200,000.00 to be added to the Public Works” Vehicles
Capital Reserve Fund previously established. Estimated tax rate impact is $0.13. Recommended by Town Council (7-0),
Recommended by Budget Committee (8-2).

YES 309 NO 178

Article 5
To see if the town will vote to approve the cost items included in the collective bargaining agreement reached between the
Hooksett Town Council and the Hooksett Permanent Firefighters Association Local 3264, IAFF which calls for the
following increases in salaries and benefits at the current staffing level:

Estimated increase over prior year

Fiscal Year Salaries Benefits Estimated Increase
2017-18 $151,550.00 $22,442.00 $173,992.00
2018-19 $ 97,960.00 $32,442.00 $130,402.00

and further to raise and appropriate the sum of $173,992.00 for the current fiscal year; of this amount $15,578.00 is
authorized to be withdrawn from the Ambulance Revenue Fund, and the balance of $158,414.00 to be raised from general
taxation. Such sum represents the additional costs attributable to the increase in salaries and benefits required by the new
agreement over those that would be paid at current staffing levels. Estimated tax rate impact is $0.10. Recommended by
Town Council (7-0), Recommended by Budget Committee (8-2).

YES 459 NO 158

Article 6
To see if the town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $142,819.00 for an increase in salaries and benefits for
non-union full-time and part-time Town personnel.
Fiscal Year Salaries Benefits Total
2017-18 $118,173.00 $24,646.00 $142,819.00
Estimated tax impact is $0.09. Recommended by Town Council (7-0), Recommended by Budget Committee (8-2).
YES 344 NO 169

Article 7
To see if the town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $120,000.00 to be added to the previously established
Capital Reserve Funds and to apportion the sum among several funds as listed below:

Fire Apparatus $ 50,000.00
Air Packs & Bottles 20,000.00
Emergency Radio Communications 50,000.00

Total $120,000.00

Estimated tax rate impact is $0.08. Recommended by Town Council (6-1), Recommended by Budget Committee (8-2).
YES 342 NO 172

Article 8
To see if the town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $100,000.00 for the Visionary Plan for Sewer and/or Other
Infrastructure Improvements on the west side of Hooksett. The sum to come from fund balance and no amount to be

raised from taxation. Recommended by Town Council (6-2), Recommended by Budget Committee (8-2).
YES 318 NO 192

Article 9
To see if the town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $90,000.00 to be added to previously established Capital
Reserve Funds and to apportion the sum among several funds as listed below:

Parks & Recreation Facilities Development $ 15,000.00
Town Building Maintenance 75.000.00
Total $90,000.00
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Estimated tax rate impact is $0.06. Recommended by Town Council (7-0), Recommended by Budget Committee (8-2).
YES 307 NO 206

Article 10
To see if the town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $78,269.00 for the salary and benefits to hire a full-time
recreation director.

Fiscal Year Salary Benefits Estimated Increase
2017-18 $47,476.00 $30,793.00 $78,269.00
Estimated tax rate impact is $0.05. Recommended by Town Council (4-3), Not recommended by Budget Committee (3-

7).
YES 145 NO 381

Article 11
To see if the town will vote to approve the cost items included in the collective bargaining agreement reached between the
Hooksett Town Council and the Hooksett Police Union Local 46, NEPBA which calls for the following increases in
salaries and benefits at the current staffing level:

Estimated increase over prior year

Fiscal Year Salaries Benefits Estimated Increase

2017-18 $ 59,043.00 $14,016.00 $ 73,059.00
2018-19 $ 94,172.00 $20,977.00 $115,149.00
2019-20 $116,915.00 $18,544.00 $135,459.00

and further to raise and appropriate the sum of $73,059.00 for the current fiscal year, such sum represents the additional
costs attributable to the increase in salaries and benefits required by the new agreement over those that would be paid at
current staffing levels. Estimated tax rate impact is $0.05. Recommended by Town Council (8-0), Recommended by
Budget Committee (8-2).

YES 343 NO 179

Avrticle 12

To see if the town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $50,000.00 to be added to the Drainage Upgrades Capital
Reserve Fund previously established. Estimated tax rate impact is $0.03. Recommended by Town Council (7-0),
Recommended by Budget Committee (6-4).

YES 301 NO 218

Avrticle 13

To see if the town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $50,000.00 to purchase a Fire Command vehicle for the
Fire-Rescue Department. Estimated tax rate impact is $0.03. Recommended by Town Council (7-0), Recommended by
Budget Committee (8-2).

YES 297 NO 226

Article 14

To see if the town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $50,000.00 for the purpose of refurbishing Hooksett Fire
Engine 5, a 2006 E-1 Typhoon Pumper. Estimated tax rate impact is $0.03. Recommended by Town Council (7-0),
Recommended by Budget Committee (10-0).

YES 406 NO 116

Article 15

To see if the town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $30,000.00 to be added to the Automated Collection
Equipment Capital Reserve Fund previously established. Estimated tax rate impact is $0.02. Recommended by Town
Council (6-1), Recommended by Budget Committee (9-1).

YES 331 NO 187
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Article 16

To see if the town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $30,000.00 to be added to the Revaluation Capital Reserve
Fund previously established. Estimated tax rate impact is $0.02. Recommended by Town Council (7-0), Recommended
by Budget Committee (9-1).

YES 279 NO 235

Article 17

To see if the town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $10,000.00 to be added to the Master Plan Capital Reserve
Fund previously established. Estimated tax rate impact is $0.01. Recommended by Town Council (7-0), Recommended
by Budget Committee (7-3).

YES 274 NO 241

Article 18

To see if the town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $10,000.00 to be added to the Conservation Land
Improvements Capital Reserve Fund previously established. Estimated tax rate impact is $0.01. Recommended by Town
Council (7-0), Recommended by Budget Committee (7-3).

YES 324 NO 197

Article 19

To see if the town will vote to discontinue the Feasibility Study for Southern Leg of Parkway Capital Reserve Funds
created in 2005. Said funds, with accumulated interest to date of withdrawal, are to be transferred to the town's general
fund.

YES 392 NO 122
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Board of Elections

The elections team had a very busy fall in 2016, with a Primary in September and Federal General Election in
November. Spring 2017 brought the Deliberative Session in February and Town Election in March, having been
moved by a Charter amendment passed by voters in 2016. June 6, 2017, a Primary was held to determine
candidates for the District 16 NH Senate Seat.

Before elaborating on details, I would like to thank Don Riley for agreeing to an additional one year
appointment as Moderator in 2016. Throughout his time in office, Don brought steady improvements to the
election process, from planning and coordination to teamwork that lead to flawless election-day performances,
time after time.

Thank you, Don, for your professionalism and dedication to achieving close-to-perfection!

September 13, 2016, Moderator Don Riley appointed Cindy Robertson to serve as Moderator Pro-Tempore for
the State Primary in his absence from town. The day began with 9940 registered voters and Supervisors of the
Checklist registered 25 new voters throughout the election. A total of 2031 ballots were cast, including 88
absentee. Process was smooth and polls closed promptly at 7:00 pm.

November 8, 2016, Presidential General Election day began with 10,106 registered voters. A record 8246
ballots were cast, including 754 absentee ballots. Supervisors of the Checklist registered 946 new voters on
election day. The day began with an exceptionally high number of voters, causing long lines and wait times of
over one hour until approximately 10:00 am. Police reported that traffic on feeder roads to and from the polling
place was gridlocked for over an hour as well. One Accuvote tabulator machine was replaced by the vendor late
in the afternoon due to a mechanical issue. Overall, the record-setting election proceeded successfully, due in
large part to months of planning and coordination between the Board of Election, School Staff, Highway
Department and Police. Thank you to all Town employees, election staff and volunteers for making this a
historic day!

March 14, 2017, Town and School election brought 531 voters to the polls, an increase over 2016.

A District 16 State Senate seat caused a Special Primary, held June 6, 2017. The day began with 10,624
registered voters and 443 ballots were cast, including 10 absentee ballots. This was the first election in many
years where the Libertarian Party was on the ballot in NH.

Thank you to the over 200 residents, officials and Town employees for making the busy 2016-2017 election
year a success!

Respectfully submitted,
Todd Rainier

Supervisors of the Checklist: Mike Horn, Kim Dagget, Bryan Williams
Town Moderator (Town Meeting) — Don Riley
Appointed Moderator — Cindy Robertson
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2016-2017 Officials, Boards, Commissions & Committees

U.S. President
Donald Trump

U.S. Senators
Maggie Hassan
Jeanne Shaheen

U.S. Congress
Carol Shea Porter
Ann McLane Kuster

Governor
Christopher Sununu

Governor’s Council
Christopher C. Pappas

Representatives to General Court
John Leavitt

Frank R. Kotowski

Richard Marple

Thomas C. Walsh

State Senator
Scott McGilvray

Budget Committee

. Jason Hyde, Chair

. Brian Tilton

. Joseph Di Mattina

. Michael Yakubivch

. Richard Boisvert

. Chris Morneau, Vice Chair
. Steven Perrotta

. Richard J. Ross

. Greg Markakos

Marc Miville, Council Rep.

O 00 2O\ W AW —

Cemetery Commission
1. Sharron Champagne

2. Michael Horne

3. Denise Cascio Bolduc

Conservation Commission

1. Cindy Robertson- Vice Chair
2. JoCarol Woodburn

3. Philip Fitanides

4. Steve Couture - Chair

5. Deborah Miville

Todd Lizotte, Alternate

David W. Hess, Alternate
David Ross, TC Rep.

Council

. Timothy Tsantoulis, District 1
. Robert Duhaime, District 2

. James Levesque, District 3

. Marc Miville, District 4

. Donald Winterton, District 5

. John Giotas, District 6

. Adam Jennings, At-Large

. David Ross, At-Large

. James Sullivan, At-Large
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Economic Development

1 David Scarpett, Resident Rep., Chair
2. Ivan Gult, Resident Rep.

3. Dan Lagueux, Resident Rep.

4. Matthew Barrett, Business Rep..

5. Marc Miville, TC Rep.

6. Paul Scarpetti , Planning Board Rep.

Heritage Commission

1. Kathie Northrup

2 . John Giotas

James Sullivan, Council Rep

Library Trustees

. Francis J. Broderick
. Barbara Davis

. Mary Farwell

. Tammy J. Hooker

. Linda Kleinschmidt

L I T R S

Moderator
Don Riley (Town Meeting)
Cindy Robertson (Appointed)

Parks and Recreation Advisory Board
1. David Elliott

2. Deborah Miville

3. Steve Smith

Adam Jennings , Council Rep

Planning Board

1. Denise Grafton

2. Thomas R. Prasol

3. Muamer Durakovic

4. Richard G. Marshall, Chair
5. Tom Walsh, Vice-Chair

6. Paul Scarpetti

1-Alt. Matt Reed

2-Alt. David Boutin

3-Alt. Christopher Stelmach

Recycling & Transfer Advisory
Committee

1. Richard Bairam

2. Jim Gorton

3. Sean McDonald

4. Raymond Bonney

Robert Schroeder, Alternate
James Levesque, Council Rep

Sewer Commission

1. Sidney Baines

2. Roger R. Bergeron

3. Frank Kotowski

Robert Duhaime, Council Rep.

Southern NH Planning Commission
1. Leslie Boswak

2. Richard G. Marshall

3. Cutler Brown
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Supervisors of the Checklist
1. Bryan Williams

2. Michael Horne

3. Kim Dagget

Town Clerk
Todd Rainier

Treasurer
Carol Andersen
Ann McLaughlin, Deputy

Trustees of the Trust Fund
1. Henry Roy

2. Claire Lyons

3. Paul Loiselle

Zoning Board of Adjustment
1. Richard Bairam

2. Roger Duhaime

3. Gerald Hyde

4. Don Pare

5. Chris Pearson

Phil Denbow, Alternate
Michael Simoneau, Alternate
James Levesque, Council Rep

Central Water Precinct

1. William Alois

2. Everett Hardy

3. William McDonald

4. Richard Montieth

5. Richard Bairam

Carol Hardy, Clerk

Kelly Alois, Moderator & Treasurer

Historical Society
1. Brian Baer

2. Diane Valade
3. Jim Sullivan

4. Bob Thinnes

School Board

1.Phil Denbow

2. Gregory Martakos
3.Amy Boilard, Vice-Chair
4.Lindsey Laliberte

5. Kara Salvas, Clerk
6.James Sullivan
7.Michael Berry, Chair

Village Water Precinct

1. Dennis Bell

2. Todd Smith

3. Michael Jache

4. Nicholas Haas

5. James Lyons

Nancy Philibotte, Clerk & Moderator
Andy Felch, Treasurer

Michael Heidorn, Superintendent



Assessing Department

When folks refer to the New Hampshire advantage, they often think about the fact that, unlike our immediate neighbors
(and most other states), New Hampshire manages to pay for its government without a state income or sales tax. By
default, that leaves the property tax as the major source of revenue in New Hampshire. Historically rejecting “broad
based” taxes, New Hampshire relies most heavily on the property tax to fund local services and public education. The role
of property taxes in New Hampshire is substantial. Given our State’s reliance on it, it is imperative that we assess property
fairly and equitably. The Assessing Department ensures that all property within the Town of Hooksett is assessed fairly
and in accordance with the New Hampshire laws governing taxation. The Department conducts various practices to ensure
an equitable distribution of the tax burden.

The 2016-2017 Town of Hooksett Assessing Department staff include Richard Dorsett, Assessor (contracted with KRT
Appraisal Services), Lee Ann Moynihan, Field Appraiser and Elayne Pierson, Assessing Clerk.

The entire Assessor’s database is available on-line by searching www.visionappraisal.com. This information is updated
monthly. The newest technology available is GIS information which can be accessed on the home page at
www.hooksett.org. This enables the user to view town maps via aerial imagery. In addition to the assessing information,

there are several layers available for the user. This is a great tool which is useful for the general public and nearly all
town departments such as Community Development, Building, Public Works, Water and Sewer, Solid Waste and Public
Safety. We are aware the property lines do not overlay precisely. We hope to have this corrected in the next year or two if
the budget allows.

The Town of Hooksett underwent a town wide revaluation in accordance of NH RSA 75:8a and section two, Article 6 of
the NH Constitution in April of 2013. The next revaluation will be conducted in 2018.

The New Hampshire Department of Revenue determined the 2016 equalization median ratio to be 86.20%. The 2016 tax
rate is $26.39 per 1000 of valuation.

The New Hampshire Assessing Standards Board has a reference manual that was developed specifically for
elected/appointed municipal officials and taxpayers. You may find this by wusing this link:
http://www.revenue.nh.gov/mun-prop/property/assessing-standards.htm

There is a computer terminal in the Assessor’s Office for the general public to use so they may search and print property
record cards without staff assistance.

The Assessing Tax Maps are available online at www.hooksett.org, for printing and viewing from the convenience of the
user’s home.

As is every year, we invite you to use the resources available to view your property cards. If you have any questions,
please do not hesitate to give us a call or come on in. We are here to serve you, the taxpayers.

Respectfully submitted,

Lee un Wogyuitian

Assessing Department
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PROPERTY LOCATION
Edgewater Drive
Railroad Bed
Railroad

Pleasant Street

61 Merrimack Street
Merimack Street
Pleasant Street

Off Pleasant Street
Off Pleasant Street
Off Pleasant Street
Off Pleasant Street
Off Pleasant Street
Chester Tumpike
Chester Tumpike
North Candia Road
North Candia Road
North Candia Road
North Candia Road
North Candia Road
7North Candia Road
Wiggins Road
Mountain Road
Wiggin Road
Chester Tumpike
Chester Tumpike
Chester Tumpike
Chester Tumpike
Chester Tumpike
110 Merrimack Street
101 Merrimack Street
78 Merrimack Street
Merrimack Street

65 Merrimack Street
5 Edgewater Drive

7 Edgewater Drive

16 Pleasant Street
Post Road

67 Post Road

2 Post Road

MAP

o oo o UL UL S D BB BSRSEDDPSPBAEDSPDPADRE WRORPNONNMNNODNON P P P P e —

Inventory of Town Property 2016-2017

LOT
4-A
18A
18B
20
34
37
19
33-18-3
33-18-4
33-18-5
33-18-6
33-18-7
14

10
12
18
22
24
26
27
32
33
34
35
37
16
20
23
25-1
40
46
47
2
22-ROAD
22-65
22-73

35500
300
17,000
5,747
9,580
8,510
14,400
22,800
22,300
22,400
22,600
22,300
91,400
11,185
111,100
2,883
917
1,764
55,300
81,100
171,900
18,800
29,626
7,100
5,118
1,163
23,200
4,561
47,700
235,400
74,000
4,100
800 219,500
2800 17,100
6,600

32,900 343,000
0

102,000

30,200 96,500

1,246,400
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BLDGVALUE LANDVALUE ACREAGE

0.48
0.63
1.95
*20.0
*80.0
*¥21.0
2.50
1.56
114
1.15
138
1.06
87.00
*160.60
14.60
*70.31
*10.30
*13.62
20.00
44.60
131.10
27.10
*163.68
0.53
*57.50
*15.00
20.00
*25.20
0.39
5.90
6.14
0.06
5.40
0.14
0.11
5.00
8.53
0.91
0.68

APPRAISED VALUE
35500
300
17,000
5,747
9,580
8,510
14,400
22,800
22,300
22,400
22,600
22,300
91,400
11,185
111,100
2,883
917
1,764
55,300
81,100
171,900
18,800
29,626
7,100
5,118
1,163
23,200
4,561
47,700
1,481,800
74,000
4,100
220,300
19,900
6,600
375,900
0
102,000
126,700 Village Water Precinct



PROPERTY LOCATION
Off Post Road

Old Railroad Bed

16 Highland Street
29 Pine Street

Off Pine Street

Off Pine Street

Off Pine Street
Pinnacle Street

18 Pinnacle Street

12 Pinnacle Street
Everett Turnpike
Ardon Drive

Ardon Drive
Pinnacle Pond
Heather Drive

16 Main Street

1 Riverside Street

7 Riverside Street
Riverside Street

6 Merrimack Street

7 Veterans Drive

4 Veterans Drive

2 Veterans Drive

21 Merrimack Street
Off Hooksett Road
Off Donald Street

15 Donald Street
35Main Street

Main Street
Riverside Street

Off Everett Turnpike
Hackett Hill Road
Maryann Road
Hackett Hill Road
Off Everett Turnpike
Hackett Hill Road
Mountain View Road
Everett Turnpike

31 Mount St Mary's Way

Inventory of Town Property 2016-2017

LOT
22-76
22-77

23
33
34
37
95
34-ROAD
36
37
38
45
72
30
31
75
76
&3

U B W N -

8
14-3-ROAD
72
11

89,300
10,900

70,600

61,100

6,200 9,300
8,700

8,500

47900 143,400
5,633

134,600

173,200

5,900

5,900

6,900

5,900

799,500 62,400
498,900 46,200
100,900 57,300
61,200

1,000

54,800

63900 47,900
47,900

8,000

6,900

6,900

7,600

3,761,000 1,061,600
1,400 8,000
9,300

212,500

12,500

12,400

13,900

7,300

951,600

42,800 9,600
5,900

2,488,900 390,200
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BLDGVALUE LANDVALUE ACREAGE

0.52
391
0.36
0.90
1.00
1.00
0.81
33.00
*34.5
19.90
45.70
0.10
0.10
0.13
0.10
0.90
0.60
0.30
0.92
4.61
0.15
0.40
0.41
0.10
0.19
0.19
0.16
15.80
1.70
0.20
50.60
12.20
12.00
13.30
0.73
47.00
1.04
0.10
3.56

APPRAISED VALUE
89,300 Village Water Precinct
10,900
70,600
61,100
15,500 Village Water Precinct
8,700 Village Water Precinct
8,500 Village Water Precinct
191,300 Village Water Precinct
5,633
134,600
173,200 Village Water Precinct
5,900
5,900
6,900 Vilage Water Precinct
5,900
861,900
545,100
158,700 Village Water Precinct
61,200
1,900
54,800
111,800
47,900
8,000
6,900
6,900
7,600
4,822,600
9,400
9,300
212,500
12,500
12,400
13,900
7,300
951,600 Village Water Precinct
52,400
5,900
2,879,100



Inventory of Town Property 2016-2017

PROPERTY LOCATION MAP LOT BLDGVALUE LANDVALUE ACREAGE  APPRAISED VALUE

Hooksett Road 14 25 7,100 0.30 7,100 Vilage Water Precinct
Hooksett Road 14 34 628,200 80.50 628,200

North Candia Road 15 6 41,400 6.80 41,400

Whitehall Road 15 10 2,264 *15.50 2,264

Whitehall Road 15 1 3,409 *23.40 3,409

Whitehall Road 15 13 5,500 0.09 5,500

Chester Turnpike 15 52 39,600 12.50 39,600

60 Chester Turnpike 15 57 72,400 3.20 72,400

Chester Turnpike 15 63 8,000 1.54 8,000

Off Chester Turnpike 15 66 7,400 0.77 7,400

21 Farrwood Drive 15 86-31 13,100 1.08 13,100

Crane Way 15 85-ROAD 7,700 0.84 7,700

Farrwood Drive 15 86-ROAD 3,600 8.48 3,600

Chester Turnpike 15 2 64,600 1.54 64,600

Chester Turnpike 15 9 34,600 0.20 34,600

Whitehall Road 15 97 3,700 0.06 3,700

Andrea Avenue 15 99 7,500 0.86 7,500

44 South Bow Road 16 24 127,700 14.54 127,700

Quimby Mountain Road 16 78-ROAD 2,100 5.50 2,100

Pearl Drive 16 79-ROAD 500 0.91 500

Pearl Drive 16 79-7 205 *3.19 205

Pearl Drive 16 79-8 450 *7.63 450

Hilltop Circle 16 80-ROAD 8,600 0.98 8,600

Saw Hill Road 17 2-ROAD 1,500 3.66 1,500

72 Hackett Hill Road 17 3 84,000 1.06 84,000

5 Memorial Drive 18 3 9,790,300 1,257,400 35.96 11,047,700 School District
Memorial Drive Roadway 18 31 7,900 122 7,900

Egawes Drive 18 32 27,500 7.29 27,500

1 Egawes Drive 18 4 73,800 108,900 3.38 182,700

Egawes Drive (off) 18 7-1 92,500 104,300 2.36 196,800

11 Dartmouth Street 18 7 110,200 70,600 0.34 180,800

34 Industrial Park Drive 18 45 322,400 254,800 2.15 577,200 Central Water Precinct
Stirling Avenue 19 11-ROAD 3,500 8.97 3,500

49 Lindsay Road 19 11-93TK 360,000 0.00 360,000 Central Water Precinct
Oak Hill Road 19 17 2,100 16,500 0.51 18,600 Central Water Precinct
Heron View Drive 20 1-ROAD 13,400 1.63 13,400

Laurel Road 20 7-ROAD 22,300 2.23 22,300

157 Whitehall Road 20 29 56,600 0.40 56,600

Off Laurel Road 21 10 65,900 154.81 65,900
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Inventory of Town Property 2016-2017

PROPERTY LOCATION MAP LOT BIDGVALUE [LANDVALUE ACREAGE  APPRAISED VALTE

Park Lane 21 34-14 114,100 9.80 114,100

Cammel Way 21 35-ROAD 1,800 4.31 1,800

Goffstown Road 22 2 413,200 97.65 413,200

238 Hackett Hill Road 2 25 300 151,300 7.30 151,600

Goffstown Road 2 37 8,700 1.00 8,700

Off Hackett Hill Road 3 14 12,100 33.47 12,100

20Industrial Park Dive 24 359 266,600 14,12 266,600

Legends Drive 24 36-ROAD 8,300 1.06 8,300

Sunrise Boulevard 24 38-ROAD 11,200 271 11,200

135 West River Road pL} 39 72,600 0.70 72,600

210 West River Road 24 59 1,265,700 589,200 35.09 1,854,900

16 Julia Drive 25 18-69 9,700 0.70 9,700

Lindsay Road 25 18-79 105,000 83,800 0.16 188,800

Burbank Road 25 19-ROAD 1,900 4,45 1,900

15Legends Drve 25 80-1 3,717,000 324,700 2.05 4,041,700

Legends Drive 25 802 107,200 5.57 107,200

101 Whitehall Road 26 s 37,800 574,200 59.00 612,000

Whitehall Road 26 2-A 77,700 1.33 77,700 central Water Precinct
Alderwood, Evelyn & Spn 26 3ROAD 37,100 8.83 37,100

Misty Lane 26 T7-ROAD 10,800 1.64 10,800

Barbemy Street 26 78-ROAD 10,100 2.30 10,100

90 Farmer Road 26 31 16,533,700 1,990,400 72.09 18,524,100 School District
10Doris Drive 26 114-6 2,100 0.68 2,100

5Doris Drive 26 114-17 1,300 0.40 1,300

79 Whitehall Road 26 141 11,500 6.10 11,500

(Off) Depot Road 29 32 13,100 1.40 13,100 Town ow ns 9%%
75 Depot Road 29 38 16600 245100 0.34 261,700

79Depot Road 29 39 3,700 0.35 3,700

33Kinball Drive 29 53 9,300 0.21 9,300

Quality Drive 29 64-ROAD 53,000 5.30 53,000

Quality Drve 29 64-6-C 404,300 2.25 404,300

73 Depot Street 29 81 12,400 0.10 12,400

Cemetery Road 30 50 73,300 5.04 73,300

Off Depot Road 30 57 16200 74,400 24.60 90,600

22Harmony Lane 31 15-10 62,900 0.40 62,900

16 Monrmoe Drive 31 65 7,200 0.23 7,200

Greystone Terrace 32 15-ROAD 600 1.51 600

Off Martins Ferry Road 3 4 57,500 0.60 57,500

2Sherwood Drive 3 5 8,700 1.00 8,700 School District
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PROPERTY LOCATION
5 Sherwood Drive
2551 North River Road
Off Hooksett Road
Seasons Drive
Summerfare Street
Quarry Road

84 Auburm Road

199 Londonderry Tumnpike
| West River Road
Briar Court

Off Donati Drive

44 Donati Drive
Bicentennial Drive
Bicentennial Drive
Forest Hills Drive
Hooksett Road
Beacon Hill Road
7Beechwood Drive
12 Beechwood Drive
Mammoth Road
Mammoth Road
Cindy Drive

Winter Drive Ext.
Cindy Drive

15K Street

Elmer Avenue
Coaker Avenue
Hooksett Road
Bicentennial Drive
34 Bartlett Street
Arah Street

46 Castle Drive

Fieldstone Drive

MAP
3
3
34
34
3
36
36
36
37
37
38
38
38
38
39
39
40
41
41
4
4
43
43
43
45
45
45
45
46
46
46
48
48

Inventory of Town Property 2016-2017

LOT
66
68
1
18-R0OAD
1-ROAD
21-ROAD
2
42-7
29
53-ROAD
12
29
30
33
14-ROAD
38
12-ROAD
40
42
20
23
29-R0OAD
53-ROAD
57
17
72
123-1
143
12
17
28
75-27
76-ROAD
Totals

2,726,200 344,300
7,100

87,600

11,000

1,700

700

97500 80,600
19,400

7,100

12,500

19,400

53,300

30,600

800

9,100

99,400

10,800

300

90,000

6,900

45,000

600

1,000

119,400

24,300 102,400
9,100

3,800

94,800

5,900

52,900

56,400

105,000

1,700

43,103,000 14,436,561
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BLDGVALUE LANDVALUE ACREAGE

11.00
0.34
2.70
0.65
342
175
130
0.26
0.30
2.53
0.25
0.45
0.06
0.40
0.84
0.53
1.82
0.06

12.00
0.13

17.00
1.49
211

3.2
1.40
1.90
0.06

0.10
0.33
033
3.10
4.00
1163.07

APPRAISED VALUE

3,070,500 School District
7,100
87,600
11,000
1,700
700
178,100
19,400
7,100
12,500
19,400
53,300
30,600
800
9,100
99,400
10,800
300
90,000
6,900
45,000
600
1,000
119,400
126,700
9,100
3,800
94,800
5,900
52,900
56,400
105,000
1,700
57,539,561



Veterans or Veterans Widow Credit
Must own property on April 1 of year of application.
Must be NH resident for 1 year prior to April 1 of the application year.
Must be residential property.
Must notify Assessor’s Office of any change of address.
Has to have served not less than ninety (90) days in the Armed Forces of the United States in a war or conflict as outlined
in RSA 72:28.
A copy of the DD214, or discharge paper is required when applying for this exemption.
Exemption Credit: $300.00 reduction in real estate tax bill.

Summary of Exemption Information Required for All Veterans Exemptions

Must have served in the Armed Service during the following dates:

World War I — April 6, 1917 and November 11, 1918 (extended to April 1, 1920 for service in Russia)

World War II — December 7, 1941 and December 31, 1946 (including US Merchant Marines)

Korean Conflict — June 25, 1950 and January 31, 1955

Vietnam Conflict — December 22, 1961 and May 7, 1975.

Vietnam Conflict-July 1, 1958 and December 22, 1961, if earned Vietnam service medal or expeditionary medal.

Persian Gulf War- August 2, 1990 and the date thereby prescribed by Presidential proclamation by law Any other war or
armed conflict that has occurred since May 8, 1975, and in which the resident earned an armed forces expeditionary medal
or theater of operations service medal.

All Veterans’ Tax Credit RSA 72:28-b

A person shall qualify for the all veterans' tax credit if the person is a resident of this state who served not less than 90
days on active service in the armed forces of the United States and was honorably discharged or an officer honorably
separated from service; or the spouse or surviving spouse of such resident, provided that Title 10 training for active duty
by a member of a national guard or reserve shall be included as service under this paragraph; provided however that the
person is not eligible for and is not receiving a credit under RSA 72:28 or RSA 72:35.

Exemption Credit: $300.00 reduction in real estate tax bill.

Disabled Veteran or Widow of Disabled Veteran

An exemption to the Veteran if he/she is 100% permanently disabled as a result of service-connected injury. You must
apply with a copy of a letter from Veterans Administration certifying 100% disability, total and permanent.

A copy of the DD214, or discharge paper is required when applying for this exemption.

Exemption Credit: $2,000.00 reduction in real estate tax bill.

Blind Exemption

Determined legally blind by the Administrator of Blind Services of the Vocational Rehabilitation Division of the
Education Department.

Exempt each year on assessed value for property tax purposes of his/her residential real estate to the value of $50,000.00.
(Approved May12, 1993 Town meeting).

Exemption Credit: $50,000.00 reduction in assessed value

Elderly Exemption

Those applying for the Exemption must qualify by meeting the following guidelines and the deadline of April 15™.

1. The person must have been a New Hampshire resident for at least three (3) years preceding April 1* in which the
exemptions claimed; own the real estate individually or jointly, or if the real estate is owned by such person’s
spouse, they must have been married for at least five (5) years.

2. The taxpayer must have a gross income of not more than $40,000.00, or if married a combined gross income of
not more than $52,500.00. Income shall include Social Security, Pensions and Disabilities, interest from Stock
and Bonds, or a part-time job.

3. Total assets requirement of $160,000 excluding the value of your primary residence and the land upon which it is
located up to two (2) acres.
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To apply for the first time for an Elderly Exemption ALL of the following documentation must be done prior to calling for
an appointment.

Statement of application and spouse’s income.
Federal Income Tax Form (if applicable).
State Interest and Dividends Tax Form.
Statement of Social Security Benefits.

el

If granted an exemption, amounts are as follows:

For a person 65 years old to 74 years old - $68,800.00
A person 75 years old to 79 years old - $96,300.00

A person 80 years old and older - $123,800.00

All documents are considered confidential. Due to the time required for the application process, an appointment will be
necessary. For an application and any further questions, please call the Assessing Department at 603-268-0003.

Applications
It is the responsibility of the taxpayer to properly apply for any exemption or deferral program.

Application deadline for exemptions and credits is April 15 and for deferrals it is March 1 of the current tax year
following the notice of tax. (Tax year is April 1 to March 31).

sk | MPORTANT*x4%

Notify the Assessor’s Office of any address changes to insure exemptions are applied to your current residence and for
accurate mailing of tax bills.

Tax Deferral Program (RSA 72:38-a)

Any resident property owner may apply for a tax deferral if the person:

Is either at least 65 years old or eligible under Title II or Title XVI of the Federal Social Security Act for benefits of the
disabled; and has owned the property for at least five (5) years; and Is living in the home.

Tax deferral may be granted for all or part of taxes due. Annual interest of 5% accrues. Total tax deferrals shall not be
more than 85% of assessed value of a property. Tax deferral may be granted if in the opinion of the Assessing officials
the tax liability causes the taxpayer an undue hardship or possible loss of the property. Applications must be made by
March 1 following the issuance of the final tax bill for that year. If property is subject to mortgage, mortgage holder must
approve, and sign the required form.

Current Use

In order to encourage appreciation for the environment, conserve land and other resources, and to maintain open space,
there are provisions for placing land in Current Use status where it is taxed at a lower rate. Many restrictions apply,
including in most cases a 10-acres minimum.

Acreage requirement: Current Use land shall consist of a tract of farm land, forest land or unproductive land totaling 10 or
more acres free of structures.

Application Form A-10 must be typewritten and signed with black ink by all owners of record. Application (Notice of
contingent lien) will be recorded at the County Registry of Deeds. The notice of contingent lien serves as a notice to all
interested parties that a lien on the land will be created if and when the land is changed to a non-qualifying use.

A 20% recreation adjustment is available for land open to the public. If the land is posted, it will not qualify for the
adjustment.

If filing with a soil potential index percentage for farmland, attach SPI information.

150



If filing for a stewardship adjustment for forestland, attach forestry plan for the following five (5) years or more.
Attach map or drawing with interior boundaries, acreage and type of land in each category, also portions of land not in
current use program.

Property owner is responsible for filing fee with application for the recording in Merrimack Registry of Deeds.

Change in Use Tax:

10% of the full and true value of the land at the time of the change, as referenced in RSA 79-A: 7,1.

TAXPAYER’S RSA 76:16 ABATEMENT APPLICATION TO MUNICIPALITY

An application must be on file to the municipality by March 1, following notice of tax.

Notice of tax means the date the board of tax and land appeals determines the last tax bill was sent by the municipality.
Municipality has until July 1 following notice of tax to grant or deny the abatement.

If taxpayer is not satisfied, he/she must file an appeal with the Board of Tax and Land Appeals (RSA 76:16-A) or the
Superior Court (RSA76: 17) but not with both no earlier than July 1 or no later than September 1 following notice of tax.
If request is based on disproportionate assessment, the taxpayer has the burden to show the assessment was
disproportionate. To carry this burden, the Taxpayer generally must show what the property was worth on April 1 of the
year appealed. This value and the assessment would then be compared to other assessments in the municipality.
Therefore, comparable properties are an essential part of most abatement applications.

FILING AN APPLICATION DOES NOT STAY THE COLLECTION OF TAXES; TAXES SHOULD BE PAID AS
ASSESSED. IF ABATEMENT IS GRANTED, A REFUND WITH INTEREST WILL BE ISSUED.

PROPERTY TAX

Property taxes are assessed to current owner, if known. The tax year runs from April 1 of one year to March 31 of the
next. The real estate taxes in Hooksett are billed twice a year, due on or before July 1 and December 1. Tax bills are sent
to the owner of record at the time of the printing of the bills.

THE TIMBER LAW (RSA 79)

“Forest Conservation and Taxation,” as of April 1, 1986, requires the landowner to pay the timber tax. The law requires
that before cutting commences, Hooksett landowners shall complete an “Intent to Cut” form that must then be filed with
the Assessor.

The Assessor is required to process the form and mail appropriate copies to the Department of Revenue within 30 days
after receipt.

The Department of Revenue shall assign an operation number and furnish without cost to the landowner a certificate (to
be posted in a conspicuous place) and “Report to Cut” form.

Failure to file the “Intent to Cut” before starting the cutting operation constitutes a misdemeanor (a fine can be imposed
also up to one year in jail).

Failure to post a certificate shall constitute a violation (a fine can be imposed).

Report of Cut Requirements

The “Report to Cut” form must be filed with the Assessing Officials indicating all wood and timber cut within 60 days
after completion of the operation. Two copies of this report shall be mailed to the Department of Revenue.

“Report to Cut” forms are due April 15 of said year. It is necessary to report all woodcuts even if no wood or timber is
cut, if an “Intent to Cut” form was filed.

The landowner and the person who does the cutting of timber must sign the “Report of Cut” form under penalty of perjury
certifying to the accuracy of the volume of wood and timber harvested. Failure to file a report of cut or falsification of
figures shall constitute a misdemeanor (a fine can be imposed).

Doomage: If an owner neglects to file a report or willfully falsifies a report, the Assessing Officials shall assess doomage,

which is two (2) times what the tax would have been, if the report has been properly filed. Refer to RSA 79:12 for the
complete statute on doomage
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RSA 79-D, Historic Barn Tax Incentive

RSA 79-D authorizes the Town of Hooksett to grant property tax relief to barn (and other agricultural structure) owners
who (a) can demonstrate the public benefit of preserving their barns or other old farm buildings and (b) agree to maintain
their structures throughout a minimum of ten (10) years. For this program, “historic agricultural structure” is defined as a
barn or other structure, including the land on which it is built, which currently or formerly was used for agricultural
purposes, and is at least 75 years old.

The 2002 law is based on widespread recognition that many of New Hampshire’s old barns and other agricultural
buildings are important local scenic landmarks and help tell the story of farming in the state’s history. Yet many of these
historic structures are being demolished or not repaired because of the adverse impact of property taxes. RSA 79-D is
intended to encourage barn owners to maintain and repair their buildings by granting them specific tax relief and assuring
them that assessments will not be increased as a result of new repair and maintenance work performed while the easement
is in effect.

On or before April 15 of the new tax year, an owner may seek relief by filing a PA-36-A Discretionary Preservation
Easement Application. If, after a public hearing, the Town Council acts favorably on the application, it may grant tax
relief within a range of a 25 to 75% reduction of the full assessed value of the building and the land underneath it.

For further information or to obtain an application form, contact the Assessor’s Office at 268-0003.

RSA 79-E, Community Revitalization Tax Relief Incentive

Hooksett’s Town Council has adopted a property tax relief incentive aimed at encouraging investment in the Village
center. The program, outlined in RSA 79-E, offers significant tax relief to property owners who want to substantially
rehabilitate a building in a designated area in the Village. For a finite period the assessed value on a property would not
increase due to the rehabilitation. When the approved term is complete, the property would be taxed at its full value.
There are three conditions: (1) a structure must be located in the Village District as adopted by the Council, (2) the
rehabilitation must cost at least 15% of a building’s pre-rehab assessed value or $75,000, whichever is less, and (3) a
project must provide a public benefit to the town by enhancing the economic vitality of the Village; enhancing and
improving a culturally or historically important structure; promoting development of the Village, providing for efficiency,
safety and a greater sense of community; or increasing residential housing. For more details about the program, contact
the Assessor’s Office at 268-0003.
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Budget Committee’s Report

The Budget Committee deliberates on appropriate funding levels, based on our town government’s requests.
The Budget Committee reviews the Municipal, School, and Water Precinct Budgets. For the Municipal Budget
which is governed by the Charter and the School District Budget which is governed by SB2, a proposed budget
is presented at the Deliberative Session in February. The Deliberative Session is the opportunity for the voters
to amend the budget and warrant articles which will be placed on the Ballot for final vote in March. This is the
first year that both the Municipal and School District elections were held on the same day in March. (A Charter
change was proposed and approved last year to move the Town Election Day to the second Tuesday in March).
For the Water Precincts, the proposed budget is presented at their annual meeting for final vote. The Town’s
current fiscal year began on July 1, 2017 and ends on June 30, 2018.

The Budget Committee reviewed the Town Municipal Budget and initially proposed a 2017-2018 Operational
Budget of $17,942,370. This number did not include a requested $390,000 increase due to a 27% town
employee health insurance premium increase. This was not included in the Town Council’s budget because the
insurance company did not inform the Town until after the budget had been finalized and sent to the Budget
Committee for their review. The Budget Committee added $194,335 into the budget in the Admin Health
Insurance line to cover part of the health insurance premium increase. The Budget Committee felt the full
$390,000 requested was not needed as the insurance year overlaps the fiscal year by only 6 months, and adding
a full year of funding was not prudent due to the impact on the tax payers. At the Deliberative Session on
February 4, 2017, the Town voted to amend the budget to add $97,000 to the Health Insurance line. The final
2017-2018 budget is $18,233,705 with a Default Budget of $18,240,669. As a result of this increase, the Budget
Committee did not recommend the final Municipal Budget.

The following Articles were approved by the voters of Hooksett on March 14, 2017:

Article 3 — Proposed Operating Budget in the amount of $18,233,705 with a Default Budget of $18,240,669.
Article 4 — To appropriate $200,000 for the Public Works Vehicle Capital Reserve Fund previously established
Article 5 — To appropriate $173,992 ($15,578 to come from the Ambulance Revenue Fund and $158,414 from
taxation.)

Article 6 — To appropriate $142,819 for non-union full and part time wage increases

Article 7 — To appropriate $120,000 for the Capital Reserve Funds (Fire Apparatus, Air Packs, and Emergency
Radio Comm.)

Article 8 — To appropriate $100,000 for a Visionary Plan for Sewer and/or other Infrastructure Improvements
on the west side.

Article 9 — To appropriate $90,000 for the Capital Reserve Funds (Park & Rec. Facilities, Town Building
Maintenance)

Article 11 — To appropriate $73,059 for the Police Union Contract

Article 12 — To appropriate $50,000 for the Drainage Upgrades Capital Reserve Fund

Article 13 — To appropriate $50,000 to purchase a Fire Command vehicle for the Fire-Rescue Department
Article 14 — To appropriate $50,000 for the purpose of refurbishing Hooksett Fire Engine 5

Article 15 — To appropriate $30,000 for the Automated Collection Equipment Capital Reserve Fund previously
established

Article 16 — To appropriate $30,000 for the Revaluation Capital Reserve Fund previously established.

Article 17 — To appropriate $10,000 for the Master Plan Capital Reserve Fund previously established

Article 18 — To appropriate $10,000 for the Conservation Land Improvements Capital Reserve Fund previously
established.
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The following Article was not recommended by the Budget Committee and was not approved by the voters of
Hooksett:
Article 10 — To appropriate $78,269 for the salary and benefits for a full-time Recreation Director.

The Budget Committee reviewed the Hooksett School District Budget and proposed an Operating Budget
totaling $33,413,350 with a Default Budget of $33,426,784. There were no amendments passed at the
Deliberative Session. The final budget was recommended by Budget Committee.

The following Articles were approved by the voters of Hooksett on March 14, 2017:

Article 2 — To appropriate $261,633 for the collective bargaining agreement with the Hooksett Education
Association.

Article 3 — Proposed Operating Budget in the amount of $33,413,350 with a Default Budget of $33,426,784.
Article 4 — To appropriate $95,500 for the Construction and Equipment Capital Reserve Fund.

Article 5 — To appropriate $40,000 for the purpose of purchasing and installing security equipment at the
Memorial School.

The Budget Committee consists of 9 elected members and 4 appointed members (Town Council Representative,
School Board Representative, Village Water Representative, and Central Water Representative). All elected

terms are 3 years and appointed terms are for one year.

Current and newly elected 2017-2018 Budget Committee members:

Jason Hyde 2018

Chris Morneau 2019

Nathan Norton 2020

Steve Perrotta 2019

Richard Ross 2018

Marcy Rothenberg 2020

Timothy Stewart 2018

Michael Yakubovich 2020

Brian Tilton 2019 (resigned June 9, 2017)
Adam Gianunzio 2018 School Board Representative
Marc Miville 2018 Town Council Representative
Village Water Precinct 2017 No member assigned

Central Water Precinct 2017 No member assigned

The Budget Committee meets every Thursday evening at 6:00 pm from October through January. The public is
welcome to attend. All public meetings are streamed live on Hooksett’s website at Hooksett.org

Respectfully submitted,

Lee Aun Moynihian

Budget Committee Secretary

Jason Hyde, Chair, Chris Morneau, Vice-Chair, , Richard Lodi, Steve Perrotta, Steve Peterson ,Richard Ross,
Brian Tilton, Michael Yakubovich, Joe Di Mattina (resigned 1/19/17), Greg Martakos, School Board
Representative, and Marc Miville, Town Council Representative
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Cemetery Commission

In accordance with NH RSA 289:6, the Town of Hooksett Cemetery Commission consists of three (3) trustees.
Sharron Champagne was re-elected, due to a write-in, to a term ending April 30, 2020. Denise Grafton attended
most meetings and has provided notable support and assistance.

Hooksett municipal cemeteries are governed by NH RSA 289 and 290, as well as the Town of Hooksett
Cemetery Commission regulations.

This year, 9 cemetery lots were sold: 7 in Head Cemetery, 2 in Martins Cemetery. 11 interments took place:
Martins Cemetery (4) — 2 casket, 2 cremains; Head Cemetery (6) — 4 casket, 2 cremains; Davis-Cate Cemetery —
1 casket

Highlights of note this year:

-CemeteryFind database subscription was renewed. We continue to add sales of lots and interments and
review/adjust/correct files that were initially loaded in 2013. The online database facilitates trustees in
researching information on the cemeteries/lot sales/decendents/lot ownership. Maps for Martins and Head
(Section A) Cemeteries were redrawn, digitized, and loaded into CemeteryFind. Extensive data was also
entered.

-Repairs were made to the Head Cemetery fence. A replacement will be needed in the near future.

-The Commission met with the Town Council in February to update them on the Cemetery Commission
activities, as well as future plans.

-The Hooksett Department of Public Works, Parks, Recreation, and Cemeteries Division took care of the
cemetery, mowing the turf areas, repairing fences and opening and closing graves. The Cemetery Trustees are
very thankful for their year-round commitment in maintenance and opening graves. The Trustees recognize
support efforts of Jessica Call, Evelyn Horn, Kathy Lawence/DPW for their assistance in scheduling interments
and for assistance in selling graves and being the full-time Town employees interacting with the public for
cemetery-related questions.

Respectfully submitted,

Hooksett Cemetery Commission Term ending:
ite Horme, Chair June 30, 2018
Denive Cascio Bolduc June 30, 2019
Starron Champague April 30, 2020
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New Hampshire 2017
Department of
Revenue Administration MS-232

Report of Appropriations Actually Voted: Central Hooksett

Water
Form Due Date: 20 Days after the Meeting

For Assistance Please Contact:
NH DRA Municipal and Property Division
Phone: (603) 230-5090
Fax: (603) 230-5947

CERTIFICATION OF APPROPRIATIONS VOTED

This is to certify that the information contained in this form, appropriations actually voted by the town/city
meeting, was taken from official records and is complete to the best of our knowledge and belief. Under
penalties of perjury, | declare that | have examined the information contained in this form and to the best of my
belief it is true, correct and complete.

Governing Body Certifications o
William Alois Chairperson A o
Wwilliam McDonald commissioéner - O N

Richard Monteith Commissioner
Everett Hardy Commissioner 2. #""“Q/
Richard Bairam Commissioner = 2 ‘___/

This form must be signed, scanned, and uploaded to the Municipal Tax Rate Setting Portal:
https://www.proptax.orgl

MS-232: Central Hooksett Water 2017 10of3

156




Appropriations

Warrant Article
#

Account Code Purpose of Appropriation Appropriations As Voted
General Government
0000-0000 Collective Bargaining $0
4130-4139 Executive $0
4140-4149 Election, Registration, and Vital Statistics $0
4150-4151 Financial Administration $0
4152 Revaluation of Property $0
4153 Legal Expense 40
4155-4159 Personnel Administration $0
4191-4193 Planning and Zoning $0
4194 General Government Buildings $0
4195 Cemeteries $0
4196 Insurance $0
4197 Advertising and Regional Association 40
4199 Other General Government $0
Public Safety
4210-4214 Police $0
4215-4219 Ambulance $0
4220-4229 Fire $0
4240-4249 Building Inspection 40
4290-4298 Emergency Management $0
4299 Other (Including Communications) 40
Airport/Aviation Center
4301-4309 [Airport Operations | $0
Highways and Streets
4311 Administration $0
4312 Highways and Streets 40
4313 Bridges $0
4316 Street Lighting $0
4319 Other $0
Sanitation
4321 Administration $0
4323 Solid Waste Collection $0
4324 Solid Waste Disposal $0
4325 Solid Waste Cleanup $0
4326-4329 Sewage Collection, Disposal and Other $0
Water Distribution and Treatment
4331 Administration 5 $15,425
4332 Water Services 57,9 $859,946
4335-4339 Water Treatment, Conservation and Other $0
Electric
4351-4352 Administration and Generation $0
4353 Purchase Costs $0
4354 Electric Equipment Maintenance $0
4359 Other Electric Costs $0
MS-232: Central Hooksett Water 2017 20f3
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Warrant Article

Account Code Purpose of Appropriation # Appropriations As Voted
|Health
4411 Administration $0
4414 Pest Control $0
4415-4419 Health Agencies, Hospitals, and Other $0
Welfare
4441-4442 Administration and Direct Assistance $0
EEEE] Intergovernmental Welfare Payments $0
4445-4449 Vendor Payments and Other $0
Culture and Recreation
4520-4529 Parks and Recreation $0
4550-4559 Ubrary $0
4583 Patriotic Purposes $0
4589 |other Culture and Recreation $0
Conservation and Development
4611-4612 Administration and Purchasing of Natural Resources $0
4619 Other Conservation $0
4631-4632 Redevelopment and Housing $0
4651-4659 Economic Development $0
|Debt service
4711 |Long Term Bonds and Notes - Principal 5 $45,000
4721 |Long Term Bonds and Notes - Interest 5 $5,366
4723 Tax Anticipation Notes - Interest $0
4790-4799 Other Debt Service $0
Capital Outlay
4901 Land $0
4902 Machinery, Vehicles, and Equipment $0
4903 |Buildings $0
4909 | Improvements Other than Bulldings $0
Operating Transfers Out
4912 To Spedial Revenue Fund $0
4913 To Capital Projects Fund 10,6,7,8,9 $50,250
4914A To Proprietary Fund - Alrport $0
4914E To Proprietary Fund - Electric $0
49145 To Proprietary Fund - Sewer $0
4914W To Proprietary Fund - Water $0
4915 To Capital Reserve Fund $0|
4916 To Expendable Trusts/Fidudary Funds $0
4917 To Health Maintenance Trust Funds $0
4918 To Non-Expendable Trust Funds $0
4919 To Agency Funds $0
Total Voted Appropriations $984,987

MS-232: Central Hooksett Water 2017
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New Hampshire 2017
Department of

& Revenue Administration MS-737

Budget of the Village District of Central Hooksett Water
Form Due Date: 20 Days after the Village Meeting

THIS BUDGET SHALL BE POSTED WITH THE WARRANT
This form was posted with the warrant on:

For assistance please contact the NH DRA Municipal and Property Division
P: (603) 230-5000 F: (603) 230-5947 hitp://www.revenue n.gov/run-prop/

BUDGET COMMITTEE CERTIFICATION
Under penalfies of perjury, | declare that | have examined the information contained in this form and to the best of my belief it is true, correct
and complete.
Budget Committee Members
Printed Name Signature
()//irf‘g A:urr'pavg C‘%ﬁm&;’
-ﬂ’&v:m ji-i’f.!;&‘i ‘jﬁ? IZM(—A
RICHAMD RoSS @ Y
Tomw T How /(a7
T F
| /)
Nake Miville Mine il

This form must be signed, scanned, and uploaded to the Municipal Tax Rale Setting Portal:

MS-737: Ceniral Hooksett Water 2017 1of9
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Village District of Central Hooksett Water
New Hampshire

Warrant and Budget
2017

To the inhabitants of Central Hooksett Water in the County of in the state of New Hampshire qualified to
vote in village district affairs are hereby notified and warned of the Annual Meeting will be held as follows:

Date: March 13, 2017

Time: 7:00 PM

Location: Central Hooksett Water Precinct
Details: 10 Water Works Drive

Article 1: To choose a moderator for the ensuing year

To choose a moderator for the ensuing year

Article 2: To choose a Clerk for the ensuing year

To choose a Clerk for the ensuing year.

Article 3: To choose a Treasurer for the ensuing year

To choose a Treasurer for the ensuing year.

Article 4: Choose 1 Commissioner for 3 a year term

To choose one Water Commissioners for a three year term. That being the seat currently occupied by Richard
Bairam.
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Article 5: Operating Budget

To see if the village district will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $915,737 (MNine Hundred
Fifteen Thousanc Seven Hundred and Thirty Seven Dollars) for general municipal operations. This
article does not include appropriations contained in special or individual articles addressed
separately. (Recommended by the Precinct Commissioners){Majority vote required)

Article 6: Source Development

To see if the Precinct will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $19,500 (Nineteen Thousand Five Hundred
Dollars) to be added to the Central Hooksett Water Precinct Capital Reserve Fund #20 entitled Source
Development & Infrastructure Preservation Reserve Fund with said funds to come from Capital Improvement
Fees. (Recommended by the Precinct Commissioners){Majority vote required).

Article 7: Water Storage

To see if the Precinct will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $9,875 (Nine Thousand Eight Hundred
Seventy Five Dollars) to be added to the Central Hooksett Water Precinct Capital Reserve Fund #2 entitled
Water Storage Capital Reserve Fund with said funds to come from Capital Improvement Fees and Water Rents.
(Recommended by the Precinct Commissioners). (Majority vote required).

Article 8: New Construction

To see if the Precinct will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $15,000 (Fifteen Thousand Dollars) to be
added to the Central Hooksett Water Precinct Capital Reserve Fund #8 entitled New Construction and Capital
Improvements Capital Reserve Fund with said funds to come from Water Rents. (Recommended by the
Precinct Commissioners) (Majority vote required).

Article 9: Repair & Repl t

To see if the Precinct will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $9,875 (Nine Thousand Eight Hundred
Seventy Five Dollars) to be added to the Central Hooksett Water Precinct Capital Reserve Fund #22 entitled
Repair and Replacement of Main and Equipment Reserve Fund with said funds to come from Capital

Improvement Fees and Water Rents. (Recommenced by the Precinct Commissioners). (Majority vote
required).

Article 10: Standpipe

To see if the Precinct will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $15,000 (Fifteen Thousand Dollars) to be
added to the Central Hooksett Water Precinct Capital Reserve Fund #26 entitled Standpipe Relining Capital
Reserve Fund with said funds to come from Water Rents. (Recommended by the Precinct Commissioners).
(Majority vote required).

Article 11: Ratify and Affirm Ordinances and By-Laws

To see if the Precinct will ratify and affirm as ordinances and By-Laws adopted by the Commissioners during the
preceding year and to ratify and affirm the Commissioner's written schedule of fees and charges.

Article 12: Transact Other Business

To transact any other business that may legally come before this meeting.

Given under our hand: Yy 9, 2017

We certify and attest that on or before _ we posted a true and attested copy of the

wittharrnnlatLheptamdmmg.arxiukecnple;salt!EFmdt‘_umeninSd\ool.zShemoodDrive,
Hooksett, NH both being Public places in the said Precinct

Printed Name | Position
William Alois Chair

William McDonald C

Richard Balram Commissioner
Richard Monteith Commissioner
Everett Hardy C
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CENTRAL HOOKSETT WATER PRCINCT
MARCH 13, 2017 7:00 PM
ANNUAL MEETING

The Annual meeting was called to order at 7:02 p. m. Attending were Irene Beaulieu, Dick Monteith,
Everett Hardy, Attorney BJ Branch, Bill McDonald, Bill Alois, Kelly Alois, Carol Hardy, Jay Smith,
Richard (Turk)Bairam.

ANNUAL MEETING

The moderator, Kelly Alois confirmed that the Warrant was posted at 10 Water Works Dr, Hooksett,
NH., The Fred C Underhill School, and the Union Leader newspaper.

Bill Alois motioned to waive the reading of the entire Warrant prior to business being conducted and
in lieu thereof ask the voters to authorize the moderator to read the Warrant from the beginning
through the first article and that the meeting then take action on that article with the moderator then
proceeding to the next article upon action being completed and so forth through the end of the
Warrant. | respectfully ask that this motion be seconded. Bill McDonald seconded the motion and all
were in favor.

By law the moderator can have an assistant, it will be Attorney Branch.
We will now commence with the election of officers.

Kelly Alois resigned her position. By law she can’t fill two positions. We will vote for a moderator for
next year at our next meeting.

ARTICLE 1: To choose a moderator for the ensuing year. Bill McDonald nominated Kelly Alois for
moderator for the ensuing year. Is there any other nomination, there isn’t any other nominations, it
was seconded was Dick Monteith and all were in favor.

ARTICLE 2: To choose a Clerk for the ensuing year. Bill Alois nominated Carol Hardy for Clerk, is there
any other nominations? There were no other nominations, it was seconded by Bill McDonald and all
were in favor.

ARTICLE 3: To choose a Treasurer for the ensuing year. Bill McDonald nominated Kelly Alois for
Treasurer. There were no other nominations, it was seconded by Richard Bairam and all were in
favor.

ARTICLE 4: To choose 1 Commissioner for a 3 year term. Bill McDonald nominated Richard
Bairam for Commissioner, there were no other nominations, it was seconded by Richard Bairam and
all were in favor.

Bill Alois asked if there was any election for Chairman. Bill McDonald nominated Bill Alois as
Chairman for the ensuing year. Dick Monteith seconded and the motion carried and all were in favor.

Attorney Branch swore all the officers in.
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Attorney Branch moved, since no elections were contested, that the clerk be authorized to cast a
single ballot for all elected officers and Commissioner. Dick Monteith seconded the motion and all
were in favor.

ARTICLE 5: Operating Budget: To vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $915,737 for general
municipal operations. This article does not include appropriations contained in special or individual
articles addressed separately. (Recommended by the Precinct Commissioners). ( Majority vote
required). Bill Alois motioned to accept and vote for Article 5. Bill McDonald seconded the motion
and the article passed and all were in favor.

ARTICLE 6: Source Development: To vote to raise and appropriate the surn of $19,500 to be added to
the Central Hooksett Water Precinct Capital Reserve Fund #20 entitled Source Development &
Infrastructure Preservation Reserve Fund with the said funds to come from Capital Improvement Fees.
(Recommended by the Precinct Commissioners) (Majority vote required). Bill Alois motioned to
accept and vote for Article 6. Richard Bairam seconded the motion and the article passed and all were
in favor.

ARTICLE 7: Water Storage: To vote and to raise and appropriate the sum of $9,875 to be added to the
Central Hooksett Water Precinct Capital Reserve Fund #2 entitled Water 5torage Capital Reserve Fund
with the said fund to come from Capital improvement Fees and Water Rents. (Recommended by the
Precinct Commissioners). (Majority vote required). Bill Alois motioned to accept and vote for Article
7. Dick Monteith seconded the motion and the article passed and all were in favor.

ARTICLE 8: New Construction: to vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $15,000 to be added to the
Central Hooksett Water Precinct Capital Reserve Fund #8 entitled New Construction and Capital
Improvements Capital Reserve Fund with the said funds to come from Water Rents. (Recommended
by the Precinct Commissioners). (Majority vote required). Bill Alois motioned to accept and vote for
Article 8. Dick Monteith seconded the motion and the article passed and all were in favor.

ARTICLE 9: Repair and Replacement: To vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $9,875 to be added
to the Central Hooksett Water Precinct Capital Reserve Fund #22 entitled Repair and Replacement of
Main and Equipment Reserve Fund with the said funds to come from Capital Improvement Fees and
Water Rents. (Recommended by the Precinct Commissioners). (Majority vote required). Bill Alois
motioned to accept and vote for Article 9. Bill McDonald seconded the motion and the article passed
and all were in favor.

ARTICLE 10: Standpipe: To vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $15,000 to be added to the
Central Hooksett Water Precinct Capital Reserve Fund #26 entitled Standpipe Relining Capital Reserve
Fund with said funds to come from Water Rents. (Recommended by the Precinct Commissioners).
(Majority vote required). Bill Alois motioned to accept and vote for Article 10. Richard Bairam
seconded the motion and the article passed and all were in favor.

ARTICLE 11: Ratify and Affirm Ordinances and By-laws: To see if the Precinct will ratify and affirm as
ordinances and By-laws adopted by the Commissioners during the preceding year and to ratify and
affirm the Commissioner’s written schedule of fees and charges. Bill Alois motioned to accept and
vote for Article 11. Richard Bairam seconded the motion and the article passed and all were in favor.
ARTICLE 12: Transact Other Business: To transact any other business that may legally come before this

meeting. Bill Alois motioned to accept and vote for Article 12. Richard Bairam seconded the motion
and the article passed and all were in favor.

Kelly asked to have a motion to close the Annual Meeting. Dick motioned to adjourn the Annual
Meeting. Bill McDonald seconded the motion and all were in favor. The Annual Meeting was
adjourned at 7:20 p. m.
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Conservation Commission

Grand Opening of the Hooksett Riverwalk Trail
Dedication Ceremony at Pinnacle Park

Timber Harvest at Clay Pond and other Conservation Lands
Demanding work and years of effort pays off at the Hooksett Riverwalk Trail for Hooksett!

Hooksett Riverwalk Trail — September 28, 2016

This year, the Hooksett Conservation
Commission (HCC) oversaw the completion of
the first phase of the Hooksett Riverwalk Trail —
one mile of premier trail construction along the
Merrimack, a 40-foot bridge spanning Brown
Brook, and an impressive Kiosk built and
installed by Oliver Mack, Jr., for his Eagle Scout
project with members of Boy Scout Troop 292. A
trail-naming committee considered multiple ideas
for trail names prior to the unveiling.

i

Stantec was the Town’s consultant and managed g‘ﬁ%
to come in under budget on trail construction and

provided monthly updates at HCC meetings. The trail system
design takes into consideration wildlife enhancement,
protection of endangered species, and scenic views of the river

and unique property.

The Grand Opening was well attended by approximately 60
residents, town dignitaries, media personnel, and
representatives from the Land and Community Heritage
Investment Program and N.H. Department of Environmental
Services. The ceremony included a ribbon-cutting, speeches
by several HCC Chair Steve Couture, Town Council member
David Ross, and State Representative [ '
Dave Hess. Stantec led the trail walk,
the Heritage

Hooksett Riverwalk Trail continued

Commission’s Kathy Northrup provided
a history of the property, and the Society
for Protection of NH Forests (holder of
the conservation easement on the
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property) spoke to the natural resource characteristics of the conservation land.
The HCC has researched and negotiated having three benches installed along the trail.

Town Engineer James Donison started discussions with Allenstown, Pembroke, and Concord regarding a
connecting trail system to southern New Hampshire Regional Trails. This may strengthen our case for grant
applications in the future.

The HCC has approved a three-year method of Biological Control by the Department of Resources and
Economic Development (DRED) on the Hooksett Riverwalk property. The Emerald Ash Borer has been
detected in the Merrimack River Valley, including on the Hooksett property. This non-native insect is
responsible for the rapid destruction of Ash trees in other states. The HCC authorized three releases of a
parasitic wasp this summer to attack the Emerald Ash Borer. The tiny wasps do not sting people, pets, or
wildlife and pose no other threat to the environment, according to extensive studies by the U.S. Department of
Agriculture (USDA).

Pinnacle Park Dedication — October 29, 2016

A dedication ceremony and trail walk in honor
of Arthur “Bud” and Lorraine Locke was
attended by Locke’s daughter from out-of-state
and a nephew. Locke’s family were long-time
owners of Pinnacle Park; Bud Locke was a local
war hero. Other attendees included members
from Bear-Paw Regional Greenways, the
Heritage Commission, and Hooksett residents,
who shared fond memories of Bud and Lorraine
Locke, including a poignant remembrance by
Dave Hess. The 36.5 acres at Pinnacle Park
provides Hooksett with scenic panoramic views
of the Merrimack and town.

This year the HCC will partner with Bear-Paw on trail enhancements and improved signage
Clay Pond Conservation Area — 750 acres

The HCC moved forward with the Clay Pond Conservation Stewardship Plan by
marking property boundaries with medallions purchased last year, working with the
%, Planning Board to negotiate a parking area easement, and commencing with its first
timber harvest over the winter. While returns netted about $3,800, it also improves the
land and forest and wildlife sustainability with a select harvest and oversight by Swift
Corwin of Calhoun & Corwin Forestry, LLC.

Unfortunately, several of the five gates installed by Blue Ribbon at no cost were
wrecked by vandals. These gates prohibit vehicles on the property, which is designated as a significant natural
resource and high value wildlife area with endangered species identified.
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Another timber harvest is scheduled for July on the Laurel Road conservation property and expected to
exceed $15,000 in revenue for the town.

Hooksett Bow Forest

The HCC received a grant of $11,000 to move forward with an easement on approximately 37 acres of Town
property. This adds to the almost 270 acres of protected land in Hooksett that abuts 600 acres of conservation
land in Bow.

University Heights and Town Pond Area

Three-hundred plus acres of conservation land has the potential to eventually be a town swimming area and
support mountain biking trails.

Land acquisition

With greater than 25-percent of town land conserved, the HCC is focusing on stewardship. Hooksett can be
proud that it has achieved the “gold standard” in acquired and permanently conserved lands for the
protection of wildlife, preservation of our natural resources, and enjoyment of future generations.

The Hooksett Conservation Commission meets the second Monday of the month at 4:30 pm in the Town Hall
Chambers of the Municipal Building. All residents are encouraged to provide input on conservation related
matters. Residents interested in becoming members or interested in participating in a specific project are urged
to contact the Conservation Commission. All of us extend our deepest thank you to the community for your
continued support and interest.

Respectfully submitted,

Steve (outure, Chair Alternate Members: Dawid Fecee and Tedd
Cindy Reberntson, Vice Chair Lesotte

Pl Fitanides Dawid Ress, Town Council Representative
Del Meville Leann Faller, Staff Support

Jolanol Weodbura
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Economic Development Advisory Committee

The Hooksett Economic Development Committee (HEDC) serves in an advisory capacity and reports on a regular basis to
the Town Council. Members are appointed by the Town Council and include one Council member, the Town
Administrator, and the Town Planner.

Economic development opportunities may be assigned to the HEDC by the Town Council and the HEDC may
recommend economic development opportunities to the Town Administrator, Town Council, and Planning
Board as appropriate.

MISSION STATEMENT
The Hooksett Economic Development Committee’s mission is to enhance the vitality of the local economy by
retaining existing businesses, encouraging entrepreneurship and attracting new business to Hooksett in support
of the Town Council’s effort toward the development of public policy and strategies that result in balanced and
sustainable economic growth.

GOALS

e To establish a strong rapport with existing business to retain and encourage expansion within the Town
of Hooksett.

e To promote the Town of Hooksett as a destination for new business.

e Provide support for the Town Council, planning and zoning boards projecting a welcoming and helpful
image to the business and general community.

e Assist the Town Council with research and development of new business opportunities.

e Coordinate and seek out support for business development from local, state, and regional organizations
such as SNHPC, Chamber of Commerce, Department of Resources and Economic Development.

Projects undertaken this year include —

e Conclusion of Business Visitation Program

e Involvement with Tax Increment Financing District project for Route 3A for infrastructure
e Update of Economic Development website page

e Attendance at Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy

Board Members for 2016-2017 include:
Dave Scarpetti (Chair)
Matt Barrett
Marc Miville (Town Council Rep)
Dan Lagueux
Ivan Gult
Paul Scarpetti (Planning Board Rep)
Alden Beauchemin

Respectfully submitted,

% #/&Il &W, Town Planner
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Family Services

The Department of Family Services administers General Assistance to families in need under RSA 165. In this
capacity, the Family Services Department provides for basic needs such as shelter, food, utilities, and
medication. The General Assistance program is designed to provide short-term, emergency assistance until
recipients become employed or receive long-term assistance from the state or federal government. All
recipients of General Assistance agree to reimburse the Town when they return to an income status that allows
them to do so.

In the past year, 138 applicants were found eligible for various types of General Assistance (141 were
assisted the previous year). The amount of assistance provided increased by approximately $20,000, mostly due
to increases in rental and mortgage payment amounts.

General Assistance expenditures for July 2016 - June 2017

Shelter $ 60,543
Medical $ 3,489
Utilities $ 14,991
Cremations $ 1,700
Total $ 80,723

In an effort to offset costs to the Town, many families were referred to the following local charitable
organizations: The Hooksett Salvation Army Unit, the Hooksett Food Pantry, and the Kiwanis Kid’s Kloset.
Hooksett is fortunate to have organizations such as these, which help to meet a wide variety of needs while
saving taxpayer dollars.

Another valuable resource for low-income Hooksett residents is the Community Action Program (CAP)
in Suncook. CAP administers the Fuel Assistance and Energy Assistance programs, including Neighbor
Helping Neighbor. CAP also assists through a variety of food programs such as Commodity Foods, WIC, and
Meals-On-Wheels.  The Kid’s Kloset, a collaborative effort of Hooksett Kiwanis Club, Family Services, and
the Salvation Army continues to provide families in need with free, gently used children’s clothing. Families
can be referred to the Kid’s Kloset by contacting the Family Services Department or their child’s school nurse.
Open houses are held at the Town Hall once a month and individual appointments can be scheduled as needed.

In August of 2016, Family Services partnered with the Hooksett Salvation Army and Target to hold a
back to school shopping spree for children in need. Forty Hooksett children were selected to participate in this
wonderful program in which each child received a $150 Target gift certificate to purchase needed back to
school clothing and school supplies. The children were paired with community volunteers who generously
donated their time to help the children shop. Later that afternoon, backpacks and school supplies were
distributed at the Town Hall to approximately 75 students in need. These supplies were donated by generous
residents, the Hooksett Salvation Army, the Hooksett Kiwanis Club, Target, and the Brook Ridge Ladies Group.

Each holiday season the Family Services Department administers holiday assistance programs for
Hooksett families in need. Food baskets (through the Hooksett Community Food Pantry, toys and gifts
(through the Hooksett Holiday Assistance Program), and winter clothing items (through the Clothes Line Kids
Program, a partnership with Hooksett GE) are provided through the combined efforts and generosity of the
Hooksett schools, residents, organizations, and businesses. This past year 69 families (including 136 children)
were served. Special thanks to the employees of Hooksett GE for the donations of outdoor winter clothing and
boots, Hooksett Lions Club for over 200 pairs of socks donated through their “Got Socks Program,” the
Hooksett Knights of Columbus for the donation of over 200 pairs of gloves and mittens, and the Hooksett
American Legion and residents Jay and Gerry Rainville for their incredibly generous donations to the program.
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Again this past summer, through the sponsorship of the Salvation Army, Family Services was able to
provide summer camp scholarships to 20 low-income children for the Hooksett Fun in the Sun program. Thank
you to all of the Hooksett bell ringers and donors that make these funds available to our Hooksett families in
need!

Regular Family Services office hours are Monday, Tuesday, Thursday, and Friday 10: 00AM-4: 30PM.
Applications for General Assistance are taken by appointment. Please feel free to contact the office at 485-8769
if you would like more information regarding the services offered by this department.

Respectfully Submitted,

Yoy Buggell

Family Services Director
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Fire and Rescue

The Hooksett Fire-Rescue Department experienced a very busy year in 2016. Fire Administration was
reorganized from 5 to 4 while the Fire/EMS staffing was increased by 1; to 29 line firefighter /EMS personnel.
Captain Steve Colburn was promoted to Assistant Chief; Lieutenant Joseph Starker was promoted to Captain of
Emergency Medical Services. This resulted in a full-time coordinator to oversee all facets of EMS response,
preparation and public education.

Over the past year, Hooksett Fire-Rescue responded to 2,356 calls for service with an average response time of
7:09 from dispatch to arrival. These included 1,390 medical calls (59%), which is about a 10% increase over
last year. There were 42 fires of various types. Remaining calls included rescues, hazardous spills and
conditions, false alarms, good intent and other service calls. Fire-Rescue received and placed in service a new
Ambulance with teleconference ability with the Hospital.

Our members participated in many public relations events including; the Salvation Army Bell Ringing, MDA
Fill the Boot, Old Home Day, Touch-a-Truck, Memorial Day Parade and others!

Fire Prevention completed 448 inspections. This included Life Safety Inspections in commercial, residential
and industrial properties. “Safe-Station”; the connection to treatment and recovery was stated in Hooksett
providing the much needed service.

Firefighters visited all our Schools completing “Hands Only” CPR training and fire safety; and along with
Hooksett Police delivered anti-drug messages in Cawley Middle School and the Town Library. On average,
firefighters completed 350 hours of on-duty training during the year.

As always, we would like to thank the citizens for their support over the past year, as we look to providing the
best possible service in the future!

James 4. Burbusk, Chief
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Heritage Commission

RSA 674:44-a states that a “heritage commission may be established in accordance with RSA 673 for the
proper recognition, use, and protection of resources, tangible or intangible, primarily man-made, that are valued
for their historic, cultural, aesthetic, or community significance within their natural, built, or cultural
contexts.” Hooksett’s commission was reactivated in July 2003.

The duties of a heritage commission are generally outlined in RSA 674:44-b. A commission has advisory and
review authority and is charged with surveying and inventorying all cultural resources; conducting research and
publishing findings; assisting the planning board, as requested, in the development and review of those sections
of the master plan which address cultural and historic resources; advising, upon request, local agencies and
other local boards in their review of requests on matters affecting or potentially affecting cultural and historic
resources; coordinating activities with appropriate service organizations and nonprofit groups; and receiving
gifts of money and property, both real and personal, in the name of the town, subject to the approval of the
council.

Projects that were completed during the period July 1, 2016, to June 30, 2017, or are continuing:

» Commission proposed “Remembering Hooksett’s Agricultural Heritage” as the theme for the 2015-2016
Annual Town and School Report. The front and back covers feature photos of farm life in Hooksett. The inside
front cover has excerpts from the Oral History Project about growing up on a farm. Adopted by Council.

» Set up Facebook page for Hooksett Head School Society.

* Accepted advisory role for a Hooksett Girl Scout who is working on her Gold Award (comparable to Eagle
Scout). She plans an informational tour of Head Cemetery.

 Participated in Old Home Day in September sharing a table with the Town Hall Preservation Committee.

» Participated in the sixth NH History Week in October. The Heritage Commission, Historical Society,
Conservation Commission, Robie’s Country Store Historic Preservation Corp., Head School Society, and the
Hooksett Library all offered programs. The Heritage Commission co-hosted an open house at Head School and
participated in the dedication of Pinnacle Park and the ribbon-cutting of the Riverwalk Trail.

* Processed three demolition review petitions.

» Assisted a graduate student in gathering some Merrimack Street clay for research to complete her
dissertation on “Native American Pottery, Vinette 1, in the Merrimac River Valley.”

* Co-sponsored the 13th annual Hooksett Heritage Day on May 20 with Robie’s Country Store Historic
Preservation Corp., the Historical Society, and the Town Hall Preservation Committee in recognition of
National Preservation Month. The commission co-hosted the open house at the old town hall.

* Application filed with and granted by the Country School Association of America (CSAA) to list Head
School on their National Schoolhouse Registry. When members of the CSAA visited Head’s as part of their
annual conference held in New London this year a plaque recognizing the listing was presented to Town
Councilor Marc Miville.

* The Portsmouth & Concord Railroad historic marker was damaged when hit by an unknown person over the
winter. Rather than replace it, we found a local company to repair the marker.

* Continued to sell various merchandise items to supplement the town allocation. Proceeds from several items
are pledged to the Town Hall Preservation Project.

The commission meets on the fourth Tuesday of each month at the Hooksett Public Library. We welcome
volunteers interested in our work and would be pleased to receive input from the public.

Contact Hooksett.Heritage@myfairpoint.net or call 669-8926.
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Respectfully submitted: Rathlecw Vorttnap, Chair; foln Giotae and James Swllivan, Council

Representatives.

@  UKeUsoN B
U facebook

Checking out the Before and After Display NH
History Month Open House, October 2016

- ’ /
CSAA Historic Landmarks Schoolhouse June
2017

Always a popula stop on the tour — the privy!
2016 Andover Schoolhouse! Andover NH Class,
June 2017

Open House, 2016 NH History Month o
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Historical Society

The Hooksett Historical Society, established in 1974, whose home is the Arah Prescott Library, continues to
meet its goal of bringing together those people interested in the history of Hooksett, N.H. And to that end, the
Society has continued to discover and collect historical materials, provided for preservation, cooperated with
other town groups, and disseminated historical information.

During 2016-2017 the collection has grown through the generosity of donors and Town financial Assistance
with the acquisition of such items as an old Merchants motors ashtray; Doll House cabins, White Rock cabins
and Tom’s Motel postcards and a matchbook covers from El Rivardo’s motels. We also have been able to
obtain an aerial photo of the Beau Claire motel and a placemat from the China Dragon restaurant. The book
Amoskeag Manufacturing Company: A History of Enterprise on the Merrimack River by Aurore Eaton which
mentions the brick yards in Hooksett was also purchased.

We continue to categorize our collection, displaying new items at our Prescott Museum and continuing offering
Town Hall displays, to the scanning and photography of our inventory and ensuring the archival protection of
our papers, pamphlets and photographs. We also were able to increase museum space by removing non
historical and unusable furniture, which was given to the town for re use. A planned project to refurbish the
front door wood work was delayed due to the lack of appropriate contractor.

During the year, the Society welcomed a preservation expert Annette Andreuzzi who provided insights in
preservation efforts and methods. We also discovered a 1976 Time Capsule and reach out to the community to
find out information on its history and its creation. The Society also received a nice holiday wreath courtesy of
the Hooksett Garden

In Corporation with Town and State officials we provided input the Lilac Bridge Project and continue to
support efforts to restore old Town Hall as well partnership with the Hooksett Public Library in our programing
We participated with the Heritage Commission ,the Head School Society and Robies Country Store Historic
Preservation Corp in ”Heritage Week”, held on October 29,2016 and on the 13th annual Heritage Day , held on
May 20, 2017 to commemorate Preservation Month with Programs and Open Houses . We have also been to
recognize the continue work of the Heritage commission and the friends of the Head School for their
presentations on the one room school house experiences of the 1840’s

In efforts regarding the dissemination of Historic Information we taken advantage of our Hooksett Historical
Society face book which has proven very successful. Our website Hooksetthistory.wordpress.com website also
provides pertinent information. We have also had many open houses at the museum and we have offered
informative, exciting and well attended programs throughout the year including

The Photography of Jeff Hines- a local photographer, which feature creative shots of Hooksett historic sites
Benedict Arnold — Patriot or Traitor

Fearless Pioneer — Amelia Earhart
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A Hooksett Rail Story- Bridges, Trains and Things — a HHS video production showcasing historical photos and
postcard on that subject

John Clayton and the program called- Manchester a City that would not die- courtesy of the Manchester
Historical Association

Starting Your Own Genealogy Blog

The Hooksett Historical Society, now in its 43rd year, continues to promote and educate our citizens on the
historic significance the Town of Hooksett has played in New Hampshire since its founding in 1822 and thank
the citizens of Hooksett, Hooksett Public Library and the New Hampshire Humanities Council, Manchester
Historical Association for their support this year through their donations, assistance and participation.

On behalf of the Historical Society members, respectively submitted,

James 4 Sullivan
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The Library has continued our focus on three key areas of library service: technology support, early literacy
and availability of digital resources.

3D Printing @ Your Library 3D printing has changed the landscape of manufacturing. Engineers, artists,
entrepreneurs and hobbyists can now harness the power of 3D printing to turn an idea into reality. To support
such creativity in accord with its long-standing mission to make discovery accessible to and affordable for
everyone, the Hooksett Library is now home to a Flash Forge Creator Pro 3D printer, courtesy of a generous
donation by the Friends of the Hooksett Library.

Hooksett Library is now a nationally recognized Family Place Library! Family Place is a national model and
certification for public libraries. What being a Family Place Library means is that we are truly family-focused
and are using a four-pronged approach. 1) We have implemented the Parent Child Workshop for ages 0-3 where
resource professionals (pediatricians, speech pathologists, etc) visit each week in an informal, play-based
setting. 2) We have a parenting collection housed in the Children's Room, 3) we have employed play-based
interactive learning centers like the train table and the kitchen set, which help children learn skills they will
need before they enter school and 4) we have created community partnerships. All of this is in the name of early
literacy and providing support to families to make sure children have the skills they need before they begin
school at age 5.

Technology Support @ Your Library: Community members routinely seek us out to help them get better
acquainted with how their devices work, access our digital media, or even help them troubleshoot their devices
when they misbehave. In fact, patrons have expressed their preference for consulting with us when it comes to
tech support, either because they know that we aren't out to sell them something that they don't need or because
they've had a negative experience with the tech support from their device's manufacturer. A recent story we
heard: a library patron visited the Apple Store to consult with the Genius Bar about an issue with their Apple
devices, but even after seeing three Apple tech support personnel, the issue was not resolved. The individual
happened to be sitting across from one of our library patrons who recommended that she visit her library to see
if they could help, indicating that she gets great service and tech support from her Hooksett Library's tech
specialist. As it turns out, the individual was also a Hooksett patron who later paid us a visit, and after an hour's
consult with our tech specialist about her misbehaving Apple devices, the issue was resolved to her great
satisfaction."”

E-magazines are back! This year saw a hiccup on our magazine service as our current vendor discontinued
their offering. We have now subscribed to RB Digital which provides 50 pre-selected titles available for
simultaneous use. Our new service includes email notification when a new issue is ready.

Consumer Reports at your fingertips — all you need is your library card! Whether you are looking to find the
best deal on an LCD TV, or researching the top-recommended used vehicles, ConsumerReports.org provides
ratings and reviews, recommendations and buying advice for thousands of products and services.

In addition to product ratings and reviews, you will find in-depth advice, tips and trends written by Consumer
Reports experts. Even we were surprised and impressed by their offerings — everything from dehumidifiers to
bug sprays! Ever wonder the best credit card rewards? Consumer Reports has an interactive article
customizable to your spending. Grab your computer or device and log in now at www.hooksettlibrary.org .
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Our Youth Services Librarian, Grace Larochelle is now a certified ChildLight Yoga instructor! Through a
grant from the New Hampshire Library Association, Grace attended a three day training on providing yoga for
ages 0 to 12. Our yoga programs provide children aged 0-12 in our community to have an extra opportunity to
develop emotionally, socially and physically in a safe environment while having fun. Our younger yoga groups
experience parental bonding during class and the gives the older participants a chance to be independent in a
setting different from school and sports.

After 20 years at the library, we were very sad to see Miss Vickie retire. Her warmth and energy have filled the
Children's Room, making every child feel important while here. She has spent countless hours providing
storytimes, holiday parties, summer reading events and so much more! All the while, she was never too busy to
stop and talk with our local kiddos and providing them a warm hug.

Respectfully submitted,
Heather Rainier, Library Director

Library Board of Trustees
Mary Farwell, Chair Tammy Hooker
Mac Broderick Linda Kleinschmidt
Barbara Davis

Books and materials purchased (does not include magazine issues): 2,419
Donations added to the collection (includes replacements of existing titles): 530
Books and materials withdrawn from collection: 2,490
Registered patrons as of 06/30/17: 7,885
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Library Holdings as of 06/30/2017: 96,421

eAudios (state cons. copies)
ebooks (state cons. copies)
ebooks (CL-GMILCS)
eAudios (CL- GMILCS)
Audiobook

Book

Cake pan

Children's audiobook
Children's book

Children's DVD

Children's music CD
Children's magazines (issues)
DVD

Graphic novel

Kit (Lego & Science)

Music CD

Magazines (issues)

VHS (Hooksett historical)

Video game

Library Accounts as of 06/30/17:

Copy Account

Fine Account

Gift Account

Grants account
Greenough Bequest
Meeting Room Account
Morin Account

Special Checking
Vacation Sick Accrual
Income:

3D printing
Copies/fax/printing
Fines

Materials replacements /
processing fees

Gift donations
Greenough bequest
Interest

Jonathan Murphy Memorial
Library bags

Meeting room donations
Non-Resident fees

Public consumables

Staff and technology support donations

TD Bank Affinity grant

15990
18538
5404
413
9210
21882
75
807
14296
1981
315
125
3811
434
196
1414
1149
67
314

$8,649
$18,465
$8,634
$23,293
$19,711
$2,327
$2,914
$16,523
$22,082

$90.05
$5,690.44
$8,510.63
$2,366.38

$299.00
$4,109.65
$635.68
$450.00
$119.00
$2,122.00
$3,402.00
$90.02
$943.00

$11,104.22

Circulation of Materials FY2016-2017: 200,071

eAudio 4434
eBook 7312
eMagazine 530
Audiobook 8732
Book 48820
Cake pan 94
Children’s audiobook 2009
Children's book 67972
Children's DVD 16901
Children's music CD 1458
Children's magazine 189
DVD/Bluray 26920
Graphic novel 2181
Kit (Lego & Science) 2031
Music CD 5110
Magazine 3555
Video game 1823
Hooksett Library Budget 2016 -2017
Income from Town $712,733
Expenses
Automation $23,456.45
Books and Materials $42,026.29
Custodial Supplies $2,127.89
New Equipment $8,366.08
Equipment Maintenance & $4,213.00
Maintenance & Repairs $13,739.18
Office Supplies $3,264.32
Payroll Expenses
Dental Ins $1,757.60
FICA $30,849.93
Health Ins $72,976.73
Life & Disability Insuranc $3,884.65

NH Retirement $33,275.67
Unemployment $500.00
Wages $410,820.53
Workers Comp $867.00
Postage $353.40

Programs and Services $4,655.31

Remote Access Database $5,233.44
Staff and trustee expenses $9,640.79
Technology/Software $7,114.89
Utilities $31,009.85
Van Service $2,600.00
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Disbursements:

Books & Media

E-books

Kits (Lego & Science)
Replacements (books & media)
Historic Fund (books)

Family Place Libraries grant
Target grant (literacy backpacks)
Library website redesign

Copy & Printing

Public internet & computers
Public consumables

3D printing expenses

Meeting Room expenses
Museum Passes

Programs

$1,363.62
$4,479.49
$354.81
$2,602.57
$247.00
$2,391.14
$140.68
$2,250.00
$2,105.65
$2,628.00
$47.32
$323.17
$2,122.00
$2,150.00
$1,775.22



Planning Board

The Planning Board’s duty is to review applications for compliance with Land Use Regulations, Development
Regulations, Zoning Ordinances and the Master Plan. Applications include site plans, amended site plans, major
and minor subdivisions, phasing, lot line adjustments, lot mergers, condominium conversions, and site plan
waivers.

From July 2016 through June 2017, the Planning Board reviewed 55 formal applications, participated in many
discussions and viewed several presentations.

We thank the following residents who served on the Planning Board during 2016-2017 Fiscal Year:

Richard Marshall, Chair

Tom Walsh, Vice Chair

Thomas Prasol

Paul Scarpetti

Muamer Durakovic

Denise Grafton

Donald Winterton, Town Council Representative
David Boutin, Alternate

Christopher Stelmach, Alternate

The Hooksett Planning Board meets on the first and third Monday of each month at the Hooksett Municipal
Building Council Chambers. All meetings are open to the public. For more information on the Planning Board

visit Hooksett.org or contact the Planning Office at 603-268-0458 or jduffy@hooksett.org.

Respectfully submitted,
Deéane Boyee

Director of Public Works
Community Development Department
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Hooksett Police Department

Police Command Staff

Janet Bouchard
Chief of Police

Captain Jake Robie
Administrative Captain

Lieutenant James Bradley
Detective Division Commander

Lieutenant Justin Sargent
Patrol Division Commander
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Patrol Division

Patrol Supervisors
Sergeant Mathew Burke
Sergeant Michael Zappala
Sergeant Valerie Lamy
Sergeant David Scarpino
Sergeant Michael Auger
Sergeant Joseph Ducharme

Communications
Supervisor Richard Belanger
Dispatcher Jay Wilson
Dispatcher Christine Barry
Dispatcher Katy Flynn
Dispatcher Dawn Smith
Dispatcher Angela Bergeron

Detective Division

Detective Dean Lombardo
Detective Brian Williams

Prosecution
Attorney Evelyn King

Department Staff

Patrol Officers

Officer Kristofer Dupuis
Officer Christopher Buker
Officer Jeffrey Czarnec
Officer Daniel Byers
Officer Michael Carpentier
Officer Erin Minihan
Officer Travis Mannon
Officer Brian Roche
Officer Trevor Dearden
Officer Nicholas Kapteyn
Officer Richard Fosher
Officer Kevin Laliberte
Officer Aaron Smith
Officer Logan Gardyne
Officer Jordan McCluskey

Part-time Reserve Officer
SRO Gary Blanchette

Prosecution Assistant/Victim Advocate Cyndy Ullrich

Department Support Staff

Executive Assistant Francine Swafford

Administrative Assistant/Evidence Technician Jessie Ulliani
Administrative Clerk Sheryl Kiley

Administrative Clerk/Receptionist Roberta Shepard
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Message from Chief Janet Bouchard

As I prepare this message I am exactly 74 days into my appointment as Police Chief. The past 74 days have
been busy, filled with learning and honestly, plain enjoyable. During those days I have promoted a Captain, a
Lieutenant and two Sergeants. I also swore in our newest officer and prepared my first-ever budget. Having
spent my entire police career with Hooksett, I was honored and humbled to be chosen to replace Chief Bartlett,
who left us to lead the Dracut, MA police department. I was conscious of the shoes I had to fill and aware of the
fact that our department did not need much of a change. I vowed to continue to build on the strong base of
professionalism, courtesy and respect that the department prides itself on.

During the last year the department experienced the retirement of its 3 top administrators. This paved the way
for the advancement of officers who have worked in Hooksett for several years. We are proud of the fact that all
of the promotions were made from within the department. There has been minimal employee turnover. We are
rapidly approaching being at a full complement of officers. It is safe to say that the transition to a completely
new administration has been seamless. I want to thank Dr. Shankle, members of the town council, Donna
Fitzpatrick and all other department heads who have made the effort to reach out to welcome me into my new
position and offer their assistance. This town truly has a group of great employees who work together for the
betterment of its citizens.

There are no surprises in our statistical data. I’'m happy to say that the number of burglaries are down as are
thefts from motor vehicles. I’'m confident to say this is in direct relation to more officers working and spending
time in neighborhoods, being as visible as possible. The number of frauds has raised dramatically. This is in-
line with country wide trends. These crimes include on-line frauds, identity thefts and fraudulent use of credit
cards. These crimes are so prevalent due to the number of on-line transactions that occur. Unfortunately the
number of drug offenses as well as overdose deaths have risen. We are not immune to the heroin epidemic that
has barraged this area.

One of my main goals and upcoming challenges is to present the construction project to the voters by warrant
article. This is a project that was initiated by Chief Bartlett and I feel is vital for the safety of our officers and
efficiency of the entire department. I believe we have simply outgrown our workspace. By repurposing the
space that the building already has, we are able to make much needed improvements without placing a
tremendous financial burden on the tax payers. I plan on presenting the plans to the public as well as to provide
tours of areas that need change, so the voters can be as informed as possible.

We remain focused on community involvement. We currently hold several RAD classes per year, provide child
safety seat inspections, Vial of Life, Are You Ok and Operation Safe Return programs, to name a few. We also
have a vibrant, active Neighborhood Watch program. I am proud to announce that over 13 members of
department ran the Special Olympics Torch run through town this past spring, raising money for NH Special
Olympics and we are rapidly approaching our first ever participation in National Night Out. This is a program
that works to further build the relationships between police and the community they serve.

What I am most proud of is the continued transparent relationship that our department has built with the
community. We will continue to be active in social media. Check out our Facebook page and Twitter account
@hooksettpd. Please look for me on my own Twitter account as well @chiefbouchard.

We are committed to providing a safe and enjoyable environment to all residents, business owners and visitors. On a daily
basis we are reminded of the strong support we have from the community. Hooksett truly is a great town!

Janet Bouchard

Chief of Police
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Police Activity Report

In 2016, the Hooksett Police responded to 18,577 dispatched calls for service. Our officers also
responded to 698 false alarms, 692 motor vehicle crashes and initiated 2,056 security business
checks. During that same time, officers conducted 7,626 motor vehicle stops and made 667

arrests, compared to 601 arrests in 2015.

Crime Comf)arison Report For the period ending 12/31/2016

Group A Crimes Against Persons

Crime IBR Category Year| Jan | Feb | Mar | Apr | May | Jun | Jul | Aug | Sep | Oct | Nov | Dec |Total
Negligent Manslaughter 2016
2015 . : 1 1
Pct nfa nfa
Kidnaping/ Abduction 2016 1 1 1 3
2015 1 1 2 o 4
Pct 0% | nfa nfa | nfa | nia -25%
Forcible Rape 2016 1 1 2
2015 1 1 1 2 Y 6 7
Pet nla | nla | nfa |-nfa|" 0% | nfa -67%
Sexual Assault with an Object 2016 Lo 1 1
2015 1 1 1. N 2 .
Pct ' nfa | nfa nfa | -50%
Farcible Fondling 2016 1 2 . 1 4
2015 | 1 1 N 2 6
Pct nla 0% nfs nfa nfa -50% | -33%
Aggravated Assault . 2016 1 2 3 1 2 1 10
o 015 2 2| 2 | s
Pct nfa nla nfa | -50% n/a -50% | nfa | +67%
Simple Assault 2016 | 12 4 6 6 16 16 13 | 10 4 9 9 15 | 120
2015 | 15 6 8 8 8 9 9 4 6 12 | 14 9 | 108
Pct | -20% | -33% | -25% | -25% |+100%)| +78% | +44% |+150%)| -33% | -25% | -36% | +67% | +11%
Intimidation 2016 | 9 9 9 4 7 6 4 | 5 1 3 5 62
2015 | 4 5 4 6 2 5 2 3 5 4 5 2 47
Pot |+125%] +80% [+125%)| -33% [+250%| +20% |+100%| nfa | 0% | -75% | -40% [+150%)| +32%
Incest 20186 1 1
2015 = 2 2
Pct : - n/a nia | -50%
Statutory Rape 2016
2015 1 |1 R 2 4
Pct n/a nfa . nia n/a
Total Crimes Against Persans 2016 22 | 13 | 18 | 10 | 26 | 24 | 20 | 13 | 11 11 13 | 22 | 203
2016 20 | 127 13 | 17 | i2. | 21 | 14 | 7 15 | 17 | 21 | 17 | 186
Pot |+10% | +8% | +38% | -41% |+117%]| +14% | +43% | +86% | -27% | -35% | -38% [ +29% | +9%
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Crime Comparison Report For the period ending 12/31/2016

Group A Crimés Against Property

Crime IBR Category Year| Jan | Feb | Mar | Apr | May | Jun | Jul | Aug | Sep | Oct | Nov | Dec (Total
"|Robbery 2016 | 2 2 4
2015 1 1 2
Pct | nfa nfa n/a n/a +100%
Arson 20186
2015 1 1
Pct nla nla
Burglary/ Breaking and Entering 2016 2 2 4 2 2 4 4 1 4 2 5 32
2015 | 6 1 5 g 3 |57 3 3 3 38
Pct | -67% [+100%| -20% { n/a nfa | -56% |+33%  -80% |+33%|-33% | n/a nfa | -16%
Extortion/ Blackmai! 2016 :
2015 1 (I
Pct nfa nia
Larceny (purse snatching) 2016
2015 T 1
Pct " nia nfa
Larceny (shoplifting) - 2016 | 10 4 4 2 8 8 5 3 1 6 4 4 69
2015 9 9 12 10 4 4 4 4 2 7 2 5 72
Pet {+11% | -56% | -67% | -80% |+100%|[+100%| +25% | -25% +450%| -14% +100% -20% | -4%
Larceny (from building) 2016 2 1 1 3 3 2 2 2 4 <] 28
2015 2 5 5] 2 2 5 1 1 1 3 4 32
Pet 0% i -80% | -83% | +50% | +50% | -60% [+100%|+100%+300% nfa |+100%| -13%
Larceny {from motor vehicles) 2016 8 3 3 3 1 8 2 3 2 33
2015 13 2 5 6 4 9 7 13 3 8 .2 70
Pct | -38% | nfa | +50%: -40% | -83% [+100%] -78% | -57% | n/a nfa |-67% | nfa |-53%
Larceny (of motor vehicle parts) 2016 1 1 2 4
2015 1 1 1 3
Pct nfa nfa +100%| n/a nfa |+33%
Larceny {all other) 2016 8 3 3 3 4 3 2 7 k| 7 7 6 54
2015 8 1 6 7 7 2 [ 7| 14 7 7 3 3 77
Pct | 0% [+200%| -50% | -57% | -43% | -57% | -71% | -50% | -86% | 0% [+133%|+100%] -30%
Motor Vehicle Theft 2016 ) 1 2 1 1 1 1 1 2 10
2015 2 1 1 1 1 4 2 1 13
Pct | -50% nfa nla | 0% | 0% nfa 0% nfa | -50% | n/a nfa |-23%
Counterfeit/ Forgery 2016 1 1 2 4
2015 1 2 1 2 2 8
Pct nfa nfa nla nfa nfa nfa 0% | -50%
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Crime Comparison Report For the period ending 12/31/2016

Group A Cfimes Against Property

192

Crime IBR Category Year| Jan | Feb | Mar | Apr |May | Jun | Jul | Aug | Sep DctiNov Dec | Total
Fraud (false pretense;swindie) 2016 | 1 1 6 3 T 3 2 s 1 5 3.1 28
2015 2 | 4 | 1 2 | 2 3 1 1 16
Pot | -50% | -75% [+500%| nfa | nia | +50% | -33% | +200%| nia [+400%| nia | +75%
Fraud (creditidebit card; ATM) 2006 3 | 6 | 2 | 7 | 11 | 4 2 | 4 2 a | 3 | 11| s8
2016 | 2 | 1 | 2 | 3 2 a4 | 1| 4] 2| 24
Pct | +50% |+500%| 0% |+133%| n/a |+100%| nfa | +33% | -50% |[+200%| -256% [+450%|+142%
Fraud (impersonation) 2016 3 1 2. 1 2 ) 5 1 3 2 i 21
2015 | 2 7 3 1 1 2 R 1 20
- Pet | +50% | nfa nia nfa |+100%| nfa |+100%[+150%| nfa 0% |+1 I}D% nfa | +5%
Fraud (wire} 2016 1 - il
2015
Pct nfa ] n/a
| Embezzlement 2016 ErrEE T 4
2015 | 1 1., ' 1 3
Pct | nfa n/a | nla | nfa nfa | 0% |+33%
Stolen Property 2016 3 '3 i 1 8
2015 | 2 1 1 1 2 1 1 3 12
Pct | nfa | na nfa |+200% n/a [+200%| 0% | wa | wa | -33%
Destruction of Property/Vandalism 2016 | 6 3 6 M| 1| 6| 10| 1| 8 | 4 6 9 | 100
2015| 11 | 4 | 5 | 10| 9 | 6 | 10| 9 | 13| 7 | 8 | 8 | 98
Pot | -45% | -25% | +20% | +10% | +22% |+150%| 0% | +22% | -36% | -43% | 26% | +50% | 2%
“Total Grimes Against Property 2016 | 46 | 256 | 32 | 36 | 46 | 51 | 36 | 40 | 36 | 28 | 35 | 47 | 458
2015 | 60 | 28 | 46 | 42 | 35 | 43 | 41 | 48 | &4 | 36 | 29 | 29 | 491
Pol | -23% | 1% | -30% | 14% | +31% | +19% | 12% | -17% | -33% | -22% | +21% | +62% | 7%




Crime Comparison Report For the period ending 12/31/2016

Group A Crimes Against Society
Crime IBR Category Year| Jan | Feb | Mar | Apr | May | Jun | Jul | Aug | Sep | Oct | Nov | Dec |Total
Drugf Narcotic Viclations 2016 2 1 <] 2 2 4 8 3 3 10 2 1 | 48
2015 3 3 .2 4 1 4 4 2 10 3 36
Pct | -33% | -67% [+150%| n/a | -50% |+300%|+100%] -25% | +50% | n/a | -80% | 67% | +19%
Pornography/Ohscene Material 2016 2 1 1 1 t 1 7
2015 2 1 3
Pct nfa nfa nfa nfa na n/a n/a nfa |+133%
Prostitution 2016
2015 1 1 2 1 2 7
Pct nfa n/a n/a n/a n/a nfa
Weapon Law Violations 20186 1 1 1 3
2015 1 1 1 2 1 2 1 g
Pct | n/a nfa | 0% | nla nfa n/a nfa na n/a -57%
Total Crimes Against Scciety 2016 2 1 8 2 4 5 10 4 .| 3 10 2 2 53
2015 5 6 4 5 4 2 4T 5 10 3 55
Pet | -60% | -83% [+100%| -60% | 0% |+150%|+150%| -43% | -40% | nfa |-B0% i -33% , -4%
Crime Comparison Report For the period ending 12/31/2016
, Group B Crimes
Crime IBR Category Year| Jan | Feb | Mar | Apr | May | Jun | Jul | Aug | Sep | Oct | Nov | Dec |Total
Bad Checks 2016 1 3 1 1 2 8
2015 1 1 1 1 4 7
Pct 0% n/a n/a nfa n/a +100% n/a +14%
Disorderly Conduct 2016 1 4 1 2 5 2 2 2 1 17
2015 1 1 3 1 E) 9
Pct n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a nla +87% nfa n/a n/a n/a -67% | +89%
Driving under Influence 2016 3 [S] 5 5 5 [ 4 5 4 <] 1 5 56
2015 2 2 2 4 3 3] 8 a 3 6 2 47
Pct | +50% +200%| n/a [+150%| +50% [+100%] -33% | -38% | -56% |+100%| -83% |+150%; +19%
Drunkenness 2016 2 1 2 2 1 1 9
2015 2 2 1 1 2 R 4 2 11
Pct nla nfa n/a nfa 0% 0% nfa’ E] n/a n/a n/a -18%
Family Non Violent Offenses 2016 2 = 2 3 1 8
2015 1 1 K 1 E 1 2 8 .
Pct nfa nia n/a +100%|+200%| 0% n/a nfa 0%
Liquor Law Violations 2016 2 1 1 3 1 1 1 1 2 1 14
2015 2 2 1 2 |. 2 1 A ‘1 12
Pct nia nia -50% nfa nia n/a 0% -50% | -50% [+100%; nfa 0% [ +17%
Runaways (under 18yr old) 2016 3 1 1 3 8
2015 1 3 2 2 i g
Pet nfa nla | +50% n/a -50% n/a nfa -11%
Trespass of Real Property 2016 2 3 4 5 1 + 2 18
2015 2 3 3 3 3 2 4 2 4 1 1 3 31
Pct a/a ~33% n/a 0% nfa nfa 0% |+150%| nia 0% 0% -33% | -42%
All Other Offenses 2016 | 13 8 17 26 27 16 26 16 23 14 1 16 213
2015 | 13 12 16 18 19 7 11 ] 20 15 18 15 173
Pot 0% | -33% | +6% | +44% | +42% [+129%|+136%] +78% | +15% | -7% | -39% | +7% | +23%
Total Group B Crimes 2016 | 17 | 21 23 41 a2 28 45 a4 32 28 15 25 351
2015 | 22 20 26 27 29 14 26 26 36 26 29 26 307
Pct | -23% | +5% | -12% ] +52% | +45% 1+100%| +73% | +31% | -11% | +8% | -48% | 4% | +14%
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Public Works

The Department of Public Works consists of six divisions namely, Building Maintenance, Community Development, Fleet
Maintenance, Highway, Parks, Recreation & Cemeteries and Recycling & Transfer. We would like to thank all the staff for
their hard work and dedication.

The Highway Division addressed a total of 24 winter storms this year, more than doubled last year’s total storms. More storms
mean more work for cleaning and repairing catch basins and culverts, filling pot holes and repairing the shoulders of the roads.
The crew was short-handed this year but has managed to address these issues. We appreciate everyone’s patience.

As part of the annual Roadway Surface Maintenance Program, 10.1 miles of roadways were improved of the 78 miles that the
Town is responsible for. This included crack sealing (7.6 miles), chip sealing (0.9 miles), reconstruction (1.3 miles) and
pavement overlay (0.2 miles). Roadways that were crack-sealed included: Birch Hill Rd, Carmel Way, Carriage Lane, Cindy
Drive, Cyr Drive, Donald Street, Farmer Road, Gailor Lane, Garlan Lane, Goonan Road, Helen Drive, Heritage Drive, Kimball
Drive, Lantern Drive, Legacy Drive, Marcel Way, Pinnacle Street, Springer Road, Summit Drive and Vista Drive. Town areas
that were crack-sealed included the Town Hall, Library and DPW Transfer Station. Roadways that were chip-sealed included:
Almeda Lane, Bemis Road, Brandywine Drive, Petersbrook Drive and the main DPW driveway. Roadways that were
reconstructed included Main Street and Martins Ferry Road. Roadways that were overlaid included: Bemis Road and 300 feet
of Pinnacle Street off of Route 3A.

The Fleet Maintenance is a subdivision of the Highway Division. This division consists of a Master Mechanic and a Mechanic.
They maintain and repair an estimated 267 pieces of equipment consisting of trailers, tractors, pickups, trucks loaders, bobcats,
a backhoe, mowers, fire apparatus and police cars and equipment.

Building Maintenance is another subdivision of